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This document contains important information about the securities offered for sale by CED Co-op.
You should read the entire Offering Statement before deciding whether to buy these securities. All
prospective purchasers of these securities must receive this Offering Statement before completing

their purchase.

CED Co-op is offering to sell MEMBERSHIP SHARES and CLASS C PREFERENCE SHARES:

Summary:

Description:

. ClassC
Membership Preference Totals
Shares
Shares
Minimum Offering None None None
Maximum Offering $5,000 $8,000,000 | $8,005,000
Minimum Individual
New Investor Purchase $10 $5,000
Minimum Individual
Existing Investor Purchase $10 None
Maximum Individual Purchase $10 None
Membership Shares: Total Minimum Offering: None
Total Maximum Offering: $5,000
Share Price: $10

Class C Preference Shares:

Minimum Individual Purchase:

Maximum Individual Purchase:

Total Minimum Offering:
Total Maximum Offering:
Share Price:

Minimum Individual Purchase
For New Investor*:

For Existing Investor:

Maximum Individual Purchase:

Amount to be Raised by this Offering Not to Exceed:

1@ $10 ($10)
1@ $10 ($10)

None
$8,000,000
$5

1,000 @ $5 ($5,000)

None
None

$8,005,000
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Membership Shares and Class C Preference Shares are being offered (the “Offering”). This Offering is
not subject to a Minimum aggregate investment threshold. As such, the Co-operative will transact the
purchase and sale of securities directly with Investors and shall not involve any escrow arrangement.

No official of the Government of the Province of Ontario has considered the merits of the matters
addressed in this Offering Statement. Neither the Ministry of Finance, the Financial Services Regulatory
Authority of Ontario, nor any other ministry or agency of the Government of Ontario assumes any liability or
obligation to anyone who purchases the securities offered under this Offering Statement.

This is deemed a high-risk offering by the Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario due to
certain elements of the Offering. There is no guarantee that there will be a return on your investment
or that you will receive your initial investment returned to you.

Investors should not rely on any information other than what is contained in this Offering Statement.
Aninvestment in the Securities of the Co-operative involves certain risks. Potential buyers should pay
careful attention to all of the Risk Factors noted in the Offering Statement. See Section 5: RISK FACTORS
for descriptions of these risks.

The information contained in any financial or operating projections or pro forma statements contained
in this Offering Statement may vary materially from actual results.

There is no established public market through which these Securitiesmay be sold. Due to the
characteristics of the securities offered by this Offering Statement, restrictions on their transfer, and the
fact that significant resale restrictions may apply, no such market is likely to develop. The Directors of the
Co-operative have determined the price of these Shares. Membership Shares, Preference Shares, and
Bonds may only be redeemed on demand with the consent of the Board of Directors of the Co-operative
in accordance with the subscription agreements.

This Offering Statement expires on March 31, 2024. No further Securities may be issued after this date
unless a new Offering Statement is filed and receipted.

*New Investors to CED Co-op will need to invest a minimum of $5,000 in any particular Security, other
than a Membership Share. Once this threshold has been met, there is no minimum investment for
subsequent investments. For Existing Investors that hold Securities which have been purchased
under previous offerings, other than Membership Shares, there is no minimum investment.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
The following terms and phrases used in this Offering Statement have the meanings set out below:

“AC” means alternating current electricity;
“AGM” means annual general meeting of members;
“Applicant” means a Person that has submitted an Application to the FIT Program

“Application” means an application submitted by CED Co-op, a Joint Venture or Limited Partnership under
the FIT Program and “Applications” means more than one of them;

“Articles” means collectively CED Co-op’s Articles of Incorporation, as amended by any Articles of
Amendment or other constating documents;

“Blakes” means Blake Cassels & Graydon LLP;
“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of CED Co-op;

“Bondholder” means a Member or Non-Member who holds one or more Bonds of the Co-operative, and
“Bondholders” shall mean more than one of them;

“Bonds” means the Co-operative’s series L1-4, M1-5, N1-5, 01, 02, P1, P2, Ql and R1;
“By-Laws” means the by-laws of CED Co-op in force from time to time;

“Carbon Offset” means any form of renewable energy certificate, credit, reduction right, offset, allocated
pollution right, emission reduction allowance or other proprietary or contractual right, whether or not tradable,
resulting from the actual or assumed displacement of emissions by the production of electricity from a
Facility;

“CCA” means Capital Cost Allowance;
“CCPC” means Canadian Controlled Private Corporation;
“CCSA” means Contract Capacity Set Aside;

“Class A Preference Shares” means the Class A Preference Shares of CED Co-op, and “Class A Preference
Share” shall mean any one of them;

“Class B Preference Shares” means the Class B Preference Shares of CED Co-op, and “Class B Preference
Share” shall mean any one of them;

“Class C Preference Shares” means the Class C Preference Shares of CED Co-op, and “Class C Preference
Share” shall mean any one of them;

“Commercial Operation” means the date on which a Project is recognized by the IESO to be complete and
connected to the Grid, the point after which electricity produced by the Facility is sold under the FIT Contract;

“Community CCSA” means the CCSA portion of the FIT Allocation that has been set aside for Community
Investment Members;

“Community Investment Member” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the FIT Standard Definitions which,
in the case of a Community Participation CCSA Project, generally a co-operative with at least Fifty (50)
members that are Property Owners within the municipality in which the Project is to be developed, and have
continuously been property owners in the municipality for the previous 2 years, and in the case of a
Community Participation Project, generally a co-operative with at least Thirty-Five (35) members that are
Property Owners within the municipality in which the project is to be developed, and have continuously been
property owners in the municipality for the previous 2 years;

“Community Participation Level” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the FIT Standard Definitions, generally
the Economic Interest held by a Community Investment Member;

“Community Participation Project” means a Project that has a Community Investment Member with at least
a15% Economic Interest in the Project;

“Community Participation CCSA Project” means a Project that has a Community Investment Member with
greater than a 50% Economic Interest in the Project;
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“Connection Impact Assessment” or “CIA” means an assessment conducted by a LDC to determine the
impact on the distribution system of connecting the Project or Facility to its distribution systems;

“Contract Capacity” means the rated capacity (generally viewed to be the AC rating) in kW of a Solar PV
Facility as indicated on the FIT Contract for that Facility;

“Co-operative“, “the Co-operative”, “CED Co-op” means the Community Energy Development Co-operative
Ltd,;

“Co-op Act” means the Co-operative Corporations Act (Ontario) R.S.0.1990, c.C..35 as amended and
successor legislation thereto;

“Co-op Regulations” means the Co-operative Corporations Act (Ontario) R.R.0.1990, REGULATION 178 as
amended and successor regulations thereto;

“COVID” means the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19), an infectious disease caused by the SARS-CoV-2 virus
and its variants;

“Credit Agreement” means the credit agreements, security documents and related loan documents
executed by the borrowers, SunSharel LP, SunShare2 LP and 2117921 Alberta Ltd., in respect to loans
provided by CWB;

“CRS” means Crescent Ridge Services;

“CWCF” means the Canadian Worker Co-op Federation;

“CWB” means CWB Maxium Financial Inc., a subsidiary of Canadian Western Bank;
“DC” means direct current electricity;

“Debt Obligation” means a bond, debenture, note or other similar obligation of the Co-operative, whether
secured or unsecured;

“Director” means a member of the Board of Directors of CED Co-op and “Directors” shall mean more than
one of them;

“Economic Interest” means the proportion of a Project for which the Co-operative is responsible in terms of
costs and liabilities, and the portion of revenues to which it is entitled;

“Existing Investor” means a Person who holds Securities of the Co-operative, other than a Membership
Share;

“EV” means electric vehicle, including plug-in hybrid or full battery electric types of vehicles;

“Facility” means a Solar PV or other Renewable Energy Project owned in whole or in part by the Co-operative
and installed on a leased building or land, or on land owned by the Co-operative, and “Facilities” means more
than one of them;

“FCPC” means Federation of Community Power Co-operatives;

“FIT” means Feed-In Tariff, which is the name of the IESO’s program for the purchase of power and
connectivity to the Grid for Renewable Energy generators

“FIT Allocation” means the amount, in MW of contracts to be issued for applications submitted in a specific
FIT Application Window

“FIT Application Window” means a specific period during which the IESO accepts Applications;

“FIT Contract” means a FIT or microFIT contract executed with the IESO/OPA under the FIT Program, and
“FIT Contracts” means more than one of them;

“FIT Program” means the Renewable Energy FIT Program established by the IESO pursuant to the FIT Rules
and any prior or subsequent version of the FIT Rules;

“FIT Rules” means the FIT or microFIT rules and regulations published by the IESO which govern the process
that must be followed to apply for and receive a FIT Contract, and “FIT Rules and Regulations” shall have the
same meaning;

“FIT Standard Definitions” means the definitions used to apply and interpret the FIT Rules and the FIT
Contracts;
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“FSCO” means the Financial Services Commission of Ontario;
“FSRAO” means the Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario;

“GA” means Global Adjustment, the component of electricity costs that covers the cost of building new
electricity infrastructure in the province, maintaining existing resources, as well as providing conservation and
demand management programs;

“General Partner” or “GP” means the Person that controls and operates the Limited Partnership;

“GHG” means Green House Gasses, which are gasses that accumulate in the atmosphere and trap heat
within, generally including carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxides;

“Gowlings” means Gowling WLG (Canada) LLP law firm;

“Grid” means the electricity transmission or distribution networks’ power lines, controlled by Hydro One or
another LDC;

“GSM” means Guelph Solar Mechanical Inc,;

“HOEP” means Hourly Ontario Energy Price, the average of the twelve market clearing prices for electricity
setin each hour;

“Hydro One” means Hydro One Networks Inc,;

“HST” means harmonized sales tax pursuant to the Excise Tax Act (Canada) RSC, 1985, c.E-15, as amended
and successor legislation thereto;

“IESO” means Independent Electricity System Operator;

“IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards and the application of those standards as
determined by the International Accounting Standards Board;

“ller Campbell” means ller Campbell LLC law firm;

“Investor” means a Member or Non-Member who holds one more Securities of the Co-operative, and
“Investors” shall mean more than one of them;

“Installed Capacity” means the rated output (generally viewed to be the DC rating) in kW of the Solar Panels
installed in a Solar PV Facility;

“Joint Venture” or “JV” means a joint venture formed by contract in which the Co-operative holds an Interest
of between Fifteen percent (15%) and Fifty-One percent (51%), and which is formed by agreement between
the Co-operative and one or more Joint Venture Partners and “Joint Ventures” shall mean more than one of
them;

“Joint Venture Partner” means a party to a Joint Venture agreement to which the Co-operativeis also a
party, and “Joint Venture Partners” means more than one of them;

“KPMG” means KPMG LLP;
“kW” means instantaneous power measured in kilowatts (thousands of watts);

“kWh” means kilowatt hours, the unit of electrical power measured over time, i.e. electrical energy 1,000
watts of power sustained for 1 hour;

“LCOE"” means levelized cost of energy. This is the overall cost of energy per kWh over a set period,
calculated by taking all system costs (construction, operations and financing) and dividing by the number of
kWh produced.

”"LDC” means the Local Distribution Company, which, depending on the Project, will be Kitchener-Wilmot
Hydro, Cambridge North Dumfries Hydro, Waterloo North Hydro, Hydro One Networks, Guelph Hydro Electric
Systems, or a similar entity that owns and operates its own electrical distribution network, or an independent
utility that owns and operates its own electrical distribution network;

“Limited Partnerships” or “LPs” means the limited partnerships in which the Co-operative is a partner,
including SunSharel LP, SunShare2 LP, SunShare3 LP and SunShare4 LP;

“Member” means a natural person who holds an issued and outstanding Membership Share of the Co-
operative and “Members” shall mean more than one Member;
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“Membership Shares” means the Membership Shares of the Co-operative;

“microFIT” means the portion of the FIT Program for projects with a generating capacity of 10kW or less;
“microFIT” means the portion of the FIT Program for projects with a generating capacity of 10kW or less;
“MW” means instantaneous power measured in megawatts (millions of watts);

“MWh” means megawatt hours, the unit of electrical power measured over time, i.e. electrical energy of
1,000,000 watts of power sustained for 1 hour;

“Net-Meter” means an installation configuration where the solar generating facility is installed behind a bi-
directional meter, spinning the meter backward when producing more electricity than is being consumed, and
spinning forward when consuming more electricity than is being produced. Typically, surpluses in a month
can be carried forward as credits for a period of time to be applied against future consumption;

“New Investor” means a Person who, prior to investing under this Offering, holds no Securities of the Co-
operative other than a Membership Share;

“Non-Member” means a Person who holds Securities of the Co-operative other than a Membership Share;

“Notice to Proceed”, “NTP” means a Notice to Proceed received from the IESO, upon execution and delivery
of which a FIT Contract can no longer be terminated by the IESO for convenience;

“Offering” means the Membership Shares and Class C Preference Shares being offered pursuant to this
Offering Statement;

“Offering Statement” means this Offering Statement;
“Olympia Trust” means Olympia Trust Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of Olympia Financial Group Inc.

“Ontario Domestic Content” means the proportion of the Solar PV and ancillary equipment that is
manufactured in Ontario or Ontario labour that is used, as defined in the IESO’s FIT Rules and Regulations;

“OPA” means the “Ontario Power Authority”, merged with the IESO on January 1, 2015;

“Operating Company” or “OpCo” means a subsidiary wholly owned by the Co-operative, including 2117921
AlbertaInc,

“OSEA” means the Ontario Sustainable Energy Association;

“Participant” means a Person holding an Economic Interest in a Project and who has been identified as such
inan Application to the FIT Program;

“Person” is to be broadly interpreted and includes, without limitation, an individual, a couple, a partnership, a
trust, a corporation, an unincorporated organization, a Government of a country or political subdivision
thereof, or any agency or department of any such Government and the legal personal representative or
representatives of an individual;

“Portfolio” means all of the Co-operative’s Renewable Energy Facilities;
“PPA” means power purchase agreement;

“Preference Shares” means the Co-operative’s Class A Preference Shares, Class B Preference Shares or
Class C Preference Shares;

“Priority Points” mean points under the priority points system, as described in the FIT Rules and Regulations;

“Project” means the activities and tasks comprising the development and/or installation of a Facility ata
particular location, and "Projects" means more than one of them;

“Project Portfolio” means all of the Co-operative’s or Joint Venture’s Projects;

“Public Corporation” has the meaning ascribed to that termin the Tax Act;

“PV” means photovoltaic, the photovoltaic effect is a process by which sunlight is converted into electricity;
“QSBC” means Qualified Small Business Corporation;

“Qualifying Co-operative” means a Co-operative that qualifies for an Application to receive Priority Points, or
to be eligible to apply for the Community CCSA, under the FIT Program, pursuant to the FIT Rules, and is also
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known as a “Community Investment Member”, and “Qualifying Cooperatives” means more than one of
them;

“Registered Plan” means a RESP, RRSP, RRIF or TFSA;
“RESP” means registered education savings plan;

“Renewable Energy Co-operative” means a renewable energy co-operative as described in Section 3.2
hereof;

“Risk Factor” means one of the circumstances or events identified as a risk factor in Section 5 hereof and
“Risk Factors” shall mean more than one of them;

“RRIF” means registered retirement income fund;
“RRSP” means registered retirement savings plan;

“Security” means a Share or Debt Obligation of the Co-operative, and “Securities” shall mean more than one
of them;

“Security Holder” means a Member or Non-Member who holds one or more Securities of the Co-operative,
and “Security Holders” shall mean more than one of them;

“Shares” means the Co-operative’s Membership Shares and/or Preference Shares, and “Share” shall mean
one of them;

“Shareholder” means a Member or Non-Member who holds one or more Shares of the Co-operative, and
“Shareholders” shall mean more than one of them;

“Solar PV” means solar photovoltaic - see “PV”;

“Solar PV Facility” means all of the components and equipment needed to produce electricity from Solar PV
installed on an individual property covered under a Lease Agreement, and “Solar PV Facilities” shall mean
more than one of them;

“Supplier” means the Person identified as the Supplier on the FIT Contract;

“Sub-Entities” means the Limited Partnerships, Joint Ventures and Operating Companies in which the Co-
operative holds ownership;

“Sustainable” and “Sustainability” means the projects, processes and developments that seek to provide
human needs while reducing or eliminating environmental impacts in order to achieve long-term biosphere
and human civilization coexistence;

“Tax Act” means the Canada Income Tax Act (R.S.C., 1985, c. 1 (5th Supp.)) as amended and successor
legislation thereto;

“Tax Regulations” means the Canada Income Tax Regulations (C.R.C., c. 945) as amended and successor
regulations thereto;

“TFSA” means tax free savings account;

“VCT” means Vigor Clean Tech Inc.and VCT Group Inc,
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Name of Co-operative:
Date of Incorporation:
Ontario Corporation #:

Head Office Address:

Contact Particulars:

Banking:

Auditors:

Fiscal Year End:

Community Energy Development Co-operative Ltd.
October 31,2012
1851884

5 Forwell Rd.
Kitchener, ON N2B 1W3

Toll Free: 855-274-6890
Fax: 519-279-4631
Website: www.cedco-op.com
Email: info@cedco-op.com

Kindred Credit Union, Canadian Western Bank

KPMG LLP

120 Victoria Street South, Suite 600
Kitchener, ON N2G OE1

Phone: 519-747-8800

December 31

Registrar/Transfer Agent:

CED Co-op will act as its own registrar and transfer

agent in respect of the Securities offered for sale.

2. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Articles provide that CED Co-op may have a Board of Directors consisting of a minimum of three (3)
Directors, and a maximum of eleven (11) Directors. There are presently ten (10) Directors. The present
Directors and officers of CED Co-op are as follows:

Name

Title

Residence Address

Occupation

Alvin Doerksen

Board Chair, Director

166 Stonehaven Drive
Waterloo, ON N2L 6C5

Retired / Executive

Blair Groff Secretary, Director 645 Waterbury Lane Lawyer
Waterloo, ON N2V 2C4

Brian Unrau President, Director 3442 Huron Rd Accountant / Executive
New Hamburg, ON N3A 3C4

Christine Weber Treasurer, Director 91 Silver Aspen Cres Retired / CRA Auditor

Kitchener, ON N2N 1H5

Dale Brubacher-Cressman Director 58 Shephard Pl Engineer / Executive
New Hamburg, ON N3A 2E4

John Brubacher Director 2175 Andrew St Retired / Real Estate
Shakespeare, ON NOB 2P0

Martin Sellar Voll Director 284 Glenridge PI Executive
Waterloo, ON N2J 3Y2

Paul Hildebrand Director 28 Peter St Retired / Teacher
St. Clements, ON NOB 2MO

Ryan Parton Director 91 Hillsborough Cres Technologist/Executive
Kitchener, ON N2E 1J5

Steven Chomyc Director 182 Arkell Rd Engineer / Executive

Guelph, ON N1L 1E6
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3. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS OF CED CO-OP
3.1 OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

CED Co-op was incorporated in the Province of Ontario under the Co-op Act on October 31,2012. CED
Co-op was incorporated as a for-profit co-operative with share capital.

CED Co-op was formed in response to several market factors:
The Ontario FIT Program

The IESO developed the FIT Program for the Province of Ontario to encourage and promote greater use
of Renewable Energy in Ontario. The fundamental objective of the FIT Program, in conjunction with the
Green Energy and Green Economy Act and Ontario’s Long-Term Energy Plan, was to facilitate the
increased development of renewable energy generating facilities of varying sizes, technologies and
configurations via a standardized, open, and fair process.

FIT Program Focus on Community Ownership

Through the various versions of the FIT Program, there were several successive sets of rule changes, rate
changes, and changes in the mechanisms and processes for the award of contracts. Many of the changes
in the rules and the contract process increased the likelihood of receiving contracts for community
projects structured through co-operatives.

Challenging Economics for Small Projects

With changing program rates and the associated project economics, allowances for unexpected
installation or operating costs were largely eliminated in order to maintain positive returns, providing
economic advantages to larger projects that achieved economies of scale. In addition to increasing
economic challenges for smaller installations, residential Renewable Energy systems still represent an
ongoing challenge in completing the sale of a home while recouping the significant investment in the
Solar PV system.

Interest in Investment in Clean Energy

There remains growing interest in supporting clean energy and investing specifically in Renewable Energy
and Sustainability projects. This is evidenced by the fossil fuel divestment movement which calls upon
individuals and institutions to withdraw investments in companies that are involved in the extraction of
fossil fuels. Since its founding in 2011, the movement has grown to include more than 1,500 institutional
investors with over $40 trillion ($USD) in assets. For those that have already invested in a Renewable
Energy system on their property, the Co-operative is able to provide further investment opportunities.

For those that have not yet invested, the Co-operative offers partnership opportunities in the
development of projects.

Economic Development Model

With changing rates and rule sets, evolving technologies, and increased pressure on Project economics, it
was, and remains, difficult for an individual Project owner to fully inform themselves of the electricity
markets, the permitting and rules, the code and compliance requirements, and the technology in order to
design and construct an optimized, contracted, Renewable Energy Facility. Taking a portfolio approach to
project development allowed access to higher levels of development expertise and reduced risk.

It was out of the combination of these factors and in response to the market forces outlined above that
CED Co-op was formed.
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3.2 BUSINESS OF THE CO-OPERATIVE

CED Co-op was initially incorporated as a “Renewable Energy Co-operative” under the Co-op Act. The
main distinctions of a Renewable Energy Co-operative are based on the following:

A ‘regular’ co-operative in Ontario, prior to December 10, 2019, was required to conduct a
minimum of 50% of its business with its own members.

In the FIT/microFIT business model, there is no opportunity to do business with members on
either the supply side or the sales side.

Renewable Energy Co-operatives were created as a specific type of co-operative in 2009 with
the introduction of the legislation related to the FIT Program and the Green Energy and Green
Economy Act.

Renewable Energy Co-operatives are named in the Co-op Act and Co-op Regulations as exempt
from the ‘Member Business Rule’ so that they may participate in FIT/microFIT projects.

The distributions of Renewable Energy Co-operatives, according to the Co-op Act and
Regulations, are not considered ‘Patronage’. Rather, Renewable Energy Co-operatives distribute
surplus in accordance with their By-Laws and Articles.

Renewable Energy Co-operatives are required to restrict their business within their articles of
incorporation to the generation and sale of electricity from renewable sources.

In compliance with the Co-op Act, the following was previously stated in the Articles of the Co-operative
at the time of incorporation:

“SECTION 7. Restrictions, if any, on the business the Co-operative may carry on or on powers the
co-operative may exercise:

The Co-Operative is a renewable energy co-operative under the Co-Operative Corporations Act and,
as such, the business of the Co-Operative is restricted to:

i) Generating, within the meaning of the Electricity Act, 1998, electricity produced from one
or more sources that are renewable energy sources for the purposes of that Act; and
ii) Selling, as a generator within the meaning of that Act, electricity it produces from one or

more renewable energy sources.

Notwithstanding the above restrictions, as part of its business of generating and selling
electricity produced from one or more renewable energy sources, the Co-operative;

a) may establish or develop one or more generation facilities, within the meaning of the
Electricity Act, 1998, to generate electricity produced from one or more renewable
energy sources; and

b) may promote the purchase by electricity users of electricity produced from renewable
energy sources.”

On December 10, 2019, Bill 138, the Plan to Build Ontario Together Act, 2019, received royal assent. As
noted in the Bill, among other changes, co-operatives in Ontario are now no longer required to conduct a
minimum of 50% of their business with their own members, but rather an amount that each Co-operative
may define for itself, which can be zero.

Notwithstanding the ability for a Co-operative to set its minimum member business amount to zero,
further legislative changes and clarifications issued by the Ontario Energy Board and the Government of
Ontario around net-metering, third party ownership as well as community net-metering have created the
opportunity to do business with members and measure patronage within CED CO-op’s intended business
models, removing the remaining obstacles in removing the restrictions of a Renewable Energy Co-
operative.
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On December1, 2020, the Co-operative held a duly called Meeting of Members at which time a Special
Resolution was passed by the Members of the Co-operative to revise the Articles by deleting all text in
Section 7, thereby removing all restrictions on the business of CED Co-op.

At this same meeting, the Members also passed a resolution placing the following restrictions on the
business of the Co-operative in the By-Laws, rather than the Articles:

“2.6 RESTRICTIONS ON THE BUSINESS OF THE CO-OPERATIVE

The Co-operative is engaged in generating energy from solar and other renewable resources; in
supporting improvements in energy conservation and efficiency; and enabling the transition from
greenhouse gas and pollution emitting energy sources as part of sustainable development. As such,
the business of the Co-operative is restricted to:

a)

b)

d)

e)
f)

8)
h)

J)

Generating, transmitting and/or distributing electricity produced from one or more sources
that are renewable resources;

Generating and transferring thermal energy for heating and/or cooling from one or more
sources that are renewable resources such as solar, air-exchange, geo-exchange and
geothermal systems;

Production and distribution of fuels, such as bio-fuels or hydrogen, created from one or more
sources that are renewable resources;

Storage and re-transmission of thermal or electrical energy using batteries or other energy
storage systems and mechanisms;

Energy efficiency projects or facilities that substantially reduce energy consumption;

Fuel switching projects that substantially convert energy consumption from non-renewable to
renewable sources;

Electrical vehicle charging systems and hydrogen-based vehicle refilling stations;

Electric vehicles or hydrogen-based vehicles for commercial fleet, transportation or delivery
uses;

Research, experimentation and development of clean technologies or development of
systems and practices that support or improve clean technologies; and

Engaging in advocacy, marketing, construction, ownership, operation, sales and financing
activities that directly support and enable projects in the areas outlined above.

2.7 BUSINESS WITH MEMBERS

The Co-operative will seek to transact business directly with Members, however, the Co-operative
sets no minimum percentage threshold for an amount of business required to be conducted with
members. For clarity, the amount of business conducted with Non-Members may be up to 100%. ”

By including the language above in the By-Laws, requiring no specific minimum amount of business to be
conducted with Members, this has enabled CED Co-op to remain compliant with the Co-op Act and Co-op
Regulations while removing all restrictions on business from the articles. The removal of these
restrictions means that CED Co-op is no longer classified as a Renewable Energy Co-operative, now
simply a ‘regular’ co-operative. Further to compliance with the Co-op Act and Co-op Regulations, these
changes do not contravene any of the rules or requirements of the FIT Program and are compliant with all
of the FIT Contracts held by CED Co-op.

Without the implementation of these changes, it was uncertain as to whether there were any immediate
business opportunities or business models within which CED Co-op could engage. These changes add
certainty to the types of projects and business models that are allowable for CED Co-op. Among these
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expanded opportunities is the ability to develop business models that give rise to being able to conduct
business directly with members.

While there was no requirement for CED Co-op to follow up the removal of restrictions in the Articles with
the placement of restrictions in the By-Laws, CED Co-op chose to do so to help define the mission of the
Co-operative and provide guidance to the decision makers regarding the goals of CED Co-op.

3.3 VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

With the expansion of the business lines and business models now available to CED Co-op, minor
revisions have been made to the Vision and Mission of the organization, now reading as follows:

Vision
To provide superior returns on investments in renewable energy and sustainable development projects
through effective partnerships between community and industry.

Mission
To make a positive impact on the energy industry and sustainable technologies in Ontario and beyond,
providing stakeholder education, clean energy, and community participation.

Values
As a co-operative, CED Co-op is guided by the 7 Co-operative Principles.

Voluntary and Open Membership
Democratic Member Control
Member Economic Participation
Autonomy and Independence
Education, Training, Information
Co-operation Among Co-operatives
Concern for Community

O O O O O O O

As a developer of clean energy and sustainable projects, CED Co-op is guided by the principles of socially
responsible investment.

Community Investment

Environmental Stewardship

Social Justice

Transparency in Corporate Governance
Sustainable Business Planning

O O O O O

3.4 MEMBERSHIP REQUIREMENTS AND SURPLUS

CED Co-op continues to qualify, notwithstanding the change to no longer be classified as a Renewable
Energy Co-operative, as a Community Investment Member under the rules of the FIT Program. Though
the Co-op Act does allow individuals, corporations, co-operatives, and other entities to become members
in a co-operative, the FIT Rules require that Community Investment Member co-operatives only allow
members who are natural persons who ordinarily reside in Ontario.

As of December 31, 2022, CED Co-op has 810 Members, all of whom meet these criteria.

3.4.1. Membership Requirements
In compliance with the FIT Rules and the Co-op Act, Membership Shares of CED Co-op can only be
purchased by natural persons who are at a minimum age of 16 years old. Any individuals who meet the
criteria outlined above and who also support the values of CED Co-op are eligible to apply for membership

and purchase a single Membership Share at a par value of $10. A member may purchase a maximum of
one Membership Share. Because this represents a purchase of a Security, CED Co-op will need to
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maintain information about Members for tax and reporting purposes, including, but not limited to, Social
Insurance Numbers.

To sustain qualification as a Community Investment Member, CED Co-op needs to maintain a minimum of
50 Members of the Co-operative who are landowners in each region in which the Co-operative has
Community Participation Projects. These landowners must have continuously owned property for a
period of two years prior to the Application date or other qualifying date. An individual who does not own
property, or has not owned property for two years, can still become a Member of the Co-operative, but
would not immediately count towards maintaining Community Investment Member status.

For the purposes of maintaining 50 landowner Members within a region, the FIT Rules allow for the area
to be defined as the upper tier municipality, if there are two tiers, or the municipality itself if it is a single
tier. The following are the regions in which CED Co-op currently qualifies as a Community Investment
Member and currently intends to continue to qualify:

Qualifying Landowner
Upper or Single Tier | Lower Tiers, if applicable Members of CED Co-op
as at Dec. 31,2022
City of Guelph n/a 73
Greater Sudbury n/a 72
Area
Regional City of Cambridge, City of Kitchener, City of Waterloo, Township of
Municipality of North Dumfries, Township of Wellesley, Township of Wilmot, 319
Waterloo Township of Woolwich
Township of Centre Wellington, Town of Erin, Township of
Wellington County |Guelph/Eramosa, Township of Mapleton, Town of Minto, Township 68
of Puslinch, Township of Wellington North

If CED Co-op loses its status as a Community Investment Member due to the number of qualifying
Members dropping below 50 for a region, in accordance with the FIT Rules, the Co-operative is given a 6-
month cure period to bring qualifying membership levels back above 50 for the region or to sell the Co-
operative’s interest in the Projects in that region to another qualifying Community Investment Member. If
the Co-operative is not able to do so, then FIT Contracts which rely on Community Investment Member
status are at risk of cancellation. This is a Risk Factor identified in Section 5: Risk Factors - Community
Investment Members Status.

3.4.2. Acceptance

All memberships must be approved by the Board of CED Co-op. If the membership application is not
approved by the Board, any payment received with the application will be returned or refunded, without
interest, to the applicant.

3.4.3. Rights of Membership

All Members are entitled to participate in guiding the operations of CED Co-op through attending and
voting at meetings of Members. Each Member shall be entitled to one vote, regardless of the quantity or
amount of any other Securities of CED Co-op held by the Member.

A Member in good standing is also eligible to stand for any elected office in CED Co-op. To remain in good
standing, a Member must abide by the By-Laws of CED Co-op and any other policies CED Co-op may
establish from time to time pursuant to the By-Laws.

3.4.4. Obligations of Membership

A Member is not required to attend meetings, vote, or make any further purchase from or investments in
CED Co-op. The Co-operative will need to maintain property ownership records for Members as it relates
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to maintaining Community Investment Member status. CED Co-op will be encouraging Members to
promptly supply changes of address and changes in property ownership status.

3.4.5. Rights of Non-Members

Because of the restriction the FIT Rules place on membership, CED Co-op will allow Non-Members to
purchase Securities other than Membership Shares. Non-Members must first receive approval from the
Board before purchasing any Securities. Non-Members are not eligible to vote on matters of CED Co-op
at meetings of Members, unless there are decisions being made that affect a Class of Shares or Bonds
Series that are held by the Non-Member.

3.4.6. Transfer of Membership

Membership in CED Co-op shall not be transferable unless authorized by the Board. This restriction on
the liquidity of Membership Shares is identified as a Risk Factor in Section 5: Risk Factors - Financial -
Market for Securities.

3.4.7. Termination of Membership

Membership in CED Co-op shall terminate upon the withdrawal of the Member from the Co-operative, on
the expulsion of the Member from the Co-operative, on the death of the Member, or by a resolution
passed by the Board pursuant to the procedures outlined in the Co-op Act. However, the Co-op Act
prohibits the redemption of the Shares of the Co-operative if CED Co-op is or would be, as a result of such
redemption, insolvent or if such repurchase would, in the opinion of the Board, be detrimental to the
financial stability of CED Co-op. If the withdrawal of a Membership puts at risk the qualification of CED
Co-op as a Community Investment Member, the Board may choose to not redeem Membership Shares in
certain circumstances of Membership withdrawal. This restriction on the liquidity of Membership Shares
is identified as a Risk Factor in Section 5: Risk Factors - Financial - No Sinking Fund or Reserve. Should
the Board approve the termination of a Membership, this is subject to a $10 administration fee.

3.5 SURPLUS AND DISTRIBUTION
3.5.1. Distribution and Patronage

In removing the restrictions of being a Renewable Energy Co-operative, CED Co-op is able to begin
conducting business with members, as outlined in Section 3.6.5. In conducting and measuring the
amount of business conducted with individual members, CED Co-op is able to begin distributing
according to patronage. The distribution of Surplus by the Co-operative is outlined in greater detail in
Section 3.5.2 below.

3.5.2. Surplus and Distributions

The ability of CED Co-op to make distributions is dependent upon the surplus earned from operations
after paying expenses including, but not limited to, insurance, maintenance, lease payments,
administration, and debt financing. For clarity, any interest or principal payments due to Bondholders in
order to redeem the Bonds of CED Co-op would be paid ahead of the calculation of any Surplus.

The Board, after paying expenses and making proper allowance for depreciation, shall apportion the
Surplus arising from the yearly business of the Co-operative in any or all of the following ways:

(@) by setting aside reserves in such amounts as the Board deems advisable for such purpose or
purposes that are deemed to be conducive to the interests of the Co-operative or its Members,
which sum may be invested, dealt with and disposed of for the benefit of the Co-operative as the
Board determines from time to time;

(b) before any distribution of the Surplus remaining after allocation to the reserve fund outlined in
paragraph (a) above, for the payment of dividends on the Shares of the Co-operative; and
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(c) subject to the Co-op Act and paragraphs (a) and (b) above, by paying in cash to Members the
balance of the Surplus or such portion thereof as may be determined by the Board from time to
time, in proportion to the patronage of each member.

3.6 INDUSTRY, OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS MODELS

While CED Co-op has expanded its allowable business lines, the Co-operative remains focused on
renewable energy, energy efficiency and the industries and business models that support and enable
projects in these areas.

3.6.1. Industry - Renewable Energy and Sustainable Development

Renewable Energy is generally defined as energy that comes from resources which are naturally
replenished on a human timescale such as sunlight, wind, rain, tides, waves, biomass, biogas, and
geothermal heat. Renewable Energy replaces conventional fuels in three main areas: electricity
generation, heat generation or air/geo-exchange (thermal heating and cooling) and combustible fuels.

Sustainable development is well defined by the 17 development goals in the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable
Development as put forward by the United Nations. This agenda is a plan of action for people, planet, and
prosperity. The specific goals towards which CED Co-op seeks to make an impact are as follows:

Primary Objective:

Goal 7 - Ensure access to affordable, reliable, sustainable, and modern energy for all - CED Co-op intends
to contribute to cost effective and reliable renewable energy generation.

Secondary Objectives:

Goal 9 - Build resilient infrastructure, promote inclusive and sustainable industrialization and foster
innovation - CED Co-op intends to contribute to resiliency through distributed energy generation, and
distributed energy resources.

Goal 11 - Make cities and human settlements inclusive, safe, resilient, and sustainable - CED Co-op
intends to contribute to reductions in air pollution through clean energy generation, energy conservation
projects, development of energy efficient facilities, and enabling electrification of transportation.

Goal 12 - Ensure sustainable consumption and production patterns - CED Co-op intends to contribute to
energy efficiency, reductions in energy consumption, and reducing waste in the development of projects.

In 2005, the Ontario Medical Association estimated the cost of pollution to the Ontario economy at $16
billion annually. Prior to shutting down coal fired electricity generation in Ontario, in 2003 the province
recorded 53 smog days. Through the efforts and accomplishments of the Green Energy and Green
Economy Act and the results of the FIT Program, the last coal fired electricity generating plant in Ontario
was shut down in 2014. From 2015 onward, there have been only 4 days with smog and air health
advisories in total, the last of which occurred in 2019, with none in the past 3 years ended 2022. This
shows that electricity production in Ontario has been largely transitioned to non-emitting sources.

However, in the annual planning outlook and pathways to decarbonization documents, released by the
IESO in December 2022, it was noted that the demand for electricity in Ontario is forecast to rise at rates
much higher than previously forecast, and even faster than it forecast just 1 year ago. From the peak of
energy usage in Ontario in 2005 (157 TWh), overall electricity usage in 2022 (138 TWh) was 13% lower
while the population has increased 21%. It should be noted that embedded generation, largely from solar
projects, is not included in the overall energy demand numbers, which would make a more comparable
number approximately 145 TWh.

Reversing this trend, electricity usage is forecast to increase by 42% over the next 10 years to 196 TWhin
2033. Thisis an increase from the prior year’s forecast where the IESO was calling for 170 TWhin 2033.
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The electrification trend is gaining momentum. With this, the IESO identifies that significant energy
demand will be emerging in the middle and latter part of this decade that cannot be satisfied with existing
resources alone. The IESO forecasts that, within the next few years, natural gas generating stations will
dramatically increase their running time. Whereas in 2017, fossil fuel sources made up only 4% of
Ontario’s energy generation, it is expected to be 24% by 2026. The current plan for Ontario calls for
emissions from energy generation to increase to levels 6 times that of 2017. CED Co-op will continue to
work towards ensuring that as much of the needed generating capacity as possible comes from
renewable sources rather than increasing use of natural gas.

Expanding beyond electricity generation, CED Co-op is now exploring other means of reducing carbon
and GHG emissions. The following shows the breakdown of sources of emissions in Ontario:

2020 Ontario GHG Emissions - Tonnes (149,124 T)
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As noted above, the electricity sector in Ontario only represented 2.5% of emissions in 2020, with the
biggest areas of potential impact being in transportation, manufacturing & industry, and buildings. In
addition to renewable energy generation projects, CED Co-op will also be seeking out projects that
reduce energy consumption and reduce carbon and GHG emissions in the transportation sector, in
industry operations and in the operations of buildings.

3.6.2. Co-operative Operations
CED Co-op operates on “co-operative basis” by:
providing each Member with only one vote

)
) not allowing voting by proxy;

) operating the enterprise as nearly as possible to cost after providing for reasonable reserves;
)

)

O 0 o

selling Securities to Members (and upon receipt of the Offering Statement, to Non-Members also);
investing the proceeds in direct ownership and operation of a portfolio of renewable energy
generating Projects, energy efficiency Projects, and other sustainable development initiatives;

f) retaining only Members as Directors of the Co-operative;

g) viathe Board, engaging Members in the operations of the organization as well as the technical
operations of the projects;
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h) maintaining continuous and direct reporting to all members regarding performance of all projects
via the website of CED Co-op as well as annual reports; and

i) distributing the Surplus arising from the business of CED Co-op as detailed in Section 3.5.2,
including the potential for patronage distributions.

3.6.3. Business Models - FIT and microFIT Contracts

A general schematic of how a FIT or microFIT project is constructed and operates is as follows:

e AFIT/microFIT solar installation is constructed and connected to a new electrical panel, behind a
new electrical (generation) meter from the grid standpoint.

e The solarinstallation produces power, and all of the power is sent out through the new generation
meter at which point it hits the grid.

e The FIT/microFIT contract holder gets paid for all the energy produced by the system.

e Like waterin apipe, alot of the green electricity from the FIT/microFIT system will flow into the
existing building through the existing load meter and used onsite.

e The bill for the usage onsite remains unchanged, paying for the power that is consumed onsite.

e |fthereis not enough load behind the existing load meter to use all of the energy generated by the
solar installation, it is instead sent up the street to be used by the neighbours.

From the point of incorporation through to the end of 2018, CED Co-op was focused on developing or
acquiring Renewable Energy Projects under the FIT Program. CED Co-op continues to operate these
projects, selling electricity to the Grid under FIT Contracts. As of December 31,2022, CED Co-opis an
owner or a partner in 29 operational FIT Projects, as well as the sole owner of a portfolio of 86 microFIT
projects.
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Risks

Though no more projects of this type are anticipated to be developed going forward, there remain a
number of risks associated with this general operating structure, including, but not limited to the
following. Each of these is described in detail in Section 5: Risk Factors.

Business Prospects - No Guarantee of Projects
Business Prospects - Performance of Third Parties

FIT Contracts - Community Investment Member Status
FIT Contracts - Contract Risk

FIT Contracts - Domestic Content

FIT Contracts - Government and Regulatory

System/ Facility - Equipment Failures

System/ Facility - Lease Agreements

System/ Facility - Roof, Project Area, or Parking Lot Issues
System/ Facility - Structural Damage Upon Installation
System/ Facility - Weather Variations and Snow Cover

See Section 4.3: FIT Program for further details of the FIT Program, cancellation of contracts and the
repeal of the Green Energy and Green Economy Act.

The development of the portfolio of projects has resulted in a number of legal and ownership structures
including JVs, LPs, and OpCos. The organization and ownership structure for the projects that have been
developed or acquired and operate in the FIT/microFIT business model is shown in the following
diagrams:
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3.6.4.

Business Models - Net-Metering

The base model for ongoing solar project development in Ontario is called Net-Metering. As regulations

evolve,
evolve.

various business structures and models based on this underlying structure are continuing to

A Net-Metering solar installation is constructed and connected to an existing electrical panel on
the site, ‘behind’ the existing electrical meter from the grid standpoint.

Part of this process ensures that the meter on site is a bi-directional meter.

The solar installation produces power, and this power is first used on site by the loads within the
building or on the site.

If there is surplus energy, this electricity is exported to the grid, and the bi-directional meter spins
backwards, building up credits.

When the building is using more power than the solar installation is producing, the building brings
in power from the grid, spinning the meter forward, using up credits (if they exist).

If, at the end of the month, there has been more overall energy exported rather than imported, the
result is a credit for the month on your bill. This credit can be carried forward and usedina
subsequent month.

Within each 12-month period, if the credits are not used up, they are zeroed out for no dollar value.
For this reason, it is important to size a system in line with the amount of energy the building uses
over the course of the year.

In this structure, the Co-op would generate energy on site and sell the power to the building owner
or tenant within the building, using revenue grade sub-metering systems to measure and bill for
the energy produced on site.
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The rules, guidelines and procedures for these transactions are outlined in a Net-Meter contract that is
signed with the LDC. Through the recently expanded business scope of CED Co-op, various structures
are enabled to support Net-Meter solar installations. CED Co-op is in discussions with several building
owners regarding the potential for CED Co-op to develop a solar installation on the property and provide
clean energy to the building owner.

In order to achieve or exceed targeted returns, the Co-operative will need to successfully negotiate
agreements with facility occupants under a power purchase agreement which binds the facility occupant
to buying all of the energy that is produced by the net-meter system. The broad aspects of a power
purchase agreement contract for negotiation are outlined below, and may vary materially from the details
presented here:

Common Details

e CED Co-op to fund [all, or a portion of, depending on site economics] project costs, including
Connection Cost Agreement with LDC,

e CED Co-op to fund all maintenance, repairs and monitoring of the solar installation,

e CED Co-op bears the risk and operations of production of the solar PV system (if the system
doesn’t produce energy as expected, the facility occupant simply buys more from the grid and
CED Co-op earns less revenue),

e CED Co-op to maintain insurance - Property and Liability

CED Co-op to lease project areas of property for nominal “consideration” (e.g. $2) throughout the

term

Notice of lease to be registered on title

System ownership transfers to building owner at end of terms for nominal “consideration” (e.g. $2)

CED Co-op to retain ownership and title to all system equipment until end of terms or buyout

Buyout option on the anniversary date of commercial operation each year after 5 full years of

operation have been completed

e Buyout schedule calculated at an NPV rate of forecast savings equating to a similar starting value
as purchase price

e Termof [TBD, pending project economics] Years, typically 25 for rooftop, 40 for carport

e Cost of removals and replacements to facilitate roof, building or site repairs, if needed, to be
shared between facility occupant and CED Co-op

e Power Purchase Agreement for electricity priced at a prescribed rate throughout the term, with
escalation factors through the term specified at the time of the signing of the agreement

Other typical terms

Facility occupant retains LDC account/metering and pays directly

Facility occupant to realize Demand savings

Facility occupant to bear any costs of “stand-by charges”

CED to retain value of Carbon Offset Credits (if any)

CED to retain value of any tax credits or financial incentives

Facility occupant to realize Snow-Clearing savings (for solar canopies and carports)
Facility occupant to realize benefits of parking revenues

Facility occupant to realize savings of installation of EV Charging systems

Facility occupant to realize revenues from EV Charging systems

Security and Financial Evaluation

e CED Co-op may seek, where feasible, to have a mortgage registration on property to the value of
the system - CED Co-op cannot guarantee that it will be able to register a mortgage on the title of
the property, and if it is able to, this registration may not be in priority to any or all other
registrations;

Page | 26



e CED Co-op may seek, where feasible, to sign and register a general security agreement or lien on
the facility occupant - CED Co-op cannot guarantee that it will be able to sign and register a
general security agreement, and if it is able to, this registration may not be in priority to any or all
other registrations;

e CED Co-op anticipates that it will seek to review, prior to entering into a contract, and periodically
thereafter:

o Title Search on the property

o Credit bureau report on the facility occupant / counter party

o PPSA lien registration search on facility occupant / counter party

o Annual financial statements of the facility occupant / counter party

Risks

There are a number of risks associated with this general operating structure, including, but not limited to
the following. Each of these is described in detail in Section 5: Risk Factors.

Business Prospects - No Guarantee of Projects

Net-Meter - Electricity Market Pricing

Net-Meter - Use of electricity produced on site

Net-Meter - Market Structure Changes / Other Regulatory
System/ Facility - Equipment Failures

System/ Facility - Roof, Project Area, or Parking Lot Issues
System/ Facility - Weather Variations and Snow Cover

3.6.5. Business Models - Virtual Net-Metering and Community Net-Metering

As Net-Metering is being expanded in the Ontario market, there are a number of regulatory changes that
have been implemented and more that are in the discussion stages for future implementation. In the
coming years, regulations are expected to continue to develop to enable a concept called ‘Virtual Net-
Metering’ which would enable surplus credits to be traded and transferred to other meters and locations
which will alleviate this sizing constraint. The creation of this market for trading electricity credits could
further give individual electricity consumers much more power and choice in virtually sourcing their
energy through purchasing generation credits from companies and technologies that they like and trust.
This could further give rise to price competition, both amongst individuals and organizations that
generate surplus energy credits for sale as well as competition with the current grid suppliers.

New regulations have been announced that are already moving in this direction. Under a proposed
structure called community-based net-metering, the Co-operative could develop a solar installation, with
surplus energy credits able to be transferred to other meters or account holders within a ‘community’. A
potential structure for this is outlined as per below. It is through this business model, and other business
models similar to this that are anticipated to develop, that CED Co-op is able to begin to conduct business
with Members.
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Example Scenario

CED Co-op would develop and fund a large solar PV installation on a rooftop or series of rooftops
such as that of an industrial complex, commercial complex or condominium complex where the
electricity consumed behind any given meter is much less than the amount of energy that can be
generated from the rooftop.

The Facility would generate significant surplus net-meter credits at the existing meter on the site.
As a multi-tenant area, the electricity would largely be used by neighbouring units, rarely needing
any significant transmission out of the complex area.

Through partnership with the LDC, the surplus credits could be divided and distributed to be
applied virtually to the meters/ accounts of as many as are needed - participating community
consumers.

These participating community consumers, who may be eligible to become Members of CED co-
op, would realize reductions in their bills as these credits are applied to their accounts, and at the
same time, make payments to CED Co-op in proportion to the net-meter credits received. In this
process CED Co-op could be transacting business with Members.

Because there are significant economies of scale realized at larger solar installations, the power
produced through the large-scale solar PV installation is able to be produced at or below the grid
rate without the requirement of any grants or government funding.

This provides the following benefits:

o Underutilized rooftop space is used to generate clean energy. The shading of the rooftop
provides reductions in air conditioning loads during the summer, providing a small
additional benefit.

o Energyis produced very near to where it is consumed with similar generation/demand
profiles, providing all of the benefits of distributed energy resources.

o Thelnvestor-Members of the Co-operative are able to fund an efficient solar PV project
and potentially realize a competitive return on investment.

o The consumer-Members of the Co-operative are able to purchase clean energy from their
own Co-operative for the same price as from the grid, or possibly below the price from the
grid.



CED is working on developing project opportunities to take advantage of this new structure. In order for a
project such as this to proceed, an application and approval process is required in order to be approved as
a community net-meter project.

Risks

There are a number of risks associated with this general operating structure, including, but not limited to
the following. Each of these is described in detail in Section 5: Risk Factors.

Business Prospects - No Guarantee of Projects
Net-Meter - Electricity Market Pricing

Net-Meter - Market Structure Changes / Other Regulatory
System/ Facility - Equipment Failures

System/ Facility - Roof, Project Area, or Parking Lot Issues
System/ Facility - Weather Variations and Snow Cover

3.6.6. Business Models - Carbon Pricing and Carbon Offset Credits

In accordance with agreements made at United Nations climate conferences, countries around the world
are implementing carbon pricing. Canada has mandated carbon pricing in line with international
recommendations, with the price per tonne of carbon emissions being set at $65 for 2023, and climbing
at $15/tonne per year until it reaches $170/tonne in 2030. The current implementation of carbon pricing
in the Province leaves little room for engagement for individuals and small or medium sized business. A
company needs to emit 50,000 tonnes of carbon annually before it must participate in the Provincial
program, though can optionally participate at 10,000 tonnes. This provides most households and
businesses little opportunity to monetize the carbon reduction benefits of their actions in the provincial
carbon pricing program or carbon offset credit markets.

The terms carbon offset and carbon offset credit are used interchangeably, though they can mean slightly
different things. A carbon offset broadly refers to a reduction in GHG emissions - or an increase in carbon
storage (e.g., through land restoration or the planting of trees) - that is used to compensate for emissions
that occur elsewhere. A carbon offset credit is a transferable instrument certified by governments or
independent certification bodies to represent an emission reduction of one metric tonne of carbon
dioxide, or an equivalent amount of other GHGs. The purchaser of an offset credit can “retire” it to claim
the underlying reduction towards their own GHG reduction goals.

The carbon offset credit lifecycle is as follows:
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1. Methodology Development
Before any GHG reductions can be certified for use as carbon offsets, they must be shown to meet
carbon offset quality criteria. This process requires a methodology or protocol that is specific to the
type of offset project generating the reductions.

2. Project Development, Validation, and Registration
An offset project is desighed by project developers, financed by investors or project owners such as
CED Co-op, validated by an independent verifier, and registered with a carbon offset program. Official
“registration” indicates that the project has been approved by the program and is eligible to start
generating carbon offset credits after it begins operation.

3. Project Implementation, Verification, and Offset Credit Issuance
An offset project is implemented, then monitored and periodically verified to determine the quantity
of emission reductions it has generated. The length of time between verifications can vary, though it
is typically one year. A carbon offset program approves verification reports, and then issues a number
of carbon offset credits equal to the quantity of verified CO2-equivalent GHG reductions.

4. Offset Credit Transfer and Trading
After they are issued, carbon offset credits can be transferred into different accounts in an offset
program’s registry. Transfers are usually undertaken as a result of a purchase or trade. Offset credit
buyers may then use the offset credits by retiring them or transferring them to other accounts. Offset
credits may change hands multiple times before they are ultimately retired and used.

5. Offset Credit Retirement
Offset credit holders must “retire” carbon offset credits in order to use them and claim their
associated GHG reductions towards a GHG reduction goal. Retirement occurs according to a process
specified by each carbon offset program’s registry. Once an offset credit is retired, it cannot be
transferred or used, meaning it is effectively taken out of circulation.

In principle, carbon offset credits offer a convenient and cost-effective way to reduce GHG emissions.
Often, this means offset credits are used to compensate for (or “offset”) an organization’s GHG emissions,
in lieu of reducing those emissions directly. For example, since most organizations find it impractical to
completely eliminate their carbon footprint using only internal measures, carbon offsets offer the only
practical way to claim “carbon neutrality.”

CED Co-op is currently exploring processes and methodologies to aggregate, register and validate solar
net-metering projects, and potentially other projects, for the purposes of generating carbon offset credits
for sale into the markets.

For Ontario, our methodology is briefly as follows:

1. Gather electricity generation data on an hourly interval basis, outlined by fuel type, as published by
the Ontario grid operator,

2. Analyze the energy generation data to determine the hours in which fossil fuel generation is

occurring, and could be reduced,

Calculate the marginal emissions factors for carbon emitting generators,

Gather energy production data from solar installations on an hourly interval basis,

Compare kWh energy production from solar PV systems to calculate the marginal emissions

reductions for corresponding hours,

6. Verify this data with third party evaluators, for registration in a carbon market registry.

ok w

There are two distinct markets that exist for carbon offset credits, those being “Compliance” carbon
offset programs and “Voluntary” carbon offset programs. Historically, governmental bodies certified
offset credits for regulatory purposes under compliance programs while non-governmental organizations
primarily served voluntary programs. More recently, both governmental and non-governmental
organizations have begun to serve both types of carbon offset programs. Each carbon offset program
issues its own labelled “brand” of credit.
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A couple of examples of compliance and voluntary programs are as follows:

The California Compliance Offset Program operates under the California Cap-and-Trade program but
covers much of the United States. Ontario, at one point, was partnered into this Cap-and-Trade program,
along with Quebec, which further broadened its reach into parts of Canada. Ontario was withdrawn from
this Cap-and-Trade program in 2018 with the change in governments.

The Alberta Emission Offset Program (compliance) was started more than 20 years ago. It is restricted in
operations and projects to Alberta. The registry of offsets for this program is operated by the CSA Group.

The CSA Group also operates a voluntary registry called the GHG CleanProjects Registry. Thisis a
registry that is available for projects that meet the ISO 14064 series of standards. Projects from around
the world are eligible to be registered on this registry.

As CED Co-op develops projects, it is possible that the Co-operative may seek to register projects and
offsets with both voluntary and compliance-based registries such as those outlined above. Typically, the
value or price of a carbon offset credit is defined and therefore higher and more stable in compliance-
based programs. The value or price of carbon offset credits in the voluntary market is more volatile, and
subject to market forces. Should CED Co-op engage in the development of carbon offset credits, it will
seek to engage with compliance-based registries where possible, though will more likely need to
participate in the voluntary markets for most projects and carbon offset credits.

In establishing the value or price of carbon offsets in voluntary markets, the pricing generally follows the
perceived quality of the offset. The central idea behind a carbon offset is that it can substitute for GHG
emission reductions that an organization would have made on its own. For this to be true, the world must
be at least as well off when a carbon offset credit is used and retired by an entity as it would have been if
the entity had reduced its own carbon footprint. The “quality” of a carbon offset credit therefore reflects
the level of confidence one can have that the use of the credit will fulfil this basic principle.

A variety of terms are frequently used to define quality criteria for carbon offsets, including that
associated GHG reductions must be evaluated against certain criteria as follows:

1. Additionality
GHG reductions are additional if they would not have occurred in the absence of a market for offset
credits. If the reductions would have happened anyway - i.e., without any prospect for project owners
to sell carbon offset credits - then they are not additional.

2. Quantifiability and Verifiability
If the quantity of emissions reduced or carbon sequestered can't be measured with some degree of
reliability and accuracy, there is no way to award offset credits. Further, if the same credit can be
issued multiple times or sold to multiple entities, it is not a ‘quality’ offset.

3. Permanence
Sequestration or reduction projects need to ensure that emissions are kept out of the atmosphere for
areasonable and meaningful length of time. For example, carbon is drawn into and locked within a
tree only as long as the tree is green and growing. Once it starts to decay, its carbon goes back into
the atmosphere.

4. Leakage
Leakage occurs when emissions are not truly reduced. The emissions can't just be moved somewhere
else. For example, it's possible for companies to reduce their own emissions by outsourcing high-
emission production to another country or region, but this does not reduce on a net basis.

5. Social and Environmental Harms
For a project to produce high quality offset credits, it should not significantly contribute to social and
environmental harms. For example, a project should demonstrate that it complies with all legal
requirements in the jurisdiction where it is located.
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Risks

There are a number of risks associated with the development and sale of carbon offset credits, including,
but not limited to the following. Each of these is described in detail in Section 5: Risk Factors.

Business Prospects - No Guarantee of Projects

Carbon Offsets - Carbon Market Pricing

Carbon Offsets - Market Structure Changes / Other Regulatory
Carbon Offsets - Validation and Verification of Credits
System/ Facility - Equipment Failures

System/ Facility - Market Risks

System/ Facility - Roof, Project Area, or Parking Lot Issues
System/ Facility - Weather Variations and Snow Cover

3.6.7. Business Models - Energy Efficient Fleets, Buildings and Building Systems

As indicated by the figure in Section 3.6.1, road transportation contributes 27% and buildings contribute
22% of Ontario’s GHG emissions. CED Co-op is actively considering investments that would reduce GHG
emissions in buildings and transportation systems. Such investments may include ownership of specific
equipment, building efficiency or energy sub-systems, or an equity position in assets or properties with
buildings or equipment that meet certain energy efficiency targets.

Efficiency projects may include:

High efficiency ground-source geothermal (geo-exchange) heating and cooling systems
Air-source heat pump based heating and cooling systems

Smart energy, LED lighting and building management systems

Level 2 or Level 3 EV charging stations or systems

Business or operating models may include:

e Financing arrangements with fixed or variable terms and interest rates

e Compensation based on energy reductions at either fixed or variable rates

e Sale of power or energy at either fixed or variable rates

e Sale of services based on the duration or time period in which they are used
Risks

The operation or financing of these projects or systems may include elements of Section 3.6.4 and
Section 3.6.5. There are a number of risks associated with this general operating structure, including, but
not limited to the following. Each of these is described in detail in Section 5: Risk Factors.

e Business Prospects - No Guarantee of Projects
e System/ Facility - Equipment Failures
o System/ Facility - Market Risks

3.6.8. Business Models - Other Project Types and Technologies

CED Co-op has been focused on developing Solar PV projects, however, CED Co-op will review other
opportunities and technologies to continue to grow the project portfolio and create new investment
opportunities for members under the expanded scope of project options. As other technologies and
opportunities are evaluated, the Board will continue to ensure that investment objectives are maintained,
and that the appropriate expertise is obtained for the evaluation.

3.6.9. Operating Models - Member Investments

CED Co-op has taken a portfolio approach to matching investments with projects. As such, aninvestment
in any security of CED Co-op is backed by all of CED Co-op’s ownership in the entire portfolio of Projects.
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The Securities available through this Offering will receive this same benefit, as outlined in the graphic
below.

While all currently operating projects and all currently contemplated new projects are intended to provide
the returns for the Securities available through this Offering, CED Co-op reserves the right to make a
different offering at some point in the future where the securities available under the subsequent offering
may have specific returns tied to specific future projects and the returns from those future projects may
not be made available for the Securities that are offered through this Offering.

3.7 INDUSTRY MEMBERSHIPS

CED Co-op benefits from being an active member in the Ontario Co-operatives Association (ON Co-op),
and the Canadian Worker Co-op Federation (CWCF). These industry groups work together to help grow
the profile of Co-operatives in Ontario and Canada.

3.8 INSURANCE

CED Co-op maintains Commercial General Liability insurance for its property and project operations
through BFL Canada insurance brokers with the policies issued by RSA Insurance Group. CED Co-op
holds Directors & Officers insurance through Victor Canada. It is expected that the constructors of the
Projects will maintain insurance for the Projects and properties during the construction stage prior to
reaching Commercial Operation.
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3.9 REALESTATE

CED Co-op does not currently own any real estate, either directly or through any of its JVs or LPs. CED
Co-op has entered into Lease Agreements for the purpose of developing FIT Projects. The operations of
CED Co-op are currently managed through the offices of VCT, and CED Co-op does not hold a separate
lease for office space at this time.

Leases for FIT Project Development

The following is a summary of the leases with the owners of the properties where FIT or microFIT
Projects are being operated to which CED Co-op or its Sub-Entities are a party. The purpose of each
Lease Agreement is to permit CED Co-op or its Sub-Entities to install and operate Solar PV Systems on
the Property Owners’ land or buildings. A separate Lease Agreement has been entered in to by CED Co-
op or its Sub-Entities with the Property Owner for each Project or property.

CED Co-op and its Sub-Entities have, at this time, entered into or acquired the rights under 117 Leases
with Property Owners. In a number of cases, the property owner is also a JV or LP partner.

The following is a summary of the material terms and conditions of the Lease Agreements:

(@) Thelegal description of the property

(b) Theterm of the Lease Agreement. The Lease Agreement is for twenty years for Solar PV energy
Projects to coincide with the duration of the term of the FIT Contract, plus an estimate of the time
taken to apply for the FIT Contract and bring the Project to Commercial Operation. This additional
time could be up to 4 years.

(c) Accesstothe Property for the purposes of installation, maintenance, repair and decommissioning
of the Project.

(d) Confirmation of tenant’s (CED Co-op or JV’s) ability to use the property for the purpose of PV
installations.

(e) Renewal options for extending the lease beyond 20 years - many of the leases provide for the
ownership of the assets to be handed over to the landowner at the end of 20 years.

(f)  The baserent to be paid over the term and ancillary charges payable.

(g) Covenants of the tenant to install and operate the system in a prudent manner.

(h) Covenants of the Property Owner including provisions that the Property Owner will not do any act
or thing that will result in any shading or obstruction of the sun, thereby impairing the Renewable
Energy equipment’s ability to generate electricity.

(i)  Acovenant that the Property Owner will obtain a non-disturbance agreement from any holder of a
mortgage on the Property being leased.

() The Property Owner has the ability to terminate the Lease Agreement if the tenant has defaulted
in its obligations to the Property Owner in the Lease Agreement.

(k) Theinsurance the parties are required to obtain for the Renewable Energy equipment and the
property on which the renewable power equipment is situated.

()  Terms and provisions regarding the transfer by a party of their interest in the Lease Agreement.

(m) Itisintended that the parties would initially proceed to non-binding mediation followed by binding
arbitration in the event the non-binding mediation did not result in a resolution of the issue.

(n) For building rooftop leases, terms under which a system, once installed, may be temporarily
moved or relocated in order to facilitate any roof repairs required for the building.

(o) General indemnification provisions between tenant and Property Owner whereby one party
agrees to indemnify the other for damages suffered by the other party as a result of the conduct
of the one party.

(p) Thelocation of the Renewable Energy equipment and ancillary equipment on the Property
Owner’s property.

(@) Options upon completion of lease term regarding removal of equipment or transfer of ownership.

Given site variations and the fact that Lease Agreements must be negotiated separately with each and
every Property Owner, some variations exist within the current leases that have been executed and it is
envisioned that not all future Lease Agreements will be uniform. This variation of leases is identified as a
Risk Factor in Section 5: Risk Factors - System/Facility - Lease Agreement Risk.
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3.10 MARKETING

CED Co-op has a marketing strategy to attract Members and investment from both Members and Non-
Members. More information on this plan is provided in Section 4 (“Business Plan”) of this Offering
Statement.

311 CO-OPERATIVE MANAGEMENT

CED Co-op is currently managed by its Board of Directors and does not have any employees. The
Directors are elected for a three-year term, with the renewal of terms staggered so that not all directors’
positions are vacated in a given year. If the Director is being elected to replace a Director who, for
whatever reason, has failed to serve their entire term, the term of such replacement Director shall be for
the balance of such Director’s term. As outlined in the Co-op Act, there is no limit on the number of terms
a Director may serve. The election of Directors occurs by vote of the Members at the annual general
meetings of CED Co-op.

The current members of the Board have a broad range of business experience in start-ups, financial co-
operatives, high-tech companies, construction, legal, finance, operations, and managing businesses as
well as a proven track record of energy project development:

Alvin Doerksen, MBA, B.ED, B.SC - Board Chair and Director

Al is a retired senior executive with broad-based experience in business, international development, and
education. He has spent over 6 years as a consultant to, and later CEO, at International Development
Enterprises (Denver) and 7 years at Palliser Furniture (Winnipeg), including time in the role of Senior VP
Operations. Al has also held leadership positions with Canadian Foodgrains Bank, Trojan Technologies
(London/Europe), and MCC. His board experience includes serving on the Board of Ridge Townhomes,
Concord College, and IDE Canada, and two terms on the CED Co-operative board including 3 years as
Board Chair.

Blair Groff, BA, LLB - Secretary and Director

Blair is a practicing lawyer who also holds an economics degree and has worked in the financial services
industry for 19 years as in-house counsel at Manulife. Currently, he is the Vice President Legal, Regulatory
and Strategic Initiatives at The Co-operators, one of the largest co-operatives in Canada, with a focus on
mergers, acquisitions, and regulatory matters. With experience in strategic direction, consensus building,
and understanding regulatory requirements, Blair has learned to think outside the box to reach business
objectives. Additional Board experience includes serving as Corporate Secretary to the Board of Manulife
Canada.

Brian Unrau, BED, MBA, FCUIC, CPA, CMA - President and Director

In addition to serving as President of CED Co-op, Brian is also the President of VCT. Brian studied energy
efficient and environmental technologies in the Faculty of Architecture at the University of Manitoba,
receiving his Bachelor of Environmental Design (BED). Following this he pursued further studies in
computer science and began working for Convergys/AT&T. Brian then became a partner in a computer
consulting firm, starting up a computer sales company alongside the consulting business, as well as
teaching high school computer science courses. Brian left those endeavours to join the financial co-
operative, Kindred Credit Union (formerly Mennonite Savings and Credit Union), in 2002 where he
subsequently held several technical, lending, and management roles and earned the designation of Fellow
of the Credit Union Institute of Canada (FCUIC). During this time Brian also obtained is Master of Business
Administration (MBA) from Wilfrid Laurier University. Following this he pursued further studies in
accounting, completing the Certified Management Accountant (CMA) program in 2011, and has
subsequently received the designation of Chartered Professional Accountant (CPA). Brian is one of the
founding members of CED Co-op and has served as the President of the organization since its
incorporation in 2012. He is currently serving on the board of Enova Energy Corporation and on the
building committee and the board of directors of Beyond Housing, a charity engaged in providing
affordable housing.
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Christine Weber, B.A. - Treasurer and Director

Christine spent 30 years working for Client Services, Collections and Audit for CRA specializing in Income
Tax. She audited many business operations both small and large, analyzing financial data and business
patterns. She was a CRA Regional Trainer, teaching tax law and auditing skills in Southern Ontario for
many years. She says, “Analytical thinking is one of my strongest attributes. | also developed the ability to
question and to challenge interpretations, suppositions, etc. but always by being respectful. Asking
probing questions is what an auditor does.” She adds that she values her position as a board member with
CED Co-op because she believes in what this business investment opportunity represents, i.e. by putting
Renewable Energy to work. She notes that they have solar panels on their roof, an electric car, as well as a
PHEV.

Dale Brubacher-Cressman, BASC, P.Eng - Director

In addition to serving as Secretary of CED Co-op, Dale is one of the owners of VCT, and served as its
President until May of 2016. Dale previously spent 17 years at BlackBerry (formerly Research In Motion)
helping build the company from start-up to a globally recognized corporation. His responsibilities there
included Program Manager for the BlackBerry 8700. As Program Manager and reporting directly to the
Chief Operating Officer, Dale oversaw all aspects of product development including product and market
definition, hardware and software development, quality assurance, new product introduction and
manufacturing. Dale also led the development and commercialization of the DigiSync Film Barcode
reader which received technical awards from both the Academy of Television Arts and Sciences (“Emmy
Awards”) and the Academy of Motion Picture Arts and Sciences (“Academy Awards”). In addition to his
work in the solar industry, Dale has served on the board of directors of a number of organizations,
including Kindred Credit Union, Aeryon Labs (acquired by FLIR), Sustainable Waterloo Region and Lucid
Energy Technologies. He is an active angel investor with a focus on sustainable technologies.

John Brubacher, B.Sc. - Director

John has been involved in business operations through work with Martin Mills Inc. and the pet food
divisions of HJ Heinz and Del Monte. His responsibilities included purchasing, operations, logistics, sales,
and budgeting. John holds a BSc and has attended Risk Reduction Management programs from the
Chicago Board of Trade (how CME). John is taking a slower pace in business as a real estate agent,
committing more of his time and expertise to Boards, including CED Co-op. Johnis an active investorin a
number of solar, wind and other renewable energy companies.

Martin Sellar Voll, B.A., MES - Director

Martin is the Vice-President of Operations for Centurion Canada Rentals and Services, part of the
Centurion Group which is a global leader in the supply of critical services to the energy industry. He has
worked in the energy service industry since 2007, and boasts experience from cyclical and challenging
industries, managing to uphold profitability and growth throughout. His previous work includes roles with
BlazeWest Utilities, Waste Treatment Solutions and Blaze Properties. Martin holds a Bachelors degree in
International Development with minors in Business and Economics, and he also holds a Master’s Degree
in Applied Environmental Studies from the University of Waterloo. Martin brings a rich background of
diverse business development experience and is eager to apply that to the Co-op.

Paul Hildebrand, B.Math, B.Ed. - Director

Paul is a recent retiree of the Waterloo Region District School Board where he taught Mathematics,
Computer Science, and Business Studies, at the secondary level, for 28 years. Prior to that, he worked for
7 years in the Information Technology sector with the Prudential Assurance Company. He holds two
degrees; the first, a Bachelor’s Degree in Mathematics majoring in Accounting and Computer Science,
from the University of Waterloo, and the second, a Bachelor of Education degree from the University of
Western Ontario. Blending the technical and the interpersonal has been the cornerstone of Paul’s career.
Whether it be leading teams of programmers in software project development, or inspiring students in a
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classroom setting, he is at home working both individually or in a group setting and is an experienced
public speaker.

Ryan Parton, C.E.T. - Director

Ryan is a co-owner of Crescent Ridge Services and sits on its board. Ryan has organizational
development experience, having grown sales from average of $1M to $1.5M to $4M-6M per year in past 3
years. A significant amount of his management teamwork consists of providing ideas; reviewing and
collaborating to come to the best solution/idea for the business and their customers. On the financial side
Ryan takes care of all financial aspects; budgeting for capital expenditures, managing operational
expenses and optimizing wherever possible as well as dealing with HST and Payroll remittances to CRA.
From his previous roles at BlackBerry, Ryan has a wealth of knowledge on reverse logistics/RMA,
manufacturing, product, and hardware engineering, regulatory and compliance and certification, Lean/Six
Sigma/Kaizen and electrical testing. During his time at VCT Group he grew from having little knowledge
on how solar panels and associated power electronics worked, to managing over 8MW of PV projects and
becoming a technical leader on the topic. His every day goal was and still is to ensure that his projects
were working and performing for his customers. He took the trust that CED put in VCT Group to build the
projects very seriously and always did his best to put the projects first. Ryan is pragmatic and considers
himself a common-sense person when it comes to issues of finance and investment details.

Steven Chomyc, P. Eng, MBA - Director

Steve has an extensive solar PV background in both technical and project development. He has built and
designed his own installation from scratch and was also responsible for EPC execution of the
FRV/SunEdison Apex Solar development in North Las Vegas, NV. Steve has also held several general
management positions, both with ABB and with Plexal Group in Perth, Australia. At Plexal Group, Steve
reported to the board of directors and interacted extensively with them including navigating the business
through the Global Financial Crisis and managing cash reserves very tightly. Typically, Steve is part of the
front-end development of opportunities. He brings strong risk management/mitigation skills and to
ensure that, once secured, the opportunity can be delivered with predictable and desired outcomes.
Steve has been a licensed Professional Engineer (PEO) since 1988 and completed his MBA in 2012, while
working full-time. He likes the challenge of a difficult problem and brings his diverse background and
collaborative nature to his assignments.

3.12 ON DISSOLUTION OF THE CO-OPERATIVE

Upon dissolution and after the payment of all debts and liabilities, including any dividends declared and
not paid, and the purchase for cancellation or redemption of all outstanding Shares, CED Co-op’s
remaining property shall be distributed equally among its Members irrespective of the number of Shares
or amount of Bonds or loans, if any, held or made by a Member.
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4. BUSINESS PLAN

In the artificial market of the FIT and microFIT program, project opportunities relied on the grid operator’s
forecast needs for power generation capacity and structured procurements for energy supply from
various generating types. Further, within these procurements, the FIT Program required unparalleled
dedication to timeliness and accuracy, with some procurements seeing the capacity taken up with
applications submitted within the first day of application window opening, and applications being rejected
for issues as small as single typographic errors.

Under the broader scope of business opportunities now available to CED Co-op, the Co-operative is
operating in more natural market structures, working directly with consumers of energy rather than those
that procure energy on behalf of the Province.

Notwithstanding this change in target market structures, CED Co-op will still need to rely on a favourable
regulatory environment that continues to introduce legislation and regulation that favours the addition of
distributed energy generation, energy resiliency, clean energy, and cost-effective energy generation.

4.1 ONTARIOELECTRICITY MARKET AND BEYOND

As outlined in Section 3.6.1, the IESO has released its latest forecasts for energy demand in Ontario. The
province is at an inflection point in its electricity markets. Economic growth coming out of the pandemic,
along with electrification in many sectors, is driving energy use up across the province, and these
forecasts are higher than what has been shared in previous planning documents. While the time from
2000 to 2022 has shown a downward trend in electricity demand, the forecast through to 2050 shows
that electricity consumption is anticipated to increase by 114%, a compound annual growth rate of 2.75%.

While this is somewhat in alignment with actions needed to reduce emissions, it still falls short of what will
be required to achieve our climate goals. Over the past century, on a global scale, energy consumption
has been consistently increasing at a compound annual growth rate of 2.3% while the population has been
growing at a compound annual growth rate of about 1.4%. Our energy usage both in absolute values and
on a per capita basis is increasing significantly. This increase in energy usage is shown in the graph below,
which outlines 100 years of increasing energy consumption, from 1920 to 2020, along with the sources of
energy.
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The lower 4 areas, including biomass, coal, oil and gas are all combustion based, making up more than
85% of energy consumption. While this outlines energy sources at the global level, the Ontario situation

is similar. Only 15% of energy consumed in Ontario is through clean, electrified sources, while 85%
continues to be supplied from combustion.

This outlines the immense task ahead. With 75% of emissions coming from energy consumption, and
85% of energy coming from emitting sources, an entire rebuild of the global energy systems is needed.
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The good news, if it can be called such, is that more than 67% of the energy used is wasted due to
inefficiency and heat escape, known as rejected energy.

This diagram is for the US, but Canada is similar. Inefficiency, waste energy and heat escape are included
in “rejected energy”, represented by the large light-grey box on the upper right. The real work energy,
what is truly needed and used, is the lower, darker grey box. Of the current energy consumption, from all
sources, and through all uses, twice as much energy is lost to “rejected energy” than what actually gets
used productively.

For example, in transportation, the bottom pink box, in examining the efficiency of an internal combustion
engine-based vehicle, 80% of the energy is lost to inefficiency, compared to a battery-based electric
vehicle that loses only 11% to inefficiency. If all road vehicles were electrified as battery-electric vehicles
at this same efficiency, to deliver the same productive energy of 5.65 Quads (quadrillion BTUs equivalent
energy) for transportation, the pink box would shrink from 26.9 to 6.35, and the large grey pipe would
shrink from 21.2, down to about 0.7.

Another example, in home heating, whereas the top furnaces have efficiencies in the high 90 percents,
still less than 1.1, a heat pump is actually a multiplier of energy. Through most of its operating range, one
unit of energy going into a heat pump creates 3 units of heat energy out - 1:3, or more. Even at its worst is
still better on a percentage basis, and most importantly, involves no combustion. Heat pumps, as energy
multipliers, almost entirely eliminate rejected energy.

If we apply the technology of electric vehicles, heat pumps and other market tested technologies, we can
take the challenge of electrifying global energy needs down by more than half. If these energy efficient
technologies are implemented (grey area in the graph below), and the current growth rates of solar, wind,
other renewable energy sources and energy storage technologies continue, the transition away from
fossil fuel based energy can largely be completed by 2050 while meeting the growing energy demand.
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Natural Gas / Methane

Below ground methane has benefitted tremendously from fortunate branding that occurred more than a
century ago, in it becoming known as ‘natural gas’, but it should be recognized it for what it is. Methane is
approximately 80 times more potent as a heat-trapping greenhouse gas than carbon dioxide. Further,
methane emissions in Canada have been known to be understated for many years, with emissions likely
exceeding what is being reported by a significant multiple. This would indicate that the reported methane
emissions, currently recorded as 13% of Canada's total greenhouse gas emissions, are likely several times
this amount. Natural gas (methane) is not something that should be treated as a transition fuel.

Studies completed by Stanford University in 2022, which used airborne sensors to monitor thousands of
gas wells in the Permian Basin located in New Mexico and Texas, concluded that more than 9% of all
methane produced in the region is being leaked into the skies. This is more than 6 times the current
estimates from the Environmental Protection Agency of 1.4%. Further, it is more than 3x the level at
which coal-based power plants have a lower emissions profile than natural gas (methane) power plants.

A single methane leak from extraction occurring in 2022 near Lloydminster, on the border between
Alberta and Saskatchewan, saw gas escaping into the atmosphere at a rate similar to the emissions from
1.75 million passenger vehicles.

Hydrogen Alternative - Black, Grey, Blue, Green...

Based on currently commercialized technologies and processes, hydrogen is not a suitable alternative.
Production of hydrogen largely comes from steam reformation of methane, and further the heat to supply
the steam comes from the combustion of methane. This is known as ‘grey hydrogen’. Studies confirm
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that hydrogen produced from methane not only has a larger carbon footprint than simply continuing to
use methane, but also is double the cost.

Adding in carbon capture and storage processes to the creation of hydrogen from methane is known as
‘blue hydrogen’. While carbon dioxide emissions can be lower for blue hydrogen, fugitive methane
emissions for blue hydrogen are higher than for grey hydrogen because of an increased use of natural gas
to power the carbon capture. In aggregate, the greenhouse gas footprint of blue hydrogen is more than
20% greater than burning methane or coal for heat and 60% greater than burning diesel oil for heat.

While hydrogen can be produced from renewable powered electrolysis, known as ‘green hydrogen’, it is
currently 10 times the price of methane, and on a system price/efficiency basis simply cannot compete
with the cost of electricity/electrification, especially with solar bringing the costs of new electricity
generation lower and lower. While improvements are being made in green hydrogen, so too are
improvements made in solar, wind and battery technologies, which further challenge the likelihood of
large-scale green hydrogen. Green hydrogen currently makes up only 0.3% of all hydrogen being
produced.
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Other challenges for hydrogen exist in the overall delivery infrastructure. The methane pipeline
infrastructure that exists across Ontario and Canada, which brings methane to most homes, is not able to
manage a full conversion to hydrogen. The delivery pipes, along with the household appliances they feed
(water heaters, furnaces, fireplaces, stoves, clothes dryers), can generally support no more than 20%
hydrogen content, meaning 80% will still have to be methane in order to be able to keep the current
infrastructure of pipelines and appliances. Further, the density of energy in Hydrogen is much lower than
current fuels, an entire transport trailer is needed to transport the annual energy needs of 1 FCEV vs a
regular transport trailer, hauling enough gasoline for 25 gas vehicles.

Even if the hydrogen industry overcomes the many challenges of cost, efficiency, and basic laws of
thermodynamics, it is questionable as to whether hydrogen provides any environmental advantage. As
noted above, it is already a challenge keeping methane molecules securely in pipelines and transportation
infrastructure, with much of it leaking into the atmosphere. Hydrogen represents an even bigger
challenge with it being so much smaller a molecule. The size of a hydrogen molecule is similar in relation
to methane as the size of a helium molecule is to the air we breath. When balloons are filled with helium, it
typically only takes a day or two for most of the helium to leak out versus those that are filled with breath.
It is likely that pipelines and transportation infrastructure for hydrogen will face similar challenges.
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While the combustion of hydrogen (H2) generally results in the creation of water (H20) as the byproduct,
it isn’t the burning of hydrogen that is problematic. Once again, it is the fugitive emissions. Hydrogen too
is a fairly powerful greenhouse gas. While it is less potent than methane, which has a global warming
potential over a 20-year period (GWP-20) that is 80 times carbon dioxide, the GWP-20 of hydrogen
averages 32 times that of carbon dioxide.

Global Warming Potential of Hydrogen - Pulse vs Constant Emissions

Renewable Natural Gas Alternative

Renewable natural gas (methane from landfills and bio-waste), while not being extracted from below
ground, is not a significantly better alternative. Studies produced by the methane industry recognize that
there simply isn't enough of it to fill the other 80% (after maximizing hydrogen to 20%) in pipelines.
Estimates put total renewable methane resources as potentially meeting at a maximum of 10% of our
methane consumption, though identify that only 3% to 5% of what we use now could be feasibly
accessed and supplied “renewably”. Further, the pipeline and transport systems would remain
unchanged, leading to continued leaks and fugitive methane emissions. Methane is methane, whether
from bio-waste or from below ground, and fugitive emissions of renewable methane are just as harmful.

These “solutions” of hydrogen and renewable methane, at least within current technological processes
and capabilities, are misdirects and distractions. They are further deepening and extending overall
societal reliance on methane and fossil fuel extraction, just as ethanol and biofuels misled people in the
90’s to believe that the process to clean up gasoline was able to happen without having to change habits.
This has resulted in increasing overall reliance on oil and gas.

Nuclear Alternative

Despite the debates about capital costs, safety, terrorism, nuclear arms proliferation, insurance and
others, historical experience and track records indicate that it is largely too late for nuclear power to have
a meaningful impact on climate change. The Ontario experience of the construction of nuclear plants is
not great. Timelines were 50% longer than planned at 15 years, and costs were 4x the budget. This 15
years also doesn’t include the design, planning and permitting time, which adds several more years.

Darlington is beginning site preparation work for a 300 MW Small Modular Reactor, or SMR, with the
ambitious goal of having Canada’s first commercial, grid-scale SMR operating as soon as 2028. Despite
skepticism on achieving this timeline, it would still be a demonstration project, followed by studies for
commercialization and streamlining for future larger scale deployments. The International Panel on
Climate Change guidance indicates that global emissions need to be reduced by nearly 50% by 2030 in
order for warming to be kept to 1.5°C, and net zero by 2050. Reasonable estimates for the planning,
financing and construction of any significant volume of new nuclear power plants would put operations
beginning in 2040 or later, a point at which a 60% to 70% reduction in ghg emissions must already be
realized.
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Efficiency of Electricity

Electricity travels through wires at approximately 270,000 km/s, traversing the country in the literal blink
of an eye, and a single high voltage transmission line can carry enough electricity to provide up to 10% of

Ontario’s peak electricity consumption (20% of night-time consumption). Instead of building pipelines, it

appears to be much more forward thinking to be building transmission lines and energy storage.

It is clear that the projects CED Co-op intends to undertake align with the goals of the grid operator.
Specifically, it is expected that regulations introduced over the coming years will favour increases in
generation capacity, distributed energy generation, renewable energy generation, flexible forms of
energy generation, energy storage and consumer choice.

4.11. Cost Effective Electricity - Solar Net-Meter Generation

The core target market for project development is known as a Class B electricity consumer. Thisis a
cohort that generally has peak monthly demands for electricity between 50 kW and 1,000 kW of power
and uses anywhere from 250,000 kWh to 5,000,000 kWh of energy on an annual basis. This consumer
pays electricity commodity rates as a combination of the Hourly Ontario Energy Price (HOEP) and Global
Adjustment (GA). The average pre-pandemic combined price of energy was $0.136 /kWh, though in 2021,
the Ontario government once again put an electricity subsidization program in place that brought the
average combined price down to $0.107 /kWh. In examining the average rates during solar production
hours, we see the value of solar-based electricity in 2022 slightly higher, at $0.114 /kWh, and increasing
from there.

In the years from 2007 through to the end of 2020, the combined cost of HOEP & GA increased at an
average of 7.1% per year. The subsidization implemented in 2021 has made it difficult to identify the
current trend. The most recent Annual Planning Outlook forecast that HOEP is expected to increase at an
annual compound rate of 5.5% over the next 20 years, more than doubling by 2034.
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Notwithstanding the expected increases in electricity costs in Ontario, contrary to popular sentiment,
Ontario has among the lowest electricity costs in North America. Data above is shown in $CAD for
electricity prices in the United States (blue), the Province of Alberta (yellow) and Ontario (green). The
average cost across the states is shown by the orange line.

Further to the above, for residential customers, again contrary to popular sentiment of electricity costs
putting people in poverty, household spending data does not support the idea that electricity is expensive.
Shown below, we see average daily household expenditures for a variety of items. There are 6 columns
for each category of spending, with the first column showing the average across all income levels, with
the following 5 columns dividing households by income quintiles - lowest income quintile through to
highest quintile.

In the above, we see average household spending on electricity averages 1.2%, with electricity still
representing only 1.6% of spending amongst the lowest income earners. On average, spending on
gasoline is more than double, and spending on phones, internet and TV (which don’t work without
electricity) is nearly triple that of electricity.

Class A Electricity Consumers

In addition to Class B customers, Class A customers are turning their attention to solar more and more.
Class A customers generally have peak monthly demands greater than 1,000 kW of power and are
considered the heavy users of energy. Class A customers pay for most of their electricity costs based on
their electricity usage concurrent with the 5 peak hours of consumption experienced by the Ontario grid
as a whole, throughout the entire year. The economics of this market structure are such that reducing
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energy consumption during any one of these 5 peak hours by 1 kWh results in savings of $58/kWh. This
marginal cost of $58/kWh is effectively 540 times the regular price per kWh that a class B customer
pays, $0.107 in 2022, as outlined above.

One of the core drivers of grid peaks in the province is hot sunny days, generally also good days for solar
energy. In analysis of historical solar project production, it is found that systems have consistently
generated between 40% and 50% of their rated capacity during these peak hours. The graph below
shows the average (dark orange line) and the range (shaded area) of solar project production across 8
different solar installations on the highest peak day of energy use in Ontario in 2021, August 24™". The
green line shows the peak hour for that day, from 3:00pm to 4:00pm eastern daylight time.

On this particular day, the solar installations averaged output of 63% of their rated capacity. This means
that a 100kW system would have been producing and average of 63kW during this peak hour. Based on
historical performance, the economics of solar installations are more favourable than battery-based
systems in reducing coincidental peaks. This is opening up new opportunities to target Class A
customers for CED Co-op. Business models and compensation structures are still in development at this
time.

Solar Installation Pricing

Reducing the decades long trend of decreasing costs of solar equipment, the price of solar panels has
increased in the past few years. During the pandemic prices increased almost 70%, due to a combination
of shipping costs and a 4x increase in the price of polysilicon. Efficiency of equipment (more watts in the
same area) is still increasing, which helps counteract some of this price pressure. While global shipping
challenges have largely worked their way out of the supply chain, panels and inverters continue to face
pricing and availability challenges which are making prices somewhat volatile.

Panel sizes are increasing to lower the part count and labour for installations. Panels are also now more
readily available as bi-facial panels, meaning that the panel is prepared in such a way that ambient light
and the light that is reflected to hit the back of a panelis also able to contribute to power production. The
effectiveness of this varies greatly from site to site, depending on the Albedo factor of the surfaces
around the panel as well as the distance or height between those surfaces and the panel. The Albedo
factor is the proportion of the incident light or radiation that is reflected by a surface.
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These efficiency gains have generally contributed to lower and lower costs for electricity generated from
solar power, despite some recent increases. Many of the project development costs are more fixed in
nature, including structural and electrical engineering, building permits, connection impact assessments,
and mobilization expenses. This results in significant cost benefits as projects scale larger in size.

In comparing the relative costs of electricity produced from various sources, it is helpful to use the
levelized cost of energy (LCOE). The LCOE is derived as the sum of all of the capital costs to develop the
projects as well as all of the operating costs for the system, and then dividing that number by the kWh
produced by the system over a comparable time frame. Typically, the time frame is the estimated
lifespan of the system.

Canada - New Investment Tax Credit

In August of 2022, the landmark Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) was passed into law in the US. This is
offering Investment Tax Credits (ITCs) refunding 30% of the development and construction costs for
renewable energy projects. With certain siting, project partnerships and “Made in USA” content, this is
stackable up to a 60% credit (final details of this program, domestic content and project attributes are yet
to be released). This can still be further layered over top of state and local programs. Beyond this, project
developers/owners are able to retain environmental attributes of projects for further monetization of
carbon offsets.

This has created global pressure for similar support for renewable energy. In November of 2022, the
federal government of Canada announced that it too would develop an ITC program, which was launched
on March 28, 2023 with the release of the federal budget. This is promising 30% refundable tax credits to
tax paying organizations who invest in renewable energy projects including solar, wind and battery
storage, among others and satisfy the required eligibility conditions. This 30% ITC has been factored into
the financial scenarios outlined below.

Summary Scenarios - Solar PV Rooftop Installations

Forecast budgetary project development costs are shown below for various sizes of solar rooftop
installation and solar carport installations. The LCOE for each system has been calculated for each
project size and type. It has been calculated both on an unleveraged basis - paying for all costs up-front,
as well as on a leveraged basis - adding time value of money calculations to reflect carrying costs for the
system.
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For rooftop solar installations, 25 years is the investment horizon or project lifespan utilized, due to the
estimated lifespan of roofing materials rather than the lifespan of the solar equipment. The majority of
solar panel manufacturers are increasing their energy production warranties to 30 years, and a solar panel
can last much longer than that. Maxeon, a company that has been manufacturing solar panels since 1985,
has recently increased their production warranties for panels to 40 years. This supports the modelling
that, for the solar carports, an investment horizon of 40 years is selected, with the all-aluminum structure
and solar panels likely to have a service life even beyond this time period.

The LCOE calculated on an unleveraged basis reflects the effective cost of generation by the Co-
operative as CED Co-op will be fully funding the projects from member investments at inception rather
than leveraging the projects. The LCOE on an unleveraged basis for the projects above ranges from
$0.189/kWh on the high end for residential projects, down to $0.067/kWh for larger commercial rooftop
projects. This is well below the anticipated 2024 grid price of $0.12/kWh and represents more and more
savings as grid prices continue to rise. This gives the opportunity for CED Co-op to generate power below
the cost of power from the grid, selling it to building owners/operators at or below the market rate,
making a profit to be returned to Investors.

Summary Scenarios - Solar PV Carport Installations
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Recent commodity price increases for aluminum have pushed up the development costs for solar
carports and canopies. For these solar carport projects, the LCOE calculated on an unleveraged basis is
approximately $0.079/kWh for larger projects based only on the value of the electricity for a Class B
customer. The returns for these types of projects are multi-faceted, and can be derived from a
combination of Class A demand savings, snow-clearing savings, reduced installation costs of EV charging
systems, enhanced parking revenues, carbon offset credits, and more. With these other factors of snow
clearing savings, parking revenues and additional savings considered, it may be possible for the Co-
operative to achieve higher project returns, but it is not guaranteed.

CED Co-op will seek to develop larger projects to achieve better economies of scale and lower LCOE
costs in order to enable larger profit margins in selling the power. This will need to be balanced with the
availability of capital from member investments. This is shown in the graph below as the area between the
dotted yellow line, representing the leveraged LCOE for larger scale solar development and the red line,
the forecast electricity price for the coming years.

The business model for developing these types of projects is outlined in Section 3.6.4 Business Models -
Net Metering. Continuing with solar installations builds on much of the knowledge that has been gained
by CED Co-op. It utilizes similar systems, similar equipment, similar operations, though with slightly
different metering connections, and a different customer for the energy. With more than 6 years of
ownership of similar systems, CED Co-op understands the economics of these types of projects.

The ideal property or building as well as ideal customer would have the following characteristics:

e Useable roof area of 35,000 square feet or larger for solar rooftops, or

e Parking lot with 200+ spaces in double rows (nose to nose, or nose to nose over median) for solar
carports

e Rooftop or parking lot is in good condition - new or recently refurbished

e Facility occupied by a Class B electricity customer with relatively high electricity consumption
(>500,000 kWH/year), or a Class A electricity customer (>1,000 kW of average monthly demand)

e Facility occupant is environmentally conscious and forward thinking — wants to be renewably
powered and show their values through their building, integrating solar with their communications
and outreach
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¢ Facility occupant is along-term successful enterprise in a stable industry, or an organization that
is enduring in nature such as condominium corporations or municipal and publicly funded entities
including municipalities, universities, schools, hospitals and other similar facility operators.

¢ Facility occupant employees are environmentally aware, interested in becoming part owners of
the solar facility on site through investment in CED Co-op

The target for CED Co-op is to develop 3 to 4 large scale projects per year with investments ranging in
size from $600,000 to $5,000,000, as capital permits. Targeted returns to the Co-operative will be a
minimum of 8% on an IRR calculation, ideally higher. Historically, while the Co-operative was active in
growing the Portfolio, CED Co-op developed/acquired projects at a rate of approximately 8 Projects per
year, with an average increase in Portfolio value of approximately $10 million per year.

Value Proposition
For the facility occupant, the benefits are as follows:

No capital investment

Operational savings

Achieving particular goals of using renewable energy in their operations
Reducing carbon footprint, potentially utilizing carbon offsets
Employee and customer engagement

Facility improvement

CED Co-opisin the process of negotiating terms with a number of different property/building owners. At
this time, CED Co-op has not entered into any binding agreements, but anticipates that there will be
project commitments gained to meet the financial forecasts for 2023 and beyond.

41.2. Carbon Offset Credit Markets

In 2021, the voluntary carbon market grew at a record pace, reaching $2 billion—four times its value in
2020—and the pace of purchases was still accelerating through 2022. By 2030, the market is expected to
reach between $10 billion and $40 billion. More and more global corporations, countries, regions and
cities are committing to be 100% renewably powered or net-zero, as demonstrated in the following
registries, many of whom are using carbon offset credits and renewable energy credits to achieve these
goals.

The RE 100 - https://www.therel00.org/ - more than 380 companies committed
Net Zero Tracker - https://zerotracker.net/ - more than 2,000 companies and governments committed
Science Based Targets - https://sciencebasedtargets.org/ - more than 4,600 companies committed

In surveys of the Members, it was found that a significant number are already purchasing carbon offsets
to reduce individual carbon footprints. One investor in particular sized their investment based on the
estimated carbon impact of the Portfolio currently held by CED. The market for selling carbon offsets in
the voluntary market could include current Members as well as other individuals and entities. The
potential channel for selling carbon offsets would be through the CED website.

For anindividual project, the return on efforts to certify a solar net-metering project would be marginal,
however in the spirit of additionality, it is enough of a return that would allow a project to go ahead that
might not otherwise have strong enough economics. The example outlined below calculates the potential
value to a solar net-meter project operated by CED Co-op if the carbon credits are sold at a 60% discount
to the federally mandated carbon price to start, with 25% of proceeds being paid to the processor for
transaction costs. With the growing attention to decarbonization and recognition of the need for a price
on carbon, it is anticipated that the discount to the federally mandated price per tonne will reduce over
time. As evidence of this, the price for carbon offsets under the European market for cap and trade have
seen the price per tonne exceed $150 in 2023.
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Ontario Based Project — Carbon Offset Credits - Voluntary Market Potential Value

Price |Reductions | Generation Carbo'n CO02 Offset Effectiv'e CO'Z Offs.et Discounted Market. Process Fee CED (.:o-op Cumulative | Cumulative

Year ($/tonne) |g CO2/kWh (KWh) Reduction Value Offset Price | Selling Price Rate Value Offset Price Margins Project CED Co-op | CED Co-op

(Tonnes) $/kWh $/tonne $/kWh Portion Revenues | Offset ROI
1 2023 65 708 | 630,000 445.9 28,984 0.046 26.00 11,593 0.018 2,898 8,695 8,695 12 %
2 2024 80 718 | 625,590 449.2 35,936 0.057 34.82 15,643 0.025 3,911 11,732 20,427 2.8 %
3 2025 95 729 621,211 452.6 42,997 0.069 44.71 20,234 0.033 5,058 15175 35,603 4.8 %
4 2026 110 739 | 616,863 455.8 50,138 0.081 55.65 25,364 0.041 6,341 19,023 54,625 74 %
5 2027 125 749 | 612,545 459.0 57,375 0.094 67.65 31,050 0.051 7,763 23,288 77913 10.6 %
6 2028 140 760 608,257 4621 64,694 0.106 80.71 37,294 0.061 9,324 27,971 105,884 144 %
7 2029 155 770 | 603,999 465.2 72,106 0.119 94.82 44,112 0.073 11,028 33,084 138,968 18.9 %
8 2030 170 781 | 599,771 4682 79,594 0133 110.00 51,502 0.086 12,876 38,627 177,594 242 %
9 2031 170 791 | 595573 4711 80,087 0.134 116.00 54,648 0.092 13,662 40,986 218,580 29.7 %
10 2032 170 801 | 591404 4739 80,563 0.136 122.00 57,816 0.098 14,454 43,362 261,942 356 %
11 2033 170 812 | 587,264 476.7 81039 |[$ 0138 128.00 61018 |$ 0104 | $ 15,254 45,763 307,705 419 %
12 2034 170 822 | 583153 4795 81,515 0140 134.00 64,253 0.110 16,063 48,190 355,895 484 %
13 2035 170 833 | 579,071 482.1 81957 0.142 140.00 67,494 0.117 16,874 50,621 406,515 553 %
14 2036 170 777 | 575,018 446.8 75,956 0.132 146.00 65,233 0.113 16,308 48,925 455,440 62.0 %
15 2037 170 722 | 570993 412.0 70,040 0.123 152.00 62,624 0.110 15,656 46,968 502,408 684 %
16 2038 170 666 | 566,996 3777 64,209 0.113 158.00 59,677 0.105 14,919 44,757 547,165 744 %
17 2039 170 611 | 563,027 3438 58,446 0.104 164.00 56,383 0.100 14,096 42,287 589,452 802 %
18 2040 170 555 | 559,086 3103 52,751 0.094 170.00 52,751 0.094 13,188 39,563 629,016 85.6 %
19 2041 170 500 555,172 2773 47,141 0.085 170.00 47,141 0.085 11,785 35,356 664,371 90.4 %
20 2042 170 444 | 551,286 244.8 41,616 0.075 170.00 41,616 0.075 10,404 31212 695,583 94.6 %
21 2043 170 389 | 547427 2127 36,159 0.066 170.00 36,159 0.066 9,040 27,119 722,703 983 %
22 2044 170 333 | 543,595 181.0 30,770 0.057 170.00 30,770 0.057 7,693 23,078 745,780 1015 %
23 2045 170 278 | 539,790 149.8 25,466 0.047 170.00 25,466 0.047 6,367 19,100 764,880 1041 %
24 2046 170 222 | 536,011 119.0 20,230 0.038 170.00 20,230 0.038 5,058 15173 780,052 106.1 %
25 2047 | $ 170 167 | 532,259 88.6 15062 | $ 0.028 170.00 15062 |$ 0028 | $ 3,766 11,297 791,349 | 1077 %

9,205.1  $ 1,374,831 $1,055,132 $ 263,783 $ 791,349

In summing the cumulative opportunity across the anticipated and potential portfolio of net-meter solar

installations for CED over a number of years, this could represent a meaningful increase in the amount of
funds CED could channel into further Project development.

4.1.3. Community Net-Metering

As outlined in Section 3.6.5, a new structure is being introduced through legislation called Community
Based Net-Metering. This will expand the types of facilities that become good project development

opportunities for CED Co-op by reducing the risks related to the facility occupant’s electricity
consumption, occupancy and financial viability. It is anticipated that, underlying the Community Based
Net-Metering project, will be a regular Net-Metering project structure as outlined in Section 3.6.4, and it is

only surplus energy generated from one meter on a site that will be available for Community Based Net-

Metering . For the best economic opportunities, CED Co-op is pursuing large scale developments.
Project examples include large commercial complexes, industrial complexes and condominium-style
complexes.

Value Proposition

For the facility occupant, the benefits are as outlined above. For the other participants in the Community

Net-Metering, the benefits are as follows:

¢ Community members are able to take advantage of lower cost solar generation through larger
project development

CED Co-op has held preliminary discussions with a number of different property/building owners but has

not signed any agreements at this time.

Community members are able to potentially buy electricity at a lower rate
Community members may achieve particular goals by virtually using renewable energy
Community members can reduce carbon footprints, potentially utilizing carbon offsets
Community members can support renewable energy and help better utilize larger facilities

4.2 GHG AND CARBON EMISSIONS - OTHER PROJECTS AND INDUSTRIES

The Co-operative is currently evaluating the setting of GHG and carbon reduction targets and anticipates

setting goals for carbon reduction and other measures of sustainability for the Project investments over

the coming years.
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In addition to measures of sustainability, as CED Co-op develops new Project opportunities, it is the goal
of the Co-operative to achieve diversification in the following areas:

Diversification of Customers

At this time, the only “customer” of CED Co-op is the IESO, and by extension, the Province of Ontario,
through the FIT Contracts that are currently held. This single customer represents a number of benefits,
but also some specific risks, as outlined in Section 5: Risk Factors. Diversification of customers will
reduce the impact and power that any one customer has over the profitability and success of CED Co-op.

Diversification of Technology / Revenues

Throughout the operating portfolio of the Co-operative, the main technology in use, and hence the source
of revenues, is producing electricity from solar equipment. While CED Co-op has developed good
knowledge and understanding in this technology and plans to continue to develop more projects using
this technology, revenues are entirely dependent on sun hours, snow fall (or lack thereof) and ongoing
maintenance of these systems. Broadening the sources of revenues for the Co-operative will help reduce
systemic risk related to the use of a singular technology.

Diversification of Cash Flow Structures

Solar projects are known to have a degradation rate in their performance meaning that systems, outside
of variations in climate conditions, will produce slightly less energy year after year. CED Co-op has
historically modelled this degradation rate at 0.4% per year which approximates current power
performance warranties from solar panel manufacturers. With fixed rate FIT Contracts, project revenues
are expected to follow this downward trend, leading to a higher rate of decline in project values over time.
As CED Co-op develops new project opportunities, the Co-operative will seek projects with increasing,
rather than decreasing cash flows. This is the case with solar net-metering. Project revenues are
expected to increase over time as electricity market inflation rates are expected to outpace degradation.

Within annual cash flows, solar projects are very seasonal, with project revenues in July often being five or
more times what they are in December. As CED Co-op contemplates new investments, diversifying cash
flows to be less seasonal will be part of the consideration of new project investments.

Diversification of Asset Values

As noted above, solar projects have declining energy output over time, which translates into declining
project values. As CED Co-op evaluates new project opportunities beyond solar net-metering, the Co-
operative intends to seek out project opportunities that either hold their value, or potentially appreciate
over time. This will help ensure long term value relating to the par value preference shares of CED Co-op
is maintained.

Diversification of Ownership

Contributing to the declining asset values of the Projects within the current portfolio is the expiry of
leases, with the Project assets, and any remaining value thereof, transferring to the landowner at the
conclusion of the lease. During the terms of these Projects, CED records significant non-cash expenses
of depreciation, which is increased through the asset revaluation process. As CED Co-op explores new
project development and investment opportunities, CED will explore revenue streams that either allow
for long-term ownership rather than lease arrangements, which may include the acquisition of properties
to ensure the ability to retain long-term value, or revenue opportunities that do not require the acquisition
of assets, such as the opportunity to market carbon offset credits.

Diversification of Geography

At this time, all of the operations of CED Co-op remain in Ontario, and are subject to the weather patterns
thereof. As CED evaluates new project and investment opportunities, it would be beneficial to expand the
geographic basis for operations. As noted in the pricing of carbon offset credits, the Alberta-based
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program potentially offers superior value for carbon offset credits, due to the higher annual sun hours in
the province, the higher emissions offset for a more carbon intensive grid, as well as the prescribed value
for the credits traded within the program. In addition to other opportunities within Canada, significant
growth of opportunities for renewable energy development are expected to happen in the United States
in the coming years. CED Co-op is currently researching various electricity and energy markets across
Canada and various parts of the United States, and may contemplate investment in other geographic
regions in the future.

4.2.1. Evaluation of Project Investment Opportunities

No new project commitments have been signed at this time. All projects must yet be evaluated and
approved prior to proceeding. As CED Co-op continues to develop new project opportunities, it is
anticipated that the Board will review the merits of each individual Project using the following criteria:

Return on investment - the Board will prepare, or cause to be prepared, Financial Projections in respect of
any potential Project and will assess the projected returns and cash flow dynamics of any potential
Project to ensure that the returns to security holders are maintained at satisfactory rates. As noted
above, the Board is seeking to diversify project opportunities, seeking long-term project values along with
the required returns on investments.

Engineering - if a Project has already been constructed, the Board will assess, or cause to be assessed,
the technical expertise exhibited in the design and construction of the system to ensure consistent
quality standards. For new Project opportunities, the Board will engage the appropriate technical experts
to evaluate and advise on the design and construction of Projects and to ensure that relevant operations
and maintenance experience is either available within the Co-operative or available to the Co-operative.

Component Quality - as it is anticipated that CED Co-op will be owning and operating projects for
significant portions, if not all of the economic life of assets, the Board will assess, or cause to be assessed,
the quality of components used in the Facility. This may include, but not be limited to, whether a Project is
designed or constructed using products from reputable manufacturers that have a track record of reliable
products, a financially stable operating history and have been reviewed by independent engineering
groups and/or reputable industry publications.

Risk - the Board will evaluate the risk profile of any future potential Project and compare that to the risk
profile of the Projects within the current Portfolio as well as those set out or described in this Offering
Statement. Both technical and financial risk will be investigated. It is anticipated, but cannot be
guaranteed, that this will include, the financial position and reliability of customers, available security,
potential regulatory changes, potential market changes, and many of the other risk factors that have been
identified throughout this Offering Statement.

Bankability and Salability — the Board will consider whether financing or divestment opportunities may be
available, and the terms upon which a sale opportunity or financing may be available. The purposes for
which this evaluation will be undertaken is to potentially fund a portion of the Project in order to help lever
the returns available from the Project, or to provide alternatives to member investments for Project
financing, or possibly financial returns to members, should an attractive market develop for Projects.

Suitability - the Board will determine and ensure that any Project is consistent with the mandate,
objectives and reputation of CED Co-op, and will not approve any Project that the Board determines, in its
discretion, is not acceptable to the Board. Itis anticipated, but cannot be guaranteed, that this will include
measures of sustainability including the reduction of GHG emissions.

The Board shall report to the Members from time to time, by newsletter, and at Members’ meetings, onits
Project development work and decisions.

4.3 FIT PROGRAM

CED Co-op is currently evaluating the purchase of an existing FIT project and has issued a letter of intent
to acquire the project. This could lead to the acquisition of a second operating FIT project as well. The
Co-operative remains open to acquiring more projects of this type and will continue to seek further
acquisition opportunities
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4.3.1. Background and History of the FIT Program

The Government of Ontario passed the Green Energy and Green Economy Act into law on May 14, 2009.
As noted by the Green Energy Act Alliance, the vision of the act was to make Ontario a global leader in the
development of Renewable Energy technologies, clean distributed energy and conservation, creating jobs
and providing economic prosperity, energy security, and climate protection. According to the Green
Energy Act Alliance, the purpose of the act was to facilitate the development of a sustainable energy
economy that protects the environment while streamlining the approvals process, mitigating climate
change, engaging communities and building a world-class green industrial sector.

The Green Energy and Green Economy Act was comprehensive as it amended more than 15 existing
statutes and laid the foundation for specific programs that were implemented by regulations and
directives issued by the Minister of Energy. Specifically, it called for the implementation of a FIT Program,
the creation of Renewable Energy Co-operatives as a type of co-operative, streamlined approvals, the
creation of a Renewable Energy facilitation office, mandatory connection to the Grid by local distribution
companies, conservation programs, the implementation of a smart electrical Grid, Building Code
amendments and energy efficiency requirements.

On October 1, 2009, in partnership with IESO, the provincial government launched the FIT Program for
projects that have a peak generating capacity over 10kW, and the microFIT Program for projects that
have a peak generating capacity of 10kW or less. They are called feed-in-tariff programs because a
premium tariff is paid for feeding Renewable Energy to the Grid. These programs replaced the previous
Renewable Energy Standard Offer Program, providing higher payment rates for clean electricity,
streamlined processes for approvals and connections, and Ontario manufacturing content requirements.
Through the FIT Program, power purchase contracts are offered that allow the Supplier to sell every kWh
of Renewable Energy produced at a set payment rate that is outlined in the FIT Contract. Once asolar FIT
Contract is initiated, this rate is fixed for the entire 20 years of the contract.

4.3.2. Cancellation of the FIT Program

OnJuly 12,2018, Ontario’s newly elected Progressive Conservative government announced the
cancellation of 758 renewable energy contracts which were yet to be constructed. The government
further tabled Bill 34, the Green Energy Repeal Act, on September 20, 2018. This bill received royal
assent and went into effect on December 6,2018. The repeal of the Green Energy Act as it relates to the
FIT Program is largely symbolic as the final round of the FIT program closed to Applications on November
25, 2016 and no new contract application opportunities had been anticipated since that time.

The contracts of CED Co-op were not affected in any way by the cancellation of the 758 contracts nor by
the repeal of the Green Energy Act. All of the FIT and microFIT Projects owned by CED Co-op have their
Contracts, rules, terms and conditions remaining in effect, as anticipated.

There have been further announcements by the Government of legal reviews of the FIT contracts and
possibly legislating against the FIT contracts to further cancel obligations. This is named as a Risk Factor
in Section 5: Risk Factors - FIT Contracts - Government and Regulatory. The Government of Ontario
obtained a legal review of the FIT contracts with regards to termination rights. While the conclusion
reached in the legal review is that “None of the Reviewed Contracts provide the IESO with the right to
terminate the contract for convenience once the facility has achieved commercial operation.”, the Co-
operative is not aware of whether this has been tested in a court. This legal review is included as
Appendix N: Legal Review of FIT Contract Termination Rights.

While the reviewed legal paths do not indicate opportunities to terminate contracts, cancelation outside
of these paths remains a possibility. CED Co-op believes that any legislated or alternative actions along
these lines is unlikely to be successful. There are more than 30,000 active microFIT contracts, and more
than 3,200 active FIT contracts. Though some of these contracts are held by foreign entities and
financial firms, many of these contracts are held by the people and institutions of Ontario, including
homeowners, farmers, schools, hospitals and municipal organizations. The political backlash would not be
contained to a single sector and would directly hurt the provincial government’s economics in other ways
given the ownership of systems by publicly owned and funded institutions. Further, many of the larger
projects have been financed by some of the largest financial institutions operating in Canada, whose legal
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resources would equal those of the Government. As demonstrated in the few contract cancellations that
have occurred, should further cancellations occur, it is unlikely that it could happen without significant
compensation to contract holders.

4.3.3. Major Features of the FIT Program

As CED Co-op continues to operate its current FIT and microFIT Contracts, and evaluates further
opportunities to acquire more FIT Contracts, the following provisions remain relevant.

Rules Versions

The FIT Program began with Version 1.0 of the rules and contracts being released on September 24,
2009. This became known as FIT 1. Due to the overwhelming response to the program, while many
contracts were issued under FIT 1, the majority of the applications for FIT Contracts were never
processed, and a second version of the FIT Program was launched in order to help manage the volume of
applications as well as make a number of other modifications to the program. CED Co-op does not have
any FIT 1 projects at this time, however all of the microFIT contracts owned by CED Co-op are form
version 1 of the FIT Program.

Version 2 of the rules and contracts under the FIT Program were amended through several feedback
processes with the final documents being made available as version 2.1 on December 14, 2012. Known as
FIT 2 (or FIT 2.1), this version introduced set periods in which applications could be submitted, known as
Application Windows, it introduced procurement targets to cap the size of the program and also made a
shift towards broader community ownership through capacity set-asides and incentives for broader
participation. The Application Window for FIT 2 began on December 14, 2012 and applications were
received for a period of 35 days until January 18, 2013. FIT 2 Contracts were awarded in July of 2013.
CED Co-op holds ownership in four operating FIT 2 Contracts as outlined in Section 6: Portfolio.

FIT 3 began with the rules being released on October 9, 2013 and applications were received from
November 4, 2013 through to December 13, 2013. Contracts were awarded to FIT 3 applications on July
30, 2014 with contract version 3.0.1. Because of delays in the program, the FIT 3 round of the program
was extended on August 29, 2014 with an additional 100MW of contracts being granted to FIT 3
applications through a resubmission process with a version 3.1 contract and a slight decrease in contract
rates. These contracts were awarded on December 19, 2014. This second round was referred to as
extended FIT 3 or FIT 3.1. CED Co-op has 12 operating FIT 3 projects and 10 operating FIT 3.1 Projects.

FIT 4 was launched with rules and contract version 4.0.1 on September 17, 2015 with an Application
Window from October 5, 2015 through to October 23, 2015. Contracts were awarded on June 29, 2016
with version 4.0.2 of the FIT Contract. CED Co-op has 4 operating FIT 4 Projects.

FIT 5 was launched with rules and contract 5.0.1 on September 21, 2016. Applications were received from
November 7, 2016 through to November 25, 2016. CED Co-op did not submit any applications for FIT 5.

Pricing

The contract rates represent a premium over the wholesale electricity price. From the launch of the
program through to the wind-up with FIT 5, the rates have seen substantial decreases for Solar projects
as follows, on average being reduced by an average of approximately 67% to 1/3 of the starting prices.

Technology Size FIT1 FIT2 FIT 3a FIT 3b FIT4 FIT5 | Total Change
Solar (PV) (Rooftop) <=10kW 80.2 54.9 39.6 38.4 29.4 28.8 -64.1%
Solar (PV) (Rooftop) >10kW to <=100kW 71.3 54.8 34.5 34.3 24.2 22.3 -68.7%
Solar (PV) (Rooftop) >100kW to <=500kW | 63.5 53.9 32.9 31.6 22.5 20.7 -67.4%
Solar (PV) (Non-Rooftop) |<=10kW 80.2 445 29.1 28.9 214 21.0 -73.8%
Solar (PV) (Non-Rooftop) [>10kW to <=500kW 443 38.8 28.8 27.5 20.9 19.2 -56.7%
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There is the ability to receive a further bonus on some of the rates outlined above through the various
Contract Capacity Set-Aside or CCSAs. Specifically, for the Community based CCSA where >50%
Economic Interest is held by a Co-operative, ground mounted solar projects would receive an additional
$0.01/kWh. This adder is not available to rooftop solar Projects.

FIT Price Community
Adders Participation Level

Participation
Level (Equity)
Price Adder

>50% | >=15%<=50%

Priority Points and Contract Capacity Set Aside

Starting with FIT 2, Priority Points were introduced in order to give an advantage to applications that
included broader ownership by community (represented by co-operatives), aboriginal or municipal groups.
In addition to broader ownership, projects that had the support of municipal councils, support of
aboriginal groups, or were situated on properties owned by municipal or public-sector entities received
Priority Points. Later rounds of the FIT program reduced some of these opportunities to gain Priority
Points but introduced a bid-down mechanism where Priority Points could be gained by taking a 4%, 8% or
12% reduction in the Contract price. In awarding contracts, applications with more Priority Points were
evaluated ahead of projects with fewer Priority Points, and only within applications that had the same
number of Priority Points was the order of submission taken into consideration.

Further to the Priority Points structure, there was an ability to achieve an elevated priority through the
CCSA stream of the FIT Program which specifically mandates a community, municipal or aboriginal
participation level of greater than 50% of the Economic Interest in the Project. In order to countas a
Community Participation CCSA Project, the Community Economic Interest of greater than 50% must be
held by a co-operative incorporated in Ontario, and the members of the co-operative must include a
minimum of 50 members who are landowners (continuously for a period of two years or longer) within the
municipality in which the project is to be developed. This means that CED Co-op will need to maintain 50
or more Members who are qualifying landowners in each municipality in which a Project is to be
developed at the time the Application is submitted and for the duration of the FIT Contract. This need to
maintain membership levels is identified as a Risk Factor in Section 5: Risk Factors - FIT Contract -
Community Investment Member Status. For clarity, CED Co-op can develop or own Projects within
multiple municipalities, a new co-operative is not needed for each municipality, and when Investors put
their money into CED Co-op, they are investing in the Project Portfolio which can include Projects from
many municipalities.

The Community Participation for the FIT Contracts held by CED Co-op is outlined for each FIT Contractin
Section 6: Portfolio.

Domestic Content

Part of the FIT 1 and FIT 2 Program rules was the requirement for specific levels of Ontario Manufacturing
Content to be used in the construction of FIT Projects. Ontario was not successful in defending the
domestic content rules to the World Trade Organization challenge that was launched in 2011, and the final
ruling came out in mid-2013 forcing the domestic content requirements to be eliminated. Those Projects
that CED Co-op is building under FIT 2 contracts contain domestic content provisions, and this is noted as
a Risk Factor in Section 5: Risk Factors - FIT Contracts - Ontario Domestic Content Requirements.
Notwithstanding the provisions outlined in the FIT 2 contracts, the IESO has communicated its position
regarding domestic content requirements to FIT Contract holders as of June 25th, 2015, and this letter is
included as Appendix M: IESO Position Clarification Regarding Domestic Content.

As per the IESO announcement of August 14th, 2014, there are no domestic content requirements for the
FIT 3 or later contracts held by CED Co-op.
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4.4 KEY RELATIONSHIPS
CED Co-op presently has relationships with the following:
Legal

CED Co-op has its primary legal relationship with Gowling WLG. Gowling WLG is an international law firm
with over 700 lawyers and 7 offices in Canada.

Matters relating to Co-operatives and the Co-op Act and Co-op Regulations are reviewed in consultation
with ller Campbell.

Further legal consultation regarding securities and the Tax Act has been conducted through Blakes.
Blakes was founded in 1856 and operates through 5 Canadian offices and 7 international offices.

Accounting

In 2021, CED Co-op conducted a procurement process for the audit work of CED Co-op beginning with
the 2021 Fiscal Year End. Grant Thornton, the external auditors of CED Co-op up to and including 2020,
were invited to submit a proposal, and they did actively participate in the evaluation process. In the
conclusion of the evaluation, CED Co-op elected to switch audit firms to KPMG for the 2021 fiscal year.
The Co-operative has maintained this work with KPMG since that time. The Co-operative also uses KPMG
for certain tax and advisory services including income tax, HST and other matters.

Engineering and Design

CED Co-op utilizes the services of a number of engineering offices for various aspects of the design and
construction of the Projects. These include McNeil Engineering and Construction Inc. for structural
engineering analysis of roof systems, Tatham Engineering Ltd. for foundation designs and structural
designs, Burnside Engineering for structural analysis of tracker bases, Tatham Engineering Limited for
high voltage electrical engineering as well as Fortech Engineering Ltd. for additional electrical
engineering.

Insurance

CED Co-op maintains Commercial General Liability insurance for its property and project operations
through BFL Canada, with the policies issued by RSA Insurance Group. In addition to being owned and
managed by its own employees, BFL Canada is one of the largest risk management, insurance brokerage
and benefits consulting firms in Canada. CED Co-op also holds Directors & Officers insurance through
BFL Canada with the insurance provided by Victor Canada.

FIT Contract Compliance, Project Management, Operations and Maintenance

CED Co-op is presently working primarily with VCT for FIT Contract compliance and Project management.
VCT is a privately held renewable energy developer based in Kitchener, Ontario. Incorporated in 2008,
VCT’s primary experience is in solar photovoltaic energy generation. Their team has installed microFIT
and FIT projects for individuals, businesses, and charities. Their projects include over 400 ground
mounted trackers, as well as rooftop solar on buildings of all shapes and sizes, having constructed and
managed more than 20 MW of installations.

In addition to being developers, VCT also owns several solar installations and is a project ownership
partner in several of the projects in the CED Co-op portfolio. VCT continues to design every installation
to very high specifications, ensuring they are built with the mindset of long-term ownership.

Having started in the solar industry by building smaller systems and since then having grown into
managing, designing and constructing larger systems, VCT is an ideal development partner for CED Co-op
in developing profitable solar projects. The personnel of VCT have gained expertise through installing,
operating and monitoring systems based on micro-inverters, string inverters, optimizing technologies and
central inverters. This has given VCT substantial insight into designing systems with high performance
and high reliability. It is because of the experience gained in developing small projects that VCT is able to
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reduce costs by managing many of the finer details of engineering, procurement and construction
processes in-house rather than subcontracting portions of the project development process to other
firms. Together with its customers, VCT has generated well over 150 million kilowatt hours of clean,
green energy.

4.5 MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

CED Co-op does not have any employees at this time. Management of the Co-operative has been
performed by VCT and the Board of Directors of the Co-operative.

CED Co-op and VCT have entered into an agreement wherein VCT provides management services to CED
Co-op. The form of this agreement is attached as Appendix L.

4.6 FORECAST PROJECT PORTFOLIO REVENUES

Projected Financial Statements have been prepared for the lifespan of the FIT Contracts as well as the
revenues and expenses related to anticipated projects through this same time period, and these are
included as Appendix A. These projections are a forecast and cannot be guaranteed. This is a Risk Factor
that is identified in Section 5: Risk Factors - Projections and Forward-Looking Information.

The projections have been prepared assuming that all of the project revenues and expenses have been
consolidated into a single set of financial statements showing both CED Co-op’s and the various partner’s
total revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities.

The following assumptions are used in the financial modelling:
Financial

e Debt payment reserves and maintenance reserves will earn interest at 2.5% (the approximate

current rate being paid on these deposits)

Free cash on hand earning 0% (no) interest

Income Tax rate of 26.5%

Long term debt renewal rate of 6.9% (the estimated renewal rate based on current bond rates)

Cash Dividends on Class A Preference Shares of 9.0% per annum, with shares being repurchased

over a 20-year time frame from original investment

e Cash Dividends on Class B Preference Shares of 7.0% per annum, with shares being repurchased
over a 15-year time frame from original investment

e Stock Dividends on Class C Preference Shares of 6.0% per annum, with shares being repurchased
beginning in 2033 as the market for projects is too difficult to predict beyond the anticipated
Investment Tax Credit program, anticipated to end in 2034

e Projected Class C Preference Share investments as outlined in the table below - net of
redemptions (i.e., for $4 million of shares to be issued net of redemptions, if $1 million of shares is
redeemed in a period, $5 million must be issued to result in a net of $4 million of investments)

e Amortization is done on a straight line basis over the life of the asset, though it is anticipated that
the Co-op will continue to revalue its assets on an annual basis.

Solar FIT, microFIT and/or Net-Meter Project Operations

e Solar Portfolio Performance Degradation at 0.5% per year
o Current production warranties from panel manufacturers warrant 0.4% per year
e Utility and Internet expenses will increase at an inflationary rate of 2.0%
e Operations and Maintenance expenses will start at $850 per year per inverter and increase at an
average rate of 1.5% to account for increases in labour costs, but decreases in materials costs
o Thisisinline with current maintenance costs experienced by CED Co-op.

Net-Meter Power Purchase Agreement - Based Projects

¢ Annual development of projects split at 2/3™ solar rooftop and 1/3 solar carport on a kW project
size basis.
¢ Revenues for new Projects begin in the year following investment/construction.
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e Power Purchase Agreements for electricity start at $0.12/kWh for 2024 and increase annually at a
rate of 3% throughout the contract. Power Purchase Agreements begun in 2025 and later start at a
rate 3% per year higher than $0.12/kWh

e Power Purchase Agreements based on a 25-year term

e Energy generation forecast to be 1,075 kWh/kW in year 1

o Theexisting CED Co-op portfolio of fixed (rooftop) systems performed at 1,072 kWh/kW
in the 12 months ended March 31, 2023, though the average age of these systems is 6
years old, and these do not utilize bi-facial solar panels.

e Solar PV rooftop projects developed at an all-in cost of $1.90/W

e Solar PV carport projects developed at an all-in cost of $3.50/W

e Projects are eligible for a 30% Investment Tax Credit, with the refundable tax credit to be received
in the year following project development

e Carbon Offset Credits are generated and sold by CED Co-op as per the forecast outlined in Section
412

Anticipated solar project development and corresponding share offerings

Project Share Investments
Investments (Repurchases)

2023 $ 3,000,000 $ 4,500,000
2024 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000
2025 $ 4,000,000 $ 3,500,000
2026 $ 5,000,000 $ 4,000,000
2027 $ 6,000,000 $ 4,500,000
2028 $ 7,500,000 $ 5,000,000
2029 $ 9,500,000 $ 5,500,000
2030 $ 11,500,000 $ 6,000,000
2031 $ 12,500,000 $ 6,500,000
2032 $ 12,500,000 $ 5,000,000
2033 $ - $ (9,000,000)
2034 $ - $ (8,500,000)
2035 $ - $ (6,500,000)
2036 $ - $ (5,000,000)
2037 $ - $ (6,000,000)
2038 $ - $ (7,000,000)

The amount shown as invested in projects is the total value invested in a year. As long as the average all-
in costs as outlined above are maintained, this could be accomplished through the development of any
number of projects adding up to the total value. As outlined in Section 4.1.1, CED Co-op is targeting the
development of 3 to 4 large scale projects per year with investments ranging in size from $600,000 to
$5,000,000.

Though only Solar Net-Meter projects and carbon offset credits are shown in the forecasts, CED Co-op
believes that there may be more and different types of projects that are developed and brought into the
Portfolio.

Though no net new subscriptions for Class C Preference Shares are forecast beyond 2032 and
repurchases are shown, and with this, no additional net-meter projects are forecast to be developed
beyond 2032, the Co-operative believes that there are likely further Project and investment opportunities
that will exist at that time.

It is the belief of the Board that the Project Portfolio of the Co-operative will be able to support the annual
operations of CED Co-op and the targeted returns are expected to be able to be maintained from the cash
flows these Projects.
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4.7 PORTFOLIOINVESTMENT AND FINANCE

The debt-to-equity ratio in providing the necessary capital for the acquisition of the Projects has
historically averaged approximately 70% debt, 30% equity (equity is considered to consist of all
investments in the Bonds and Shares of CED Co-op). For the FIT 4 projects, the funding of construction
came entirely from Investors, and moving forward for future projects the Co-op may vary the level of
project finance employed in the development or acquisition of projects.

The full loan amount for the SunSharel LP, SunShare2 LP and 2117921 - CED Solar tranches of projects
within the portfolio has been advanced. The lender for these tranches is CWB. The terms of this
financing are as follows:

Long Term Financing Terms - SunSharel LP

Total Original Loan Amount $14,593,941 ($14,315,034 CED Co-op portion)
Amortization of the Loan 17 years

Term of the Loan 10 years

Interest Rate 5.39%

Debt to Equity at Advance 68% Debt / 32% Equity

Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.25 (EBITDA / Annual loan payment)

Long Term Financing Terms - SunShare2 LP

Total Original Loan Amount $6,850,414 ($3,872,835 CED Co-op portion)
Amortization of the Loan 17 years

Term of the Loan 10 years

Interest Rate 5.73%

Debt to Equity at Advance 76% Debt / 24% Equity

Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.25 (EBITDA / Annual loan payment)

Long Term Financing Terms - 2117921 - CED Solar

Total Original Loan Amount $4,050,000 ($4,050,000 CED Co-op portion)
Amortization of the Loan 10 years

Term of the Loan 10 years

Interest Rate 6.21%

Debt to Equity at Advance 63% Debt / 37% Equity

Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.25 (EBITDA / Annual loan payment)

CWSB has registered security on the contracts and assets of SunSharel LP, SunShare2 LP and 2117921 -
CED Solar, respectively as security for the financing outlined above. Further description of the Credit
Agreements for these respective loans is included in Section 7.1 - Credit Agreements - CWB.

Rohnbrad Inc. has supplied project financing for the projects in SunShare3 LP to which they are a Partner.
This financing is provided through one of their related companies 2300070 Ontario Inc:

Long Term Financing Terms - SunShare3 LP
Total Original Loan Amount $1,484,120 ($1,484,120 CED Co-op portion)
Amortization of the Loan 15 years
Term of the Loan 15 years
Interest Rate 5.00%
Debt to Equity at Advance 100% Debt / 0% Equity
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Schiedel View Farms Inc. has provided project financing for the project in which they are a JV Partner as

follows:
Long Term Financing Terms - CEDC Turkey SunShare JV
Total Original Loan Amount $525,000 ($294,000 CED Co-op portion)
Amortization of the Loan 15 years
Term of the Loan 15 years
Interest Rate 5.50%
Debt to Equity at Advance 71% Debt / 29% Equity

4.8 RESP, RRSP, RRIF AND TFSA ELIGBILITY

The Co-operative believes that all of the Securities of CED Co-op are eligible to be held in RESP, RRSP,
RRIF and TFSA accounts. This is based on the Co-operative’s ongoing status as a Public Corporation and
certain provisions under Tax Regulations as follows which define some types of qualified investments:

o 4900. (1) (b)ashare of the capital stock of a public corporation other than a mortgage investment
corporation;

o 4900. (1) (c.1) abond, debenture, note or similar obligation of a public corporation other than a
mortgage investment corporation;

Qualification of Securities

CED Co-op has made an election to become a Public Corporation. An important note of distinction, CED
Co-opis not listed, nor is it seeking to be listed, on any public exchanges for the trading of securities. This
is an election to be considered a Public Corporation for Tax Act purposes. The legal opinion regarding the
election to become a Public Corporation for Tax Act purposes is included as Appendix E: Legal Opinion on
Election to Become a Public Corporation. Also included is the acknowledgement from CRA approving this
election in Appendix F: CRA Approval of Public Corporation Status.

CED Co-op has received an updated legal opinion confirming the eligibility of the Securities of CED Co-op
to be held in Registered Plans, included as Appendix G. While CED Co-op believes that its Securities will
continue to be eligible to be held in Registered Plans, this is a Risk Factor identified in Section 5: Risk
Factors - Financial - Registered Account Eligibility Risk.

In order to ensure CED Co-op’s status as a Public Corporation is maintained, it will be important for CED
Co-op to manage Shareholdings of its various classes of Preference Shares to ensure that insiders,
including directors and officers of CED Co-op, do not hold more than 90% of the Class A Preference
Shares outstanding. CED Co-op confirms that, as of the date of the Offering, insiders do not hold more
than 90% of any class of the Shares of CED Co-op. With this CED Co-op does not satisfy the
requirements in order to become a non-public corporation and does not intend to become a non-public
corporation.

4.9 MARKETING PLAN

There are two prongs to the marketing plan for CED Co-op. The firstisin the area of Project
development, and the second is continuing to bring in investments to enable funding of further Projects.
For Project development, CED Co-op is actively looking for projects in Ontario and is also beginning
preliminary investigation for the potential to develop projects outside of the Province. For Investment
growth, CED Co-op is only marketing to residents of Ontario, though with the global reach of websites,
from time to time, investment interest comes from outside of Ontario, and CED Co-op will allow non-
residents of Ontario to make investments in the Class C Preference Shares and hold securities other than
Membership Shares. This is a risk factor identified in Section 5: Risk Factors - Financial - Eligibility to Hold
Securities as a Non-Resident of Ontario.
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For Project Development, CED Co-op will be continuing to work with VCT to create Net-Meter project
participation opportunities and other related technologies. This is not exclusive to VCT, and projects
brought to CED Co-op from other reputable companies in the industry, such as Crescent Ridge Services,
Arcadian Projects and Guelph Solar would be welcome. At this time, CED Co-op is largely relying on the
marketing and business development efforts of VCT to develop a pipeline of projects. There continues to
be strong interest in solar projects from landowners and building owners at this time.

In pursuing investment growth, CED Co-op has expanded its member base to over 800 Investors through
10 years of operations, as outlined in the following chart. With few project opportunities available to CED
Co-op following the conclusion of the FIT Program application rounds, CED Co-op has not needed to put
significant efforts into growing the membership base or the Investor base. With new project
opportunities now being available, the co-operative anticipates that additional efforts to raise capital, akin
to the efforts expended in the first two offerings, will be needed again for this Offering.

To the end of 2022, CED Co-op has raised more than $24 million in investments.

Under CED Co-op’s 2021 offering, approximately 54% of Investments, on a dollar basis, were made as
non-registered investments, with 46% of investments being made through either a TFSA, RRIF, RRSP or
Spousal RRSP. Under the most recent offering, approximately 80% of investments have occurred
through Registered Plans. This is a much higher percentage of investments being made through
registered plans compared to early offerings, underscoring the importance of offering Securities that are
eligible to be held in Registered Plans. Once again, many Investors made multiple investments in the
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Class C Preference shares, holding some in non-registered as well as Registered Plans including TFSA
and RRSP/RRIF accounts.

Many who are receiving investment returns from previous offerings are looking for opportunities for
reinvestment. During 2023, CED Co-op is expecting to make payments of approximately $2.35 million to
current Members and Investors, it is anticipated that a significant portion of this will be reinvested in the
purchase of new Securities through this Offering.

CED Co-op has begun more formal marketing efforts to increase awareness of the organization. The
channels that were used in 2021 and onward included billboards, direct mailings, hand delivered proposals
and targeted social media campaigns.

As part of the securities management platform that is currently under development with the proceeds
from the previous offerings, CED Co-op is revamping its website to provide a more organized and
cohesive structure, as well as update language and visuals that were developed through the 2021
marketing campaigns, shown below. This revamped securities management platform will also provide
enhanced reporting and transaction services for members. Improving the digital experience and
streamlining the processes for investment is anticipated to reduce the administrative burden and attract
a wider demographic of members and investors. With a reduction in administration, CED Co-op may be
able to reduce the minimum investment amount for future offerings.

For this Offering, CED Co-op intends to utilize many of the advertising and marketing channels that were
utilized in previous years. In-person activities have begun occurring with more frequency as COVID
concerns are waning. CED Co-op looks forward to holding a series of events with sustainability groups,
potential investors and potential project partners.

It is believed that the maximum limit of funds could be raised through these channels, though as outlined
in Section 6.2: Use of Proceeds of the Offering, CED Co-op does not require achieving this maximum in
order to move ahead with project acquisitions or developments. In the previous offerings of the Co-
operative to date, the investments subscriptions totaled approximately $9.7 million (2015), $7.5 million
(2017), $3.0 million (2019), $3.5 million (2021) and most recently, $1.6 million (2022-2023).
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4.10TAXATION

As previously outlined, CED Co-op is a Public Corporation for Tax Act purposes. As a result, the dividends
paid by CED Co-op to its Shareholders on CED Co-op’s Class A Preference Shares, Class B Preference
Shares and Class C Preference shares are considered “eligible dividends” and qualify for a lower income
tax rate than “non-eligible dividends”.

As a Public Corporation, CED Co-op is not able to claim the small business deduction that can be claimed
by Canadian Controlled Private Corporations (CCPC) which reduces the tax rate on the first $500,000 of
active business income to a rate which is currently 12.2% (combined federal and Ontario rate). In addition,
in becoming a Public Corporation, CED Co-op and its shareholders are not able to take advantage of other
benefits available only to private corporations, including, but not limited to, the following:

Subject to certain restrictions, individuals in Canada are eligible to claim a limited exemption on capital
gains realized on the disposition of shares of Qualified Small Business Corporations (QSBC). One of the
conditions that a corporation must meet in order to be a QSBC is that it must be a CCPC. As a result,
shareholders in the CED Co-op will not be entitled to claim an exemption from taxation on capital gains
realized on the sale of shares of the CED Co-op. Thisis likely not to affect the Investors of CED Co-op
since the Shares of CED Co-op are par value shares, and no change in value of the Shares is anticipated.

CCPC’s may generally return paid up capital to their shareholders free of personal income tax; return of
paid-up capital by a Public Corporation will generally be a dividend.

However, as a Public Corporation, CED Co-op will not be subject to the additional tax on certain forms of
investment income to which CCPC’s are subject.

The income tax rate currently in effect that would be applicable to the income of CED Co-opis 26.5%
(combined federal and Ontario rate). It is uncertain if corporate income tax rates will fluctuate over the
time frames that are forecast in the Projected Financial Statements included in Appendix A.

In order to maximize tax efficiency, historically, CED Co-op has offered both bonds and shares as general
investment types. The Co-operative anticipates that it will continue to offer various securities and may
vary the structure and types of future securities offered for investment by investors.

The Bonds will be earning interest-based returns for Investors, and the interest expense paid by the Co-
operative qualifies as a pre-tax expense, which reduces the Co-operative’s amount of taxable income
while providing returns. The interest portion of the return to Bondholders is expected to be taxable
income to the Bondholder. The return of principal to Bondholders is not considered to be taxable income
to the Bondholder.

The Shares will earn dividend income which comes from the after-tax revenues for the Co-operative. The
dividends paid to Shareholders are expected to be taxable income to the Shareholder. The Preference
Shares will also be repurchased over the course of the FIT Contracts. The return of capital in the form of
Share repurchases is not considered to be taxable income to the Shareholder.

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN DOES NOT CONSTITUTE LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE. ALL
POTENTIAL SECURITY HOLDERS OF THE CO-OPERATIVE SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR LEGAL
AND TAX ADVISORS TO CONFIRM THE TAXATION IMPLICATIONS OF THE INVESTMENT AND
RETURNS FROM THESE SECURITIES PRIOR TO MAKING AN INVESTMENT.

The Co-operative and its various operating entities are HST registrants, and as such will be collecting HST
on the electricity that is sold to the LDCs as well as the various other taxable supplies that are made under
new business models. As an HST registrant, the HST that is paid on eligible expenses will be claimed as an
input tax credit and netted against the amount of HST that is remitted to CRA. At the time of the
acquisition of a Project, the ability to claim the HST paid on the purchase of the Project will resultina
significant credit for the Co-operative that is refundable. The values that have been used for Financial
Projections show Project costs net of the expected return of HST. This is a cash flow issue that the Co-
operative will have to manage. A staggered acquisition or development of projects will help to mitigate
the effects of this cash flow issue.
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The acquisition or development of Projects creates an asset for the Co-operative that is held in various
classes as described in the Tax Act. The Solar PV Project assets are held in Class 43.1 and 43.2 of the Tax
Regulations for the purposes of Capital Cost Allowance depreciation for income tax purposes under the
tax act. Class 43.1 and 43.2 assets are typically allowed to be depreciated at a rate of 30% and 50%,
respectively, per year on a declining balance with only half of the deduction allowed in the year of
acquisition. In addition to the rules for Class 43.1 and 4 3.2, the Projects will also be subject to specified
energy property rules. The specified energy property rules require that each Project be maintainedin a
separate asset class within the 43.1 or 43.2 Class and generally limit the amount of CCA deduction that
can be claimed in a tax year to the amount that would reduce taxable income from that Project to $0.
Since the principal business of CED Co-op is the sale of electricity, the Co-operative will be allowed to
take the full deduction to create a loss for tax purposes or to use the CCA from one Project to shield the
income from other revenue realized by the Co-operative from other Projects or other sources. Should a
loss for tax purposes be created, this loss is not eligible to be flowed through to any of the Security
Holders of the Co-operative.

New Project types and Asset types will fall under various other classes for the purpose of CCA under the
Tax Act and Tax Regulations. In general, it is anticipated that the CCA deductions, combined with the
other allowable expenses (including interest on Bonds), are expected to eliminate the payment of income
tax for the first 15 years of operations of the Co-operative.
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5. RISKFACTORS

The Co-operative and its Investors will be subject to a number of risks common to business ventures in
general and will also be subject to risks involved in the development and operation of Renewable Energy
Projects under the FIT Program and the operations of other types of projects in various other business
models. The failure to prevent or mitigate any of the following circumstances could jeopardize Investors’
investments in the Co-operative and could have a negative impact on the Co-operative’s financial returns
and solvency.

Before investing, prospective purchasers should carefully consider, in light of their own financial
circumstances, the Risk Factors set forth below as well as the other information contained in this Offering
Statement. Some of the Risk Factors have been grouped into themes by heading. This is for organization
and readability and is not meant to imply that these risks cannot, or do not, relate to other operations and
business areas of the Co-operative.

Projections and Forward-Looking Information: This Offering Statement and the Business Plan contain
forward-looking statements and projections, including the Financial Projections attached as Appendix A,
which involve numerous assumptions, hypotheses, risks and uncertainties including, among others, those
set out herein as Risk Factors. These Risk Factors impact future events including future operating results,
prospects and future financial performance and condition, results of operations, business strategy and
financial needs. These statements can be identified by terminology such as "may," "will," "expect,”
"anticipate,” "future,” "intend,” "plan,” "believe," "estimate,” "is/are likely to" or similar expressions. Actual
results of operations will vary, perhaps materially and adversely, from the projections contained in this
Offering Statement. No representations or warranties are given that these projections will actually be
achieved. The assumptions and hypotheses upon which these projections are based may change on
account of circumstances beyond the control of the Co-operative. The projections made should be
viewed as estimates only.

In "
’

Business Prospects - No Guarantee of Projects: The Co-operative is raising funds for future projects on
a speculative basis. No formal agreements for future projects have been signed at this time. The Co-
operative cannot guarantee that the projects currently being contemplated will be developed, or that
alternative or additional project opportunities will materialize.

Business Prospects - Performance of Third Parties: The Co-operative’s financial performance is, to
some degree, dependent upon the performance of its JV and LP Partners. It is possible that the
unprofitability and/or insolvency of JV or LP Partners could negatively impact upon the Co-operative and
its financial results. It is also possible that JV Partners may be unable to meet their financial obligations
toward the Projects, which could put the Projects at risk.

Business Prospects - Political Risk: The viability of the Co-operative’s current or future plans, to
generate or sell Renewable Energy, develop energy efficiency projects, or develop carbon reduction
projects, depends, in large measure, upon the existing energy market structures. Energy markets are
highly regulated and are subject to the changes in legislation and regulation that may be enacted from
time to time, at potentially federal, provincial, or even municipal levels. This may result in changes,
whether owing to a change in the persons or parties in positions of leadership or otherwise, that could
have a negative impact on the Co-operative’s operations.

Business Prospects - Regulatory Approval and Permits: The Co-operative has outlined its expectations
based on the existing rules and regulatory requirements of the existing FIT Program, net-meter
regulations, electrical codes, building codes, and other regulatory requirements. If any of these
requirements change, this may impose additional costs to the Co-operative not contemplated in the Co-
operative’s current Business Plan. The Co-operative is also required to be compliant with various rules
and requirements held by the various LDCs. These rules and requirements may change which could
require modifications to operating FIT Projects or other projects that impair the economics of the Co-
operative.

Carbon Offsets - Carbon Market Pricing: In alignment with the prescribed rates for carbon emissions
from the Government of Canada, the Co-operative anticipates that the market price for carbon offset
credits will continue to increase over time. As with many aspects of the forecasts of the Co-operative,
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CED Co-op cannot guarantee that prices will continue to increase at any particular rate, increase at all, or
that prices will not decrease. This could have a negative effect on the profitability of carbon offset credits
or other projects that rely on the market price of carbon offsets.

Carbon Offsets - Market Structure Changes / Other Regulatory: The Co-operative may enter into
compliance-based or voluntary-based carbon offset sales structures with various customers and partners
that are dependent upon certain carbon offset market characteristics or pricing structures. These market
characteristics and pricing structures may change over time, including through legislation or other
industry and market effects. The Co-operative cannot guarantee that changes to market characteristics
and pricing structures will not have adverse effects on the revenues or profitability of the Co-operative.

Carbon Offsets - Validation and Verification of Credits: The sale of carbon offsets relies on validation of
projects and verification of greenhouse gas reductions in compliance with various standards and
processes. The evaluation and confirmation of these is performed by third parties, outside of the control
of the Co-operative. CED Co-op can not guarantee that evaluation criteria will remain unchanged, or that,
in the opinion of a validator, the operations and projects have or will produce the anticipated outcomes
required for the validation and verification of Projects and carbon offsets.

Financial - Ability to Pay Dividends and Surplus: There can be no assurances the Co-operative will be
able to pay dividends or distributions of Surplus according to the Business Plan and as set forth in this
Offering Statement. The payment of dividends and distributions of Surplus will be in the discretion of the
Board, who will assess the Co-operative’s ability to pay and the Co-operative’s financial position and
needs at such time.

Financial - Availability of Debt Financing: No assurances can be given that any of the loan facilities that
require renewal will be renewed by the current lender or alternate financing will be obtained or, if capable
of being obtained, will be obtained on acceptable terms. If the loans are obtained but are subject to higher
interest rates than those projected in Section 4: Business Plan and in Appendix A, then the revenues
flowing to the Co-operative from the Projects will be reduced and the Co-operative’s financial projections
will not be accurate.

Financial - Change in Dividend Policy: The Board is responsible to manage the business and affairs of the
Co-operative. As described in Section 3: Description of the Business of CED Co-op, the Board may at
some future date elect to alter the Co-operative’s dividend policy, which could result in a smaller
proportion of the profits of the Co-operative being received by Shareholders.

Financial - Debt Load: The Co-operative has incurred a significant debt load. Total debt, including all
loan and bond obligations, as of December 31, 2022 amounted to approximately $26.2 Million, a reduction
of approximately $2.4 million from $28.6 million at December 31, 2021. 2022 interest charges on bank
debt amounted to $1,180,423, interest charges on bank debt is expected to be $1,094,865 in 2023. The
reduction of the Co-operative’s total debt and debt servicing charges is very important to the long-term
financial stability of the Co-operative. The breakdown of the $26.2 million of debt remaining includes $7.9
million of current liabilities and $18.3 million of long-term debt. A full breakdown of the loans and bonds is
provided in Section 7 - Securities and Other Debt Obligations of CED Co-op with further details and
descriptions provided in Note 8 of the 2022 Consolidated Financial Statements, included as Appendix B.

As noted in Section 7, per the terms of the lending agreement, the conditions required for equity
distribution were not met during the year within the SunShare2 LP entity, indicating a breach of these
conditions. Upon becoming aware of the situation, the Co-operative obtained a waiver from the lender,
CWB Maximum. Per the lending agreement, since this waiver was issued within the cure period, this did
not result in an event of default for SunShare2 LP or the Co-operative. However, in accordance with
International Accounting Standards (IAS) 1, the Co-operative is required to report the entire balance of
the loan as a current liability, since it does not have the unconditional right to defer its settlement of the
loan for at least twelve months. The total amount of debt classified as current within the financial
statements, included as Appendix B, that would have otherwise been classified as long term, was
$4,977,711. However, as a result of obtaining the waiver within the cure period, the acceleration of
repayments of the loan was automatically annulled and the loan was reclassified to long term on March 17,
2023. The Co-operative was not required to make changes to the lending agreement in exchange for the
waiver, and no further implications resulted from this situation. The anticipated payments shown in
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Section 7 classify this amount as a long-term liability and show the original amortization schedule which
remains in effect as at March 31, 2023.

Financial - Eligibility to Hold Securities as a Non-Resident of Ontario: The Co-operative has not
registered itself nor this Offering document with any regulators outside of the Province of Ontario. CED
Co-op does not guarantee the eligibility of investors to hold the Securities of the Co-operative by non-
residents of Ontario. Itis the responsibility of the prospective purchaser or holder of Securities to apprise
themselves of the risks and requirements of investing in the Co-operative, or holding the securities of the
Co-operative, while not resident in Ontario.

Financial - Long Term Investment: There is no market into which these securities may be sold.
Purchasers of the Securities offered herein should be aware of the durations of the terms of the
Securities. The terms of many of the Securities may not be suitable for Investors who may need to sell
their Securities quickly in order to raise money. Members are not entitled to demand the redemption of
these Securities as explained in “Material Attributes of Authorized Capital” at the end of Section 8: Capital
Structure. Any redemption of these Securities will occur at the sole discretion of the Board.

Financial - Market for Securities: There is presently no market for the Securities being offered noris a
market expected to develop. This is aniilliquid security. It is unsuitable for any purchaser who may wish to
sell the security. Purchasers may not be able to resell Securities purchased pursuant to this Offering
Statement, if they need to, regardless of the need, or if they want to. Transfers of all Securities requires
Board approval. Management will use its best efforts to match buyers and sellers, but no guarantee is
offered that holders of the Securities will be able to sell them.

Financial - No Sinking Fund or Reserve: No sinking fund or reserve has been established to redeem the
Securities of the Co-operative. Itis the present intention of the Co-operative to redeem the Preference
Shares and Bonds on a respective schedule outlined in Section 9: Description of Securities of the
applicable Offering. However, there can be no guarantee this will be possible for the Co-operative,
whether under the Co-op Act or otherwise. Members are not entitled to demand the redemption of the
Securities of the Co-operative. Any redemption of these Securities will occur at the sole discretion of the
Board of the Co-operative.

Financial - Priority of Lenders: The net proceeds from the Securities offered herein will be utilized to
capitalize the Co-operative, which will in turn use this capital for the development of Renewable Energy
Facilities, energy efficiency projects and for other purposes described herein. These proceeds will be
subordinate to any funds received from secured term and/or working capital lenders and all other secured
creditors of the Co-operative, who will rank in priority to all Bondholders who will in turn rank in priority to
all Shareholders. Any such secured lenders and creditors will have priority with respect to the payment of
interest and principal and secured lenders and creditors will hold a secured position over all of the assets
of the Co-operative in priority to its Bondholders and Shareholders. It is anticipated these secured lenders
will place certain conditions and restrictions upon the Co-operative’s ability to make distributions to, or
redeem the Securities of, its Bondholders and Shareholders. These conditions could require the Co-
operative to allocate all or part of any excess cash flow generated by the Co-operative’s operations to the
pre-payment of its indebtedness, thereby eliminating or reducing the amount of cash that could
otherwise be available for payment to Bondholders or distribution to Shareholders. The ability of the Co-
operative to pay interest on or redeem Bonds, or pay dividends on or redeem Shares, will depend both on
the success of the Co-operative and its Projects and on the terms and conditions imposed by the Co-
operative’s lenders.

Financial - Profitability and Solvency: There is no certainty the Co-operative will be profitable and able to
pay interest on or redeem Bonds, pay dividends on or redeem or repurchase Shares of the Co-operative,
nor is there any certainty the Co-operative will be viable and solvent. In addition, there can be no
guarantee the Co-operative will be able to meet the solvency test mandated by the Co-op Act when a
request is made by a Shareholder to redeem their Shares or when Membership ceases.

Financial - Registered Account Eligibility Risk: While CED Co-op believes, as a Public Corporation, that
the Securities offered by the Co-operative, including Class C Preference Shares, are eligible to be held in
Registered Plans, and has received a legal opinion confirming this included as Appendix G, the Co-
operative can not guarantee this. The risks of this include the Canada Revenue Agency denying the
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eligibility of an investment in the Securities offered in this Offering, financial institutions not accepting
these securities to be held in registered accounts, or other risks.

Financial - Security: As outlined in Section 9.3 Ranking of Investments, and further described in the
Rank paragraph of Section 9.2 Class C Preference Shares, security for the Class C preference Shares and
Membership shares ranks behind principal and interest on all secured loans, principal and interest on all
unsecured loans, principal and interest on all Bonds, dividends that have been declared but unpaid on all
classes of Preference Shares, Class A Preference Shares and Class B Preference Shares. In the event of
a default (which could be the result of a payment default or a covenant breach), prior ranking creditors
would be able to exercise their rights under the applicable lending agreements in full satisfaction of
obligations due to such creditors. Under such a scenario, holders of the Class C Preference Shares and
Membership shares will not receive any payments or interest unless all prior ranking obligations are paid
in full.

Financial -Taxation: Financial Projections assume that Renewable Energy generation assets owned by
the Co-operative are eligible for accelerated capital cost allowance under Class 43.2 of the Tax
Regulations. Together with other deductible expenses, it is anticipated these provisions would limit the
tax paid by the Co-operative while these expenses are deducted from revenues. The Co-operative’s
Financial Projections are also based on the current tax rate in effect for the income of a Public
Corporation of 26.5% which is the tax rate has been used in Financial Projections. Corporate tax rates
have changed significantly over time, and it is expected this tax rate will change in the future. Itis also
possible other tax provisions may be changed in the future and could result in higher taxation for the Co-
operative, thereby affecting the profitability of the Co-operative.

FIT Contracts - Community Investment Member Status: Some of the Projects that the Co-operative
intends to develop require Community Investment Member status (as outlined in the Glossary of Terms
and Section 3.4.1 Membership Requirements) as it relates to a particular Project. If the Co-operative
loses its status as a Community Investment Member, through reductions in qualifying Memberships, or
through other events, as it relates to a specific Project, and the Co-operative cannot either sell the Project
to a qualifying Community Investment Member or regain Community Investment Member status within a
6-month time period, the FIT Contract for that particular Project will be considered in default and the FIT
Contract will be at risk of termination.

FIT Contracts - Contract Risk: The Co-operative has endeavoured to comply with the FIT Rules and the
FIT Contracts and continues to do so. Where CED Co-op finds the FIT Rules and FIT Contracts appear to
be unclear, the Co-operative has sought interpretation advice from the IESO as well as legal advice to
confirm interpretations of the FIT Rules and FIT Contracts. The IESO is the primary authority on the
interpretation and application of the FIT Rules and deemed compliance with the FIT Contract, and it is
possible that the IESO may interpret and apply rules and contract clauses differently than the FIT Rules
and FIT Contracts were understood and executed upon by the Co-operative. Further, the FIT Contract
contains a number of clauses which generally favour the IESO over the Supplier. This includes the ability
for the IESO to terminate a FIT Contract for convenience prior to the FIT Contract being granted the
Notice to Proceed. The FIT Contract also specifies a large number of factors (in the FIT Contract the
“events of default”) that may be outside of the Co-operative’s control such as a reduction in the number of
Members as it relates to Community Investment Members status. This may result in unexpected periods
of lost revenue while achieving compliance or unexpected legal expenses in asserting the Co-operative’s
interpretation of the FIT Rules and FIT Contracts. Any event of default that could not be remedied
according to the terms of the FIT Contract could result in the early termination of the FIT Contract at the
option of the IESO, which would have a detrimental impact on the Co-operative’s financial position. The
Co-operative is aware of the grounds for termination in the FIT Contract and intends to carefully monitor
its Membership numbers, FIT Contract operation processes and other factors to ensure ongoing
compliance with the FIT Contract, but cannot guarantee Membership numbers or FIT Project compliance.

FIT Contracts - Government and Regulatory: In addition to cancelling some FIT Contracts that were in
development stages, the Government of Ontario has, at various times, mentioned the prospects of
further legal reviews of FIT Contracts, renegotiation of FIT Contracts, and further cancellations. Any
renegotiations or cancellations of the FIT Contracts could have a serious negative effect on the financial
prospects of the Co-operative. The Government of Ontario obtained a legal review of the FIT contracts
with regards to termination rights (included as Appendix N). While the conclusion reached in the legal
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review is that “None of the Reviewed Contracts provide the IESO with the right to terminate the contract
for convenience once the facility has achieved commercial operation.”, the Co-operative is not aware of
whether this has been tested in a court.

FIT Contracts - Ontario Domestic Content Requirements: There are some requirements in a few of the
FIT Contracts to maintain “Domestic Content” both for initial construction as well as for ongoing warranty
and replacement parts. While the IESO has issued a clarification position regarding the interpretation of
Domestic Content as it pertains to FIT Contracts, this is not binding on the IESO, and is open to some level
of interpretation regarding Bona Fide reasons for replacing equipment. Because of the limited number of
manufacturers of solar materials in Ontario, there could be difficulties in acquiring solar panels or other
equipment that meet the Domestic Content requirements under the FIT Contract. As a result, the Co-
operative’s Projects may be unable to have the materials of choice, or any materials, for ongoing repairs
or parts replacement. Also, the IESO does not pre-approve products as meeting Domestic Content
requirements. While the Co-operative has performed significant due diligence in confirming the
qualifications of components selected for Domestic Content requirements, ultimate approval for
products meeting Domestic Content requirements is held by the IESO and is subject to their audit of the
manufacturer and all product documentation following the completion of construction of the Project. The
failure of a component to meet Domestic Content Requirements would be an event of default under the
Contract.

Net-Meter - Electricity Market Pricing: In line with forecast from the IESO, the Co-operative anticipates
that the market price for electricity in Ontario will continue to increase over time. As with many aspects
of the forecasts of the Co-operative, CED Co-op cannot guarantee that prices will continue to increase at
any particular rate, increase at all, or that prices will not decrease. This could have a negative effect on the
profitability of Net-Meter and other projects that rely on the market price of electricity.

Net-Meter - Market Structure Changes / Other Regulatory: The Co-operative may enter into Net-Meter
structures with various customers and partners that are dependent upon certain electricity market
characteristics or pricing structures. These market characteristics and pricing structures may change
over time, including through legislation or other industry and market effects. The co-operative cannot
guarantee that changes to market characteristics and pricing structures will not have adverse effects on
the revenues or profitability of projects.

Net-Meter - Use of electricity produced on site: Current regulations allow for the value of electricity
produced from net-meter systems to be realized only for that which is also consumed on site within a 12-
month period. If the electricity consumer counterparty to an agreement with the Co-operative is unable
to use all electricity that the Co-operative produces from a system within a 12-month period, and is unable
or unwilling to continue to purchase the energy, the financial profitability of a project may be diminished.
Factors that could affect this include, but are not limited to, system production exceeding forecasts,
energy consumption lower than forecasts and vacancy of the facility.

System/ Facility - Environmental Conditions: The Co-operative does not have active knowledge of any
environmental concerns that could deter proceeding with the installation, operation or acquisition of the
Project Portfolio, or new Projects at this time. Environmental activity and sector registry processes have
been completed for the ground mounted Projects under contract, and the Co-operative anticipates that
all future Projects will continue to meet environmental compliance requirements. At this time, Ontario
requires no environmental assessment for rooftop Solar PV Facilities. However, there can be no
assurances given that the IESO or other Government bodies will not review or change the environmental
requirements of Projects owned or operated by CED Co-op.

System/ Facility - Failure of Equipment: The Solar PV and other Renewable Energy equipment the
Cooperative intends to install is expected to be low maintenance and trouble-free. Solar panels are
typically covered by warranty for 10 years against manufacturer’s defect and 30-40 years for the
performance of the Solar Panel. Inverters are expected to be covered by a minimum warranty for 7-12
years with DC optimizers and other power electronics warranted for up to 20 years. The dual-axis tracker
systems typically carry a 2-year warranty. Should issues with the solar panels, inverters, trackers and/or
other equipment installed within a Facility develop, there could be a loss of energy production and/or
associated revenues for the period of time that a failure occurs. This loss may not be covered by warranty
or insurance, which may lower the Co-operative’s profitability. The Co-operative shall seek to remedy this

Page | 71



through insurance, but such insurance may not be available; it may, in the Co-operative’s discretion, be
cost-prohibitive to obtain or may not provide coverage in all circumstances.

System/ Facility - Lease Agreements: The Co-operative, the JVs, OpCo and the LPs in which the Co-
operative holds an interest are parties to a number of executed Lease Agreements. Lease Agreements in
which the Co-operative holds an Economic Interest have, or will be, negotiated on a Property Owner by
Property Owner basis and the final form of the Lease Agreement to be entered into with each Property
Owner could vary, perhaps materially, from one another, and from the summary of the terms of the Lease
Agreement as described in Section 3.9. It is also envisioned that many Property Owner’s properties will be
subject to a mortgage or mortgages. If a Property Owner’s property were sold under power of sale or
were foreclosed upon, then such proceedings may terminate the Lease Agreement prematurely. The Co-
operative shall seek to ensure that a non-disturbance clause is included in each Lease Agreement to
ensure that any mortgagee must permit the Co-operative to remain in possession in the event that a
Property Owner’s property is sold under power of sale or foreclosed upon. However, Property Owners
and/or mortgagees may be unwilling to enter into such non-disturbance agreements. The Co-operative
may nevertheless elect to proceed with Projects under such arisk.

System/ Facility - Market Risks: As the Co-operative contemplates entry into new market opportunities,
there are a number of risk factors that affect the development of new business models as well as the
development of projects, whether based on existing or new technologies. These include, but are not
limited to; customer risks such as defaulting on payments, defaulting on contract terms, misuse of
equipment or facilities, customer solvency, changing customer base, vacancy and availability of
customers; geographic risks such as the location/transportability of assets, access to customers or
markets, evolving zoning, electrical safety code and building code requirements and changing electrical
grid requirements; and product or service risks such as market fit, pricing, suitability, reliability, warranty,
services costs, liability and other risks. Each of these could cause material negative effects on the
financial results of the Co-operative.

System/ Facility - Roof, Project Area, or Parking Lot Issues: The Co-operative, or agents of the Co-
operative, have reviewed or intend to review the conditions of rooftops, land areas, parking lot areas, or
other areas of facilities and properties prior to the installation of equipment. The Co-operative cannot
guarantee that the areas in which systems or equipment may be installed will remain suitable for the
installation. This may require interventions including, without limitation, temporary removal and
reinstallation, modifications to the system or its capabilities, or permanent removal of some or all of the
system or equipment. This may cause additional operating expenses, maintenance expenses or
diminished revenues including loss of all revenues from a project.

System/ Facility - Structural Damage upon installation: It is the intention of the Co-operative to ensure
that operating entities controlled by the Co-operative maintain insurance that would cover any damage
caused during the construction or installation of Projects. Additionally, the Co-operative intends that all
contractors hired to perform the installation work will be required to have appropriate insurance in place.
Nevertheless, the cost of the Facilities could increase if damage occurs during installation where the cost
to repair the damage is higher than the amount that will be covered by insurance. This would have a
negative impact on the profitability of the Co-operative, as would any increase in insurance policy costs
owing to insurance claims made.

System/ Facility - Technology Risk: Renewable Energy technology remains in its early stages in the
Province of Ontario. It is anticipated this technology will evolve and improve rapidly and that future
technology will become more efficient and more reliable. It is further anticipated that the technology
available at the time of this Offering Statement and used as the basis of the Business Plan will be, when
compared to new technology, less efficient and may, during the 20-year term of the FIT Contracts, or the
lifespan of the net-meter or other Facilities, become obsolete. With the development of new technology,
the maintenance, costs and availability of replacement parts for existing systems or for new systems may
vary significantly from forecasts for operations and maintenance expenses.

System/ Facility - Weather Variations and Snow Cover: The forecasts generated by the Co-operative
and its suppliers are based on long-term climate averages. Significant variations from averages can and
do occur. The Co-operative, along with the general public, is aware that climate and climate averages are
changing and that those changes are difficult to predict on a micro-climate basis. Some of the potential
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effects of this are described as follows, though this is not an exhaustive list: Increases in temperatures
negatively affect solar panel production, increases in humidity and cloud cover can reduce irradiance and
sun hours, increasing winds can force solar tracking equipment to spend more time in safe modes which
are less productive, variations in humidity, temperature and wind can cause increases in snow and ice
accumulation on system which shade panels. As the financial forecasts rely on long-term financial
prospects of Facility productivity and project revenues, changes to climate may adversely affect the
profitability of the Co-operative.

Unknown Risk Factors: The Co-operative may also be subject to Risk Factors that are currently unknown,
and which could potentially affect its profitability and solvency. These Risk Factors could include but are
not limited to failure to comply with governing statutes, increased competition and other factors that limit
the Co-operative’s future growth and investment prospects. While the Board does not view these Risk
Factors as of animmediate concern, potential adverse changes in these areas may limit the Co-
operative's solvency and/or its ability to pay interest on or redeem Bonds, or pay dividends on or redeem
Shares.
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6. PORTFOLIO, HISTORICAL PERFORMANCE AND USE OF PROCEEDS OF THE OFFERING

The 2022 audited financial statements of the Co-operative are included as Appendix B. The current
Portfolio of Projects of CED Co-op is outlined below.

CED Co-op is currently an owner in 29 of the 31 operating FIT Contracts in the Portfolio. The 2 projects
with no CED Co-op ownership are projects numbered 21 and 22 below. These are held via class C units
within the LP. These have been included within the SunShare2 LP structure for financing convenience as
they are owned by VCT, who also holds some of the class B units of the LP, sharing ownership with CED
Co-op on these related projects (numbers 19 and 20 in the list below). This is further outlined in the
organization charts located in Section 3.6.1. - Business Models - FIT and microFIT Contracts.

# |Name Portfolio |KW-AC| Install-Type |FIT-Rate| FIT- |Co-Op|Community|Domestic| Geographic Area |Contract End Date
Versio [ Owns CCSA Content
1 [97A Dev - Solvation-V SunSharelP| 500 |Ground 2-Axis| $0.802 | 2.11 | 100% None 60% Blind River 31/Aug/36
2 |97C Dev - Solvation-VF SunSharelLP| 490 |Ground 2-Axis| $0.683 | 2.11 | 100% None 60% Blind River 31/Aug/36
3 |97E Dev - Solvation-F SunSharelLP| 330 |Ground2-Axis| $0.792 | 2.11 | 100% None 60% Blind River 31/Aug/36
4 11004 Cath - Wellesley Arena SunSharelLP| 300 Rooftop $0.329 | 3.01 | 100% >50% None Waterloo Region 1/Mar/36
5 |1 Green - St Clements Arena SunSharelLP| 200 Rooftop $0.329 | 3.01 | 100% >50% None Waterloo Region 10/Dec/35
6 (4639 Lobs - Wellesley Twn Off SunSharellP| 100 Rooftop $0.345 | 3.01 | 100% >50% None Waterloo Region 10/Dec/35
7 15279 Ament - Linwood Comm Ctr |SunSharellP| 100 Rooftop $0.345 | 3.01 | 100% >50% None Waterloo Region 29/Feb/36
8 |660 Superior - Salus Marine SunSharelLP| 160 Rooftop $0.329 | 3.01 | 51% >50% None Waterloo Region 10/Dec/35
9 [20 Crestview - J Hallman SunSharelLP| 100 Rooftop $0.345 | 3.01 | 51% >50% None Waterloo Region 10/Dec/35
101|550 Princess - Shallow Lake Arena |[SunSharelLP| 250 Rooftop $0.329 | 3.01 | 100% None None Owen Sound 2/Mar/36
11(137534 Conc Rd 7 - Derby Arena SunSharelLP| 100 Rooftop $0.345 | 3.01 | 100% None None Owen Sound 2/Mar/36
1212316 Bridge - Schiedel View Farms| CEDC Turkey | 250 Rooftop $0.329 | 3.01 | 51% >50% None Waterloo Region 8/Feb/36
13(50 Kent - MCC Ontario SunShare2 LP| 200 Rooftop $0.329 | 3.01 | 100% >50% None Waterloo Region 27/Feb/36
14|62 Janti - Cyr SunShare2 LP| 250 [Ground 2-Axis| $0.398 | 2.11 | 100% >50% 60% Greater Sudbury 21/Aug/36
15104 Dawson Rd - M Balnar SunShare2 LP | 250 Rooftop $0.316 | 3.1 51% >50% None Guelph 9/0ct/36
16|367 Woodlawn Rd - M Balnar SunShare2 LP| 80 Rooftop $0.343 | 3.1 51% >50% None Guelph 12/Jun/36
17(1315 Hutchison Rd - Leis Pet SunShare2 LP | 250 Rooftop $0.316 | 3.1 51% >=15% None Waterloo Region 18/0ct/36
18(30 Mumford - Perfetto Mfg SunShare2 LP| 180 Rooftop $0.316 | 3.1 | 100% >=15% None Greater Sudbury 22/0ct/36
19(516 Simmons - PIT 3 North SunShare2 LP | 250 |Ground 2-Axis| $0.298 | 3.01 | 51% >50% None Greater Sudbury 12/Jul/37
20|516 Simmons - PIT 3 South SunShare2LP| 250 [Ground 2-Axis| $0.298 | 3.01 | 51% >50% None Greater Sudbury 16/Jul/37
21(1665 River - Pichette (NSPG) SunShare2 LP| 250 [Ground 2-Axis| $0.298 | 3.01 | 0% None None Greater Sudbury 1/Sep/37
22(1689 River - Beland (NSPG) SunShare2 LP| 250 [Ground 1-Axis| $0.298 | 3.01 0% None None Greater Sudbury 1/Sep/37
23|40 Rutherford Crt - J Oskam CEDC Oskam | 100 Rooftop $0.343 | 3.1 51% >=15% None Guelph 22/0ct/36
24120 Massey Rd - RohnBrad SunShare3LP | 250 Rooftop $0.316 | 3.1 | 51% >=15% None Guelph 20/0ct/36
2545 Massey Rd - RohnBrad SunShare3LP| 250 Rooftop $0.316 | 3.1 51% >=15% None Guelph 22/0ct/36
26 (400 Southgate Dr - RohnBrad SunShare3LP| 250 Rooftop $0.316 | 3.1 51% >=15% None Guelph 22/0ct/36
27|40 Lewis Rd - RohnBrad SunShare3LP| 250 Rooftop $0.316 | 3.1 51% >=15% None Guelph 31/Aug/36
28|1Boland Dr - Erin Community Ctr |SunShare4 LP| 250 Rooftop $0.225 | 4.02 | 51% >50% None | Wellington County 24/Feb/38
29|1473 Gingerich Rd - Erb Transport | SunShare4 LP | 500 Rooftop $0.225 | 4.02 | 51% >50% None | Waterloo Region 7/Mar/38
30|1381 Huron Rd - Crystal Brook SunShare4 LP| 150 Rooftop $0.225 | 4.02 | 51% >50% None Waterloo Region 14/Mar/38
31|505 Dutton Dr - Oakbridge SunShare4 LP | 150 Rooftop $0.225 | 4.02 | 51% >50% None Waterloo Region 7/Mar/38

In addition to these FIT Contracts, CED Co-op is operating 86 microFIT projects, a summary of which is as

follows:
Description Portfolio KW-AC Install-Type FIT-Rate | Co-Op Owns | Geographic Area
27 microFIT Systems (2117921 - CED Solar |10 kW / System |Ground - Seasonally Adjustable | $ 0.802 100% Fort Frances, ON
4 microFIT Systems {2117921 - CED Solar |10 kW / System |Ground - Seasonally Adjustable | $ 0.642 100% Thunder Bay, ON
11 microFIT Systems 2117921 - CED Solar |10 kW / System |Ground - Seasonally Adjustable | $ 0.642 100% Dryden, ON
22 microFIT Systems (2117921 - CED Solar |10 kW / System |Ground - Seasonally Adjustable | $ 0.802 100% Rainy River, ON
6 microFIT Systems (2117921 - CED Solar |10 kW / System |Ground - Seasonally Adjustable | $ 0.642 100% Dorion, ON
16 microFIT Systems |2117921 - CED Solar |10 kW / System |Ground - Seasonally Adjustable | $ 0.802 100% Dorion, ON
86 microFIT Systems 860 kW
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6.1 FINANCIAL AND OPERATING PERFORMANCE OF THE CO-OPERATIVE

As expected, the weather continues to have a significant effect on the overall performance and revenue
from the portfolio. The Co-operative believes that this represents the greatest ongoing risk to the
financial performance of CED Co-op.

6.1.1. Impacts of Weather

The following graphs show the historical average daily sun hours for several regions of the province from
1984 through to the end of 2022 - 39 years of data.

These are the areas of the province in which the FIT Projects operated by CED Co-op are located.

This data is obtained through the RETScreen application produced by Natural Resources Canada, with
much of the data and analysis being sourced from the NASA Prediction of Worldwide Energy Resources
(POWER) program. The trendline for each region has been added as a dotted line. As shared in previous
years, there continue to be further refinements on analysis and processing of historical weather data,
resulting in changes to the historical averages. The granularity of the available data further continues to
represent challenges with irradiance data being smoothed into averages. An example of this is outlined
below. In examining 3 sample scenarios, that can all result in a similar average number of sun hours
throughout a day, but result in markedly different kWh of energy generation from a solar installation.
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The three scenarios are further described as follows:

Mid-Day Overcast - Full sun early and late in the day, but dark overcast clouds or rain showers come in
for the middle part of the day. When the sunis in its more optimal alighment with the panels, very little is
making its way through the clouds, and results in fewer kWh of energy production.

Light Cloud / Haze - The sky is predominantly cloudy with light/wispy clouds and haze throughout the
entire day. The production is typically in line, corresponding with the sun hours for the day.

Mid-Day Sun - Despite an overcast or cloudy start and end of the day, the sun breaks through the cloud
during the part of the day when it is in best alighment with the solar panels. This results in energy
generation above the expected amount based on the average sun hours for the day.

In analyzing site production through the above scenarios, solar installations have demonstrated a +/-
range of approximately 20% in energy generation on days with identical average sun hours. This is
further supporting the need for more granular weather data in order to better understand what
performance should be expected from sites given actual site conditions.

The following is the updated irradiance data for the areas of the Province in which the microFIT projects
operated by CED Co-op are located:

The trendline has again been added for each region as a dotted line. The sun hour variations here
demonstrate a pattern in that all regions seemed to follow each other more closely in the first half of this
data period, but now seem to exhibit much more regional variation in recent years.

In addition to variations in sun hours, the amount and types of snowfall continue to be a challenge to
understand and model. Differences in temperature, humidity, wind speed and wind direction create
different types of snow events, allowing for the same amount of snow to, at certain times, slide off of the
solar panels, while at other times stick to the surfaces and frames and form into ice, impacting
performance.

It is in the context of these factors that CED is working with VCT to develop a more in-depth production
modeling system with its own sources of irradiance and weather data. Itis planned that a first version of
this platform will be launched in late 2023.

At this time, CED Co-op is not able to make any definitive determinations in terms of where average sun
hours will go in the long-term in the context of the production forecasts of CED Co-op. Climate studies
have indicated that the standard deviation in annual sun hours is approximately 4% to 6%. This would
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indicate that ~70% of the time, revenue fluctuations resulting from variance in sun hours will be within a
plus or minus of $360,000 from plan based on the operations of the current portfolio. The Co-operative
expects that there will continue to be years that are above average, and years that are below average,
with the belief that the long-term average will be in line with forecasts.

Summarizing the data for recent years, the following are the variances in regional sun hours providing the
weighted average for the systems in production that are operated by the Co-operative:

Projects Climate Area 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

FIT Blind Rver (5.23%) 0.67% (4.04%) (5.69%) (1.96%) (5.26%)
FIT Greater Qudbury (7.84%) (2.04%) (2.62%) (5.43%) (3.09%) (6.96%)
FIT Guelph (2.92%) (3.17%) (3.40%) 2.07% 0.40% 0.41%
FIT Owen Sund (7.22%) (2.99%) (5.79%) (0.19%) (1.28%) 1.36%
FIT Waterloo Region (2.92%) (3.17%) (3.40%) 2.07% 0.40% 0.41%
microFIT  Dryden (2.41%) (0.70%) 3.43% 0.60% (6.44%)
microFIT  Fort Frances (2.91%) (1.43%) 5.97% 3.20% (5.65%)
microFIT  Thunder Bay (5.25%) (2.04%) 2.13% 1.11% (3.38%)
microFIT  Rainy River (1.61%) (0.77%) 7.23% 3.84% (3.01%)

Weighted Average  (4.02%)  (1.44%)  (3.18%)  (1.37%)  (0.62%)  (3.62%)

Adjusting performance targets from the forecast revenues based on modeling from climate averages to
the expected revenues based on actual sun hours, the following is the performance of the Portfolio over
the past several years:

Revenues 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Forecast Revenues $ 3,389,340 $ 4,411,445 $ 5801438 $ 5810023 $ 5713650 $ 5,565,036
Actual Revenues $ 3119666 $ 4,361,841 $ 5426354 $ 5477,560 $ 5,556,309 $ 5,227,932
Variance ($ 269,674) ($ 49,604) ($ 375,085) ($ 332,463) ($ 157,341) ($ 337,104)
Favourable/ (Unfavourable) (7.96%) (1.12%) (6.47%) (5.72%) (2.75%) (6.06%)
Irradiance Adjusted

Expected Revenues $ 3,253,027 $ 4,347,752 $ 5616,771 $ 5730,328 $ 5,677,969 $ 5,363,342
Actual Revenues $ 3119666 $ 4,361,841 $ 5426354 $ 5477,560 $ 5556,309 $ 5,227,932
Variance ($ 133,362) $ 14,090 ($ 190,417) ($ 252,768) ($ 121,661) ($ 135,410)
Favourable/ (Unfavourable) (4.10%) 0.32% (3.39%) (4.41%) (2.14%) (2.52%)
Operating Expenses 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Forecast Expenses $ 1648481 § 992259 $ 1,148545 $ 1,255063 $ 1,287,061 $ 1,402,545
Actual Expenses $ 1725796 $ 908525 $ 1,216,167 $ 1,319,150 $ 1,401,695 $ 1,458,890
Variance $ 77,315 ($ 83,734) $ 67,622 $ 64,087 $ 114,634 $ 56,345
(Favourable)/ Unfavourable 4.69% (8.44%) 5.89% 5.11% 8.91% 4.02%

In aggregate across the Portfolio, on a weighted average basis, the sun hours have been below plan. As
identified above, there are known problems with the accuracy and relevancy of the sun hour data
currently being used in calculations, and CED looks forward to developing more accurate sources and
analysis. Commentary on the previous years’ performance has been provided in management reports
presented at the respective annual general meetings. For the 2022 results, there are several factors that
affected results, as outlined here below.
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6.1.2. Specific Items Affecting Performance

SolarEdge Inverters

Failures of SolarEdge equipment remain at elevated levels, continuing since 2020. In 2022, there were 140
authorizations provided by SolarEdge to replace equipment at the 31 FIT projects. In many cases there
were multiple site visits conducted prior to gaining the authorizations to replace equipment. Further, many
of the cases included the replacement of multiple components as part of the authorizations (optimizers and
inverters). On average, there is a visit to one of the 31 FIT projects every working day of the year to
troubleshoot and solve SolarEdge issues. The impact of this is significant. In examining the highest value
projects (Solvation V, VF and F), these are all virtually identically equipped and sited projects. Across these
three projects, there are 65 SolarEdge 20kW inverters. The median production level of these 65 inverters
was 40,011 kWh in 2022. If the inverters that produced below this median level had met this level, there
would have been approximately $165,000 of additional revenues from these three projects alone. While
there were some tracking issues that contributed to some of this shortfall, the bulk is related to inverter
performance. All 31 of the FIT projects owned and operated by CED Co-op are based on SolarEdge inverter
systems.

For a significant periods of 2022, due to the ongoing supply chain issues, SolarEdge, was experiencing
delays in parts. Because of this, all warranty claims were taking months to process and we were not
receiving replacement stock from SolarEdge in any timely manner. While we had some replacement stock
on hand for the beginning of the year to combat the issues on these sites, our stock dwindled as the year
went on and we were subject to these challenges faced by SolarEdge, waiting on replacements. SolarEdge
has since seen improvements in shipping and we have been able to get replacement stock quicker, while
still not quite as quick as we would like. Here is an excerpt from a press release discussing this:

‘Resurgences of Covid-19 cases and the emergence of new variants may adversely impact our results of
operations. For example, in the second quarter of 2022, the mandatory government shutdowns resulting
from the increase in Covid-19 cases in Shanghai, that were eased in the beginning of the third quarter of
2022, led to delays in our scheduled shipments from the Shanghai port.” And ‘While we have not
experienced any new disruptions resulting directly from Covid-19 in the fourth quarter of 2022, the
pandemic and general global economic conditions continue to present challenges to our operations and
business. In the fourth quarter of 2022, we began to witness a decrease in shipment prices and transit
times, both however are still not at their pre-Covid-19 levels.”

https://www.marketscreener.com/quote/stock/SOLAREDGE-TECHNOLOGIES-1-21452890/news/SOLAREDGE-TECHNOLOGIES-
INC-MANAGEMENT-S-DISCUSSION-AND-ANALYSIS-OF-FINANCIAL-CONDITION-AND-RESULT-43056932/

SolarEdge is not the only inverter manufacturer that is continuing to face supply chain issues around
computer chips and transistors, specifically IGBT’s - insulated-gate bipolar transistors. The forecast is for
constraints on these items to persist for most of 2023. CED Co-op is currently working with SolarEdge to
explore wholesale changes of equipment at some sites. The co-operative is also exploring replacing
SolarEdge equipment with inverters from other manufacturers. No definite plans for changes have been
made at this time.

Storm Damage from 2021

A storm moved through the Dowling, Ontario area, northwest of Sudbury on August 29, 2021. Two of
CED’s Projects, those located at 516 Simmons Rd, Pit3 North and Pit3 South were damaged. Of the 26
trackers across those two sites, 9 were damaged and approximately a dozen panels were blown off.
System production across the two sites was brought down by approximately 30% as a result of the
damage.

Due to replacement parts being in low supply, and shipping challenges in the global supply chain, repairs to
the systems were not able to be fully completed until the end of January 2022. The repairs involved the
substantial rebuild of the 9 trackers that were damaged. The systems are now fully functional again.
Though insurance did reimburse the majority of costs, the deductible expenses and work involved in filing
and handling the claim increased operating costs in 2022.
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CED Solar microFIT portfolio communications

As outlined in previous offerings, the CED Solar microFIT portfolio was largely lacking real-time system
monitoring and site communications. As indicated, CED has invested in the design, testing and
acquisition of communications boxes to be fitted at each of the sites. Installation of the communications
and monitoring systems is completed, and data is available remotely at all locations. This has enabled
better monitoring of the systems to understand when production problems are arising.

In analyzing the performance of the systems in the portfolio, we are seeing improved performance at
most sites. In 2021, the median performance of the systems was just slightly above the sun-hour
adjusted target for the portfolio, and 51% of the projects performed at or above the adjusted target for
the year. In 2022, the median system performed at 4.7% above the sun-hour adjusted target and 68% of
the projects performed at or above the adjusted target for the year. While these improvements are
welcome, there were still some outliers that dragged down the average performance for the portfolio.
There were 7 systems with extended outages and challenges that significantly reduced the revenue from
the portfolio overall. These included mechanical damage from wind, though not enough to make an
insurance claim, metering issues and challenges associated with getting Hydro One to replace revenue
meters. Had these 7 systems performed at the median, this would have added $49,000 of revenues for
the year. All but one of these systems have been fully restored as of the writing of the Offering
Statement. The lastis scheduled for repair in Q2,2023.

With there being below average sun-hours throughout the areas in which the microFIT systems are
located in 2022 of 4.39%, the target of 1,169 is adjusted downward to reflect the reduced generating
potential providing an adjusted target of 1,118 kWh/kW. As shown below, the median system
performance of 1,171 kWh/kW is above the unadjusted target, and well above the adjusted target for the
microFIT systems, indicating the potential of these Facilities.

Target (KWh/kW) 1169
Actual SunHours -4.39% Median 1,171
Adjusted Target 1118 Average 1,097
kWh/kW Systems
1249-1281 6
1216-1248 11
1183-1215 13
1150-1182 11
1117-1149 7 48 Systems
1084-1116 3 23 Systems
1051-1083 7
1018-1050 2
985-1017 1
952-984 1
<=951 9
% of projects above adj target 68%
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6.1.3. Effects of COVID

While sun hours have been below average across the portfolio in several of the past few years, the Co-
operative is encouraged that, even in the meagre years, results have been within a few percent of plan.
Despite some constraints on availability of parts, as outlined above, CED Co-op has not experienced, and
does not expect to experience, the volatility in the revenues and expenses that have resulted for many
businesses in the uncertainty of the current pandemic.

As COVID figures less prominently, it is anticipated that there won’t be any further lockdowns. Though, should
they resume, the operations of the energy generation Projects of CED Co-op have specifically qualified as
essential work within the Province of Ontario’s listing of Essential Workplaces. These operating systems
are anticipated to continue to generate approximately 12 million kWh of clean electricity each year in
Ontario. This is enough energy to power approximately 1,500 households each year and reduces
emissions from electricity generation by approximately 8,500 tonnes every year. Further to the
operations of projects, the building of new capacity in energy generation has continued to be named as
essential work. While it cannot be guaranteed, the Co-operative believes that the construction and
operations of the Portfolio will continue to be classified as an essential service for a number of reasons:

Distributed Energy Resources (DER)

The Ontario electricity grid operator (IESO) encourages and values DER. As per the distributed nature of
the systems, this implies there is no single point of failure, adding resilience to the grid. The times when
solar energy systems are producing power are always peak times in the daily consumption rhythm.

Renewable Resource

The only input for an operating solar facility is sunshine. This is not a resource that can be constrained in
any way - by world leaders restricting exports/trade or other material supplies, and it does not rely on
global supply chains.

Clean Energy - Clean Air

As identified previously, in 2005, Ontario had 53 smog days, and pollution was estimated to cause the
economy $16 billion in hospital visits, lost work time due to illness, and even deaths. Through the greening
of the Ontario grid, largely through renewables, this has been brought that down to 4 smog and air health
advisories in total from 2015 through to the end of 2022. With the main cause of death due to COVID-19
coming from respiratory effects, now more than ever, it is important to keep air as clean as possible.
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6.1.4. Financial Statements and Reporting to Members

CED Co-op prepares its financial statements in accordance with IFRS. The revenue recognition policies
and expense recognition policies for accounting purposes are outlined in the notes to the financial
statements. Audited financial statements for the year ended 2022 are included as Appendix B.

The Co-op Act requires that all co-operatives that have more than 50 members, and that have any
securities issued (including Membership Shares), are required to have the financial statements audited by
an external auditor. As such, CED Co-op will continue to provide audited financial statements to Members
on an annual basis prior to the AGM. Each year, the audited financial statements will be presented at the
AGM for discussion and a vote will be held by the Members on the acceptance of the auditor's report. The
Members will further have the right to appoint the auditor for the following year’s financial statements by
means of a vote at the AGM.

Non-IFRS Measures

There are a number of points of difference between the presentation of the financial forecasts that have
been provided as Appendix A, and the presentation of the financial statements, as have been provided in
Appendix B. The information presented in the financial forecasts include certain non-IFRS financial
measures such as “Adjusted Revenues”, “Adjusted Expenses”, “Adjusted Cash Flow from Operations”, and
“Adjusted EBITDA”, among others. Further, the financial forecasts do not conform to IFRS because the Co-
operative has chosen to apply accounting policies that are not in accordance with IFRS in a number of areas
including consolidation, investments in associates, lease accounting, depreciation, amortization of
issuance of issuance costs, amortization of financing expenses, and potentially others. See further
discussion in the sections and pages that follow. These measures and accounting policies are not
recognized under IFRS and do not have standardized meanings prescribed by IFRS and are therefore
unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Rather, these measures and
accounting policies are provided to give a further understanding of our results of operations from
management’s perspective. Accordingly, these measures and accounting policies should not be
considered in isolation nor as a substitute for analysis of our financial information reported under IFRS.
Selected differences are outlined here, including items affected through consolidation method vs equity
method for accounting for investments in associates and leasing costs. Other differences exist in
depreciation, arising from revaluation of assets compared to book values, amortization of financing
expenses, amortization of issuance costs and potentially others.

Investments in Associates

Investment in Associate refers to the investment in an entity in which the Co-operative has significant
influence but does not have full control. Accounting for investment in associates is done using the equity
method. In the equity method, only the proportionate share of net income earned by the Co-operative is
shown on the single line. This net income takes the Project revenues and subtracts all operating
expenses, including non-cash items such as amortization, and multiplies this by the ownership share. The
financial forecasts are prepared using the full consolidation method, where all Project revenues and
expenses are shown in the relevant areas of the statement of operations, with the proportionate share of
net income related to the other party being included in the non-controlling interest. This will result in
higher forecast revenues, expenses and depreciation, among other items, in the financial forecast than
are expected to be shown on the financial statements. There are two Projects held in structures that are
reported under investment in associates at this time, though more could be developed in the future.

Lease accounting changes

In January 2016, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) published a new standard, IFRS 16
Leases, that sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases, with an implementation requirement beginning on January 1, 2019. This attempts to treat all
leases similarly and reduces any opportunities for companies to perform "off balance-sheet" purchasing
or financing, in an effort to make companies’ financial performance more comparable.

For CED Co-op, this has implications in that there are a number of projects wherein the land or rooftop
underlying a solar project has been leased. The biggest change introduced by the new standard is that
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assets and liabilities created through leasing will be brought onto CED Co-op's balance sheet as if the
'right to use' the land or rooftop under the solar project were purchased and financed with debt.

As aresult of this change, lease expenses are no longer recorded as an operating expense, representing
actual cash amounts being paid to landowners. Rather, it will be represented through the amortization of
the asset value on a straight-line basis with an equal amount expensed each year (Amortization of Right-
Of-Use Assets). Further to this, there will be an additional notional financing expense (Accreted Interest
on Leasing Obligations) to represent an interest-like expense on fictitiously borrowing money to purchase
the right-to-use assets, as described above.

In preparing the financial forecasts, the lease expenses have been shown as the direct cost rather thanin
accordance with IFRS 16. As aresult, there will be further differences in presentation between the
financial forecast and the financial statements.

For direct amounts, on the Statement of Profit and Loss, in 2022 these combined amounts result in a total
expense to be recognized of $371,353, when actual payments on leases only totaled $302,120, increasing
expenses for accounting purposes by about $69,000, and further reducing the Net Income of the Co-
operative within the Financial Statements. The nature of straight-line amortizations, combined with
financing expenses (notional or real), is that CED Co-op will be recognizing significantly more accounting
vs actual expense in the early years of this structure with the trend reversing over time, and ending with
the Co-operative having less accounting vs actual expense in the waning years of the leases, netting out
to zero over the long term.

In addition to this, there are three lines on the Statement of Financial Position that are notional, in
connection with IFRS 16 presentation of Lease arrangements. The first is an asset line for the leases;
'Right-of-Use Assets' of $2,487,569 which represents the remaining value of the right to use the rooftops
and land areas beneath the solar projects within the current leases. Accompanying and largely offsetting
this are the lines 'Current Portion of Leasing Obligations' and 'Leasing Obligations' which combine to
equal $2,641,625 which has been calculated as the present value of the lease payments using a discount
or financing rate. This has resulted in a deterioration to the equity of CED Co-op for accounting purposes
of approximately $154,000, in addition to the Net Income implications outlined above.

Revaluation of Assets

The Project assets will be recognized at cost when they are acquired by CED Co-op. After recognition as
an asset, in accordance with IFRS rules, an item of property, plant and equipment whose fair value can be
measured reliably may be carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations shall be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

In applying the revaluation model, the Co-operative measures the fair value of its energy generation
equipment as the present value of the expected future cash flows that a potential seller could expect to
receive for the assets. The main inputs into the valuation are 1) Projected future revenues; 2) Projected
future operating costs; 3) After-tax cash flows; and 4) Discount rate.

As aresult of applying the revaluation model based on the historical performance of the projects and
factoring in losses from reduced sun hours and preventable project down time, CED Co-op determined
that the Projects held by CED had fair values greater than the book values (which included amortization
for the year). Accordingly, the Co-operative recognized total net gains on revaluation of $12,158 through
‘Losses on revaluation of energy generation equipment’ of $71,117 and ‘Other comprehensive income’ of
$83,275 in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Depreciation vs Principal Repayment

As per previous forecasts, including the first offering launched in 2015, the Co-operative has expected
that net income, as shown on financial statements, will be negative for the first several years following the
addition of assets to the portfolio. This is mainly due to the difference between cash flow and net income
as measured using traditional accounting models, now made even slightly more challenging with the
changes in accounting for leases under IFRS. The Co-operative has, between loans, bonds and shares,
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effectively financed 100% of asset development and acquisition. As such, when payments are made on
these amounts, more interest (and dividends) is paid in early years than is paid towards the principal (and
shares repurchased). Financial statements are prepared using depreciation as a means of spreading the
expense of an asset over its useful life rather than reflecting principal repayment, though all of the
interest expense is included as it is incurred by the organization, rather than being similarly spread over
the life of the asset. As outlined above, this same model is now being applied to how lease expenses are
recognized.

The following is a high-level example for illustration purposes only. There are notable differences
between this example and the actual circumstance of the Co-operative, and this should not be viewed
as a forecast.

Starting Assumptions:

e $40,000,000 value of a portfolio of projects

e $2,230,202 value of Right-of-use assets (Leases - present value of payments discounted at 6.35%)
e 20-year useful life of project and lease assets (depreciate 5% per year straight line over 20 years)
e 10.5% revenue on assets over 20 years (gross revenue before any expenses)

e 6.35% average cost of capital, a loan repaid over 20 years

¢ Notional interest cost of $141,618 for Right-of-Use Assets (6.35% of $3,000,000 lease value)

e Actual Lease expenses of $200,000 per year

e Actual Operating expenses of $450,000 per year

e Actual Administrative expenses of $250,000 per year

With the numbers in the starting assumptions outlined above, the following scenario is created:

Accounting Cash Flow
Revenue 4,859,731 4,859,731
Project Costs -450,000 -450,000
Administrative Expenses -250,000 -250,000
Interest -2,540,000 -2,540,000
Proceeds 1,619,731 1,619,731
Amortization of Right-of-Use (Accounting) -111,510
Accretion of Lease (Accounting) -141,618
Lease Expense (Cash Flow) -200,000
Depreciation (Accounting) -2,000,000
Principal Repayment (Cash Flow) -1,047,119
Net Income (Accounting) -633,397
Available for Distribution (Cash Flow) 372,612

As noted in the example above, there is more than a $1 million difference between depreciation and
amortization of right-of-use assets in the accounting perspective and principal repayment and lease
payments in the cash flow perspective in the first year.
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Over time, this difference narrows and eventually reverses as the portion of principal repayment
increases while interest decreases, and a similar reversal occurs within the accounting for lease
payments. The cumulative Depreciation and Amortization of Right of Use and the cumulative Principal
Repayment and Lease payments finally equalize at the end of the life of the projects, as outlined in the
graph below.

Over time, these accounting losses accumulate, significantly decreasing the equity as presented on the
financial statements of the Co-operative before the reversal begins and equity begins to turn towards
positive around the 8™ year. As shown above, this amounts to a timing difference as the end points for
the asset values and cumulative amounts equal out at the end. For this reason, the Co-op has elected to
perform an asset revaluation to market value at the end of each year. This results in financial statement
adjustments that increase the holding value of the assets of the Co-operative to match the market value,
improving the equity position of CED Co-op and reducing some of the accounting losses.
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6.1.5. Financial and Portfolio Performance

As outlined above, CED Co-op expects the first several years of each project to have a negative net
income for accounting purposes. With CED Co-op having brought projects into the portfolio in each of
2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, and with the anticipation of new projects being developed, it is anticipated
that the Co-operative may continue to have negative net income showing on its financial statements for
the next several years, depending on how quickly additional Projects are developed.

Notwithstanding expecting negative net income, financial results for the year ended December 31, 2022
are below plan. A number of factors outlined above, beyond weather variation, have affected the financial
performance of the Portfolio for 2022. While it has been believed that the shortfall of revenues related to
performance issues either have or can be resolved, the reality is that it appears that new issues arise
almost as quickly as others are resolved. To better account for this, CED has reduced revenue forecasts
by 2%, or approximately $110,000 annually, while also increasing operating expense forecasts.

In further response to revenue shortfalls, the board has declared dividends on the Class A Preference
Shares and Class B Preference Shares at a lower rate from the beginning of 2020 through to the end of
2022 than that which was originally forecast. The Co-operative has and will continue to be working to
achieve portfolio performance in line with their full capabilities. Based on the best year’s performance of
each of the Projects in the Portfolio, adjusting for the sun hours experienced in those years, the Projects
have achieved $5,794,000 of annual revenues. The Co-operative believes that consistent annual
revenues of this level is reasonably achievable with the Projects currently in the Portfolio, despite using
lower values for budgeting purposes. The Co-operative expects to meet all borrowing covenants and pay
all debt obligations as agreed, even with lower revenues. Operating cashflows continue to be positive and
have increased over time.
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Project Portfolio performance for 2018 through 2022 is shown in the charts below

Legend

# Site Name Vs. Plan # Site Name Vs. Plan
1 367 Woodlawn 3.0% 15 45 Massey 4.5%
2 20 Crestview 0.1% 16 20 Massey 7.6%
3 Derby Arena -0.9% 17 400 Southgate 2.6%
4 5279 Ament Line 11% 18 40 Lewis 8.4%
5 4639 Lobsinger Line 2.9% 19 1004 Catherine -3.8%
6 40 Rutherford 1.6% 20 1689 River Rd 2.3%
7 30 Mumford -17.0% 21 1665River Rd -2.8%
8 660 Superior Dr 3.5% 22 Dowling South -1.6%
9 1Green St -1.7% 23 Dowling North -3.5%
10 Shallow Lake Arena -1.8% 24 62 Janti Rd -2.0%
11 50 Kent -5.8% 25 Solvation F 0.8%
12 104 Dawson -0.8% 26 Solvation VF -0.3%
13 1315 Hutchison -1.6% 27 Solvation V 1.4%
14 2316 Bridge St -5.2%
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Site Name

367 Woodlawn

20 Crestview
Derby Arena

5279 Ament Line
4639 Lobsinger Line
40 Rutherford

505 Dutton Dr
1381 HuronRd

30 Mumford

660 Superior

1 Green St

Shallow Lake Arena
50 Kent

1Boland

104 Dawson

1315 Hutchison

Vs. Plan
0.9%
-1.6%
-2.6%
0.0%
4.0%
-3.7%
3.6%
-4.5%
-15.1%
-15.0%
-5.7%
-5.6%
-3.1%
-7.3%
-6.6%
3.2%

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

Site Name
2316 Bridge St
45 Massey

20 Massey

40 Lewis

400 Southgate
1004 Catherine
1689 River Rd
1665 River Rd
Dowling South
Dowling North
62 Janti Rd
1473 Gingerich Rd
Solvation F
Solvation VF
Solvation V
CED microFITs

Vs. Plan
-21%
3.6%
6.7%
3.6%
6.0%

-22.0%
-12.4%
-17%
-6.0%
-7.0%
-7.5%
1.6%
-1.6%
-3.5%
-4.2%
-1.5%
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Legend

# Site Name Vs. Plan # Site Name Vs. Plan
1 367 Woodlawn -0.6% 17 2316 Bridge St -2.5%
2 20 Crestview -4.2% 18 45 Massey 0.5%
3 Derby Arena -3.6% 19 20 Massey 0.7%
4 5279 Ament Line -1.5% 20 40 Lewis 3.4%
5 4639 Lobsinger Line 3.7% 21 400 Southgate 5.7%
6 40 Rutherford -1.4% 22 1004 Catherine -19.9%
7 505 Dutton Dr 3.9% 23 1689 River Rd -10.3%
8 1381 Huron Rd -14.1% 24 1665 River Rd -3.7%
9 30 Mumford -3.5% 25 Dowling South -7.2%
10 660 Superior -5.5% 26 Dowling North -5.5%
11 1 Green St -9.7% 27 62JantiRd -5.3%
12 Shallow Lake Arena -5.6% 28 1473 Gingerich Rd -3.3%
13 50 Kent -5.6% 29  Solvation F -6.5%
14 1Boland -8.9% 30 Solvation VF -3.6%
15 104 Dawson -6.3% 31 Solvation V -6.8%
16 1315 Hutchison 0.7% 32  CED microFITs -2.5%
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-0.9%
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Site Name
2316 Bridge St
45 Massey

20 Massey

40 Lewis

400 Southgate
1004 Catherine
1689 River Rd
1665 River Rd
Dowling South
Dowling North
62 Janti Rd
1473 Gingerich Rd
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Solvation VF
Solvation V
CED microFITs

Vs. Plan
-1.2%
3.1%
0.4%
2.5%
0.3%
-19.9%
-2.3%
-1.9%
-5.2%
-5.2%
0.2%
-2.3%
-1.6%
-0.7%
-3.3%
-6.0%
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Legend

# Site Name Vs. Plan # Site Name Vs. Plan
1 367 Woodlawn 4.3% 17 2316 Bridge St -3.5%
2 20 Crestview -4.4% 18 45 Massey 6.3%
3 Derby Arena -4.6% 19 20 Massey 7.9%
4 5279 Ament Line -0.5% 20 40Lewis 13.3%
5 4639 Lobsinger Line 2.8% 21 400 Southgate 8.3%
6 40 Rutherford 3.1% 22 1004 Catherine -23.7%
7 505 Dutton Dr 53% 23 1689 RiverRd -9.7%
8 1381 Huron Rd -10.8% 24 1665 RiverRd 0.4%
9 30 Mumford -11.3% 25 Dowling South -55%
10 660 Superior 3.0% 26 Dowling North -10.0%
11 1 Green St -6.0% 27 62 JantiRd 3.2%
12 Shallow Lake Arena -5.9% 28 1473 Gingerich Rd 2.9%
13 50 Kent 0.9% 29  Solvation F -5.0%
14 1Boland -2.6% 30 Solvation VF -3.2%
15 104 Dawson 2.0% 31 Solvation V -9.7%
16 1315 Hutchison -0.4% 32  CED microFITs 1.5%
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6.2 USE OF PROCEEDS OF THE OFFERING

While operating solely under the FIT Program, opportunities for CED Co-op to develop and invest in new
projects were limited to the artificial market that was created by the program. This meant that the
frequency, timing and long-term opportunities to reinvest proceeds from existing projects into new
projects was uncertain. As aresult, the previous securities offered by the Co-operative were all designed
to be amortized and paid off within the lifespan and cash flows of the FIT Contracts.

Further, with the Application Window structure of the FIT Program, long periods of waiting for Application
results, and lengthy FIT program development processes through contract acceptance and Notice to
Proceed, this generally provided the Co-operative with the necessary timelines to develop an Offering
and raise funds in time to develop the various projects. Given the uncertain nature of Applications and
their success, and the unknown of the future, CED Co-op only sought to raise the funds required for the
known projects rather than raising funds on a speculative basis.

As the FIT Program wound down for new project opportunities, CED Co-op offered shorter term
securities such as 3-year and 5-year bonds, much shorter than the remaining life of the FIT Contracts held
by the Co-operative. This met Investor requests for shorter term securities and annual cash flows. This
also created the opportunity for CED Co-op to lower its costs of capital and provide ongoing investment
opportunities to members in the form of renewing shorter-term bonds while the Co-operative awaited
regulatory changes and explored project structures in the Net-Meter market.

With the expanded scope of project opportunities available to CED Co-op, and the ability to operate in the
natural markets of net-metering and other structures, the Co-operative anticipates that project
investment opportunities will be available on a much more frequent basis, and the timelines to develop
projects will shrink from years to months. Given this new reality, the Co-operative is utilizing the Class C
Preference shares as the best opportunity to match investment funds with project development.

CED Co-op plans to raise up to a maximum of $8 million through the sale of Class C Preference Shares to
Members and Non-Members in this Offering. These funds are intended to be used in the following
manner.

Summary - Use of funds if the maximum is raised, and investment priority:

$ 1,100,000 Reserves and Planned renewal of shorter-term securities, net of fundraising costs
$ 6,900,000 Investment in new projects - Solar Net-Meter

$ 8,000,000 Total Maximum

Renewing Short Term Securities

The FIT and microFIT contracts have a 20-year cash flow under the contract. CED Co-op has financed a
significant portion of the contracts through securities with a much shorter duration, a combination of 3-
year, 5-year and 10-year obligations. This has resulted in a mismatch of the duration of the obligations of
CED Co-op and those of the revenues from the FIT Contracts. This has been done for a number of
reasons, including:

e Responding to Investor desires for shorter term securities
e Creating opportunities for new investment and re-investment
e Reducing CED Co-op cost of Capital

As these shorter-term securities are paid out, a portion of these securities needs to be renewed in order
to match the appropriate repayment of principal used to finance the projects. The chart below denotes
how much has been raised by CED Co-op under each duration with the corresponding principal
repayments and compares it with how much principal repayment is required in order to match the cash
flow to the FIT contracts.
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Average Annual Average Years

Initial Rer.nal.n ng Principal Repayment- Remainingin
Term Principal ..
Remaining Term Term
3 $ 410,745 $ 410,745 1
5 $ 841289 $ 494,876 17
10 $ 1125757 $ 197,501 57
$ 2377792 $ 1,103,123
20 $ 2377792 $ 172,304 13.8
Difference $ 930,819

As noted above, CED Co-op is currently repaying an average of $1.10 million of principal on shorter-term
bonds on an annual basis, however, in order to maintain an amortization of these securities that matches
the FIT contracts, only $0.17 million of principal repayment towards bonds is required each year. Further
to this, CED co-op is paying off long-term debt with an amortization that is approximately 2 years less
than the length of the corresponding FIT Contracts. As aresult, CED Co-op intends to use a portion of the
capital raised under this Offering to renew short term securities to maintain matching cash flows and
obligations. This will effectively be seen as replenishing cash flow shortfalls over the 2023 and 2024
operating periods.

The anticipated cash flows from operations of CED Co-op for 2023, excluding anticipated investment and
fundraising activities, are as follows, and as outlined in Schedule A: Projected Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

$ 5,453,735 Revenue - Current Projects
$ (1,044,223) Expenses - Current Projects
$ (499,261) Administrative Expenses

$ 3,910,252 Cash from Operations

$ 3,910,252 Cash from Operations

$ 47525 Interest Income

$ (4,115,966) Payments on Debt Obligations - included in Section 7

$ (380,035) Anticipated Distributions to Non-Controlling Interests

$ (87,842) Anticipated Contributions to Maintenance Reserves

$ (653,214) Anticipated Cash Dividends Paid on Preference Shares (Optional - included in Section 7)
$ (376,515)

$ )

(1,655,796

Anticipated Repurchase of Preference Shares (Optional - included in Section 7)

Anticipated Cash Flow shortfalls for 2023 due to duration mismatch

$ 600,000 Approximate cash on hand at Dec. 31,2022 allocated to renewing securities
$ (1,655,796) Anticipated Cash Flow shortfalls for 2023 due to duration mismatch
$ (1,055,796) Anticipated cash flow needs for operations through to the end of 2023

$ 1,100,000 Desired funds to manage cash flow shortfall, reserves, as well as seasonality and
timing differences in revenue and expenses through to Q4, 2023
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New Project Opportunities

Any further funds available from Investments received under this Offering after accounting for the uses
outlined above may be used for other project investments or acquisitions, including the acquisition of
additional ownership in shared Projects currently within the Portfolio. Some preliminary project
opportunities are described in Section 4.1, Section 4.2. As noted, no agreements in relation to any of the
anticipated project opportunities are signed at this time, and this remains arisk that is described in
Section 5: Risk Factors - Business Prospects - No Guarantee of Projects.

6.2.1. Proceeds from the Previous Offering

In the previous Offering, dated March 31, 2022, the order of priority of usage of funds raised was outlined
as follows:

$ 1,300,000 Planned renewal of shorter-term securities, net of fundraising costs
$ 925,000 Project Acquisition

$ 5,775,000 Investment in new projects - Solar Net-Meter

$ 8,000,000 Total Maximum

Upon conclusion of the previous Offering on March 31, 2023, CED Co-op raised total investments of $1.63
million, and the funds are attributed within the operations of CED as follows:

$ 1,170,000 Reserves and Renewal of shorter-term securities
$ 65,000 Fundraising Expenses

$ 395,000 Shortfall from Operations

$ 1,630,000 Total Raised

6.2.2. Satisfying Obligations if Insufficient Capital is Raised

The Co-operative anticipates making payments of approximately $2.35 million to Members and Investors
in 2023. It is anticipated that, once again, there will be strong interest amongst Members and Investors to
return this money to the Co-operative in the form of new investment subscriptions.

As noted above, the Co-operative intends to raise approximately $1.1 million during this offering for cash
flow needs. If the Co-operative is unable to raise this minimum amount, the Co-operative will have to take
alternative measures, which may include the following:

e Over this time period, approximately $1.03 million in optional payments of dividends and
anticipated share repurchases of Class A Preference Shares and Class B Preference Shares is
anticipated to occur. As these are not required payments, the Co-operative could use thisas a
means of preserving capital.

e Inaddition to this, the Co-operative maintains positive relationships with lenders, and there
remain unleveraged assets of the Co-operative that could be utilized to obtain additional
financings.

e Failing the ability to cover obligations through these means, there remains a strong market for the
sale of FIT and microFIT projects.
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7. SECURITIES AND OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS OF CED CO-OP

CED Co-op has the following debt obligations and share obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2022.

Included are payments due in the coming periods:

Debt Obligations Balance As At Combined Principal and Interest Payments Due in the Following Periods
31-Dec-22 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thereafter

CWB Maxium -SS1-Tranchel $ 5,234,214 $ 638621 $ 638621 $ 638621 $ 638621 $3690,869 $ -
CWB Maxium - SS1-Tranche2 $ 5,106,325 $ 607163 $ 607163 $ 607163 $ 607163 $ 3682152 $ -
CWB Maxium - SS1-Tranche3 $ 609,255 $ 70566 $ 70566 $ 70566 $ 70566 $ 446,442 $ -
CWB Maxium -SS2 - Tranchel $ 4,327,380 $ 493235 $ 493235 $ 493235 $ 493235 $ 493235 $ 2953934
CWB Maxium -SS2 - Tranche2 $ 1,227,115 $ 140863 $ 140,863 $ 140,863 $ 140,863 $ 140,863 $ 840,109
CWB Maxium - 2117921 ABInc. $ 2,711,461 $ 544776 $ 544776 $ 544,776 $ 544776 $ 544776 $ 536,637
2300070 Ontario Ltd $ 1,019,569 $ 141400 $ 141,400 $ 141400 $ 141400 $ 141400 $ 565,395
SchiedelView Farms $ 181,239 $ 2889 $ 28896 $ 28896 $ 28896 $ 2889 $ 78,333
CEBA $ 120,000 $ 120,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Bond L1-4 (20 yr) - 2015 $ 3274628 $ 210,527 $ 317,636 $ - $ - $ 291,836 $ 6,082,249
Bond P1 (5 yr) - 2017 $ 130,325 $ 132,019 $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Bond Q1-5 (10 yr) - 2017 $ 1125,757 $ 226936 $ 226936 $ 226936 $ 226936 $ 226936 $ 198,559
Bond 02 (3yr) - 2019 $ 410,745 $ 415127 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Bond P2 (5 yr) - 2019 $ 710,965 $ 345836 $ 345836 $ 61,720 $ - $ - $ -

$ 26,188,977 $4115966 $ 3,555,929 $2,954,177 $2,892,457 $9,687,406 $11,255,216
Share Obligations Balance As At Anticipated repurchases (not required)

31-Dec-22 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thereafter

Membership Shares $ 8,100 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Class A Preference $ 5,227,660 $ 197910 $ 215725 $ 235140 $ 256,300 $ 279,370 $ 4,043,215
Class B Preference $ 2,981,900 $ 178,605 $ 191,105 $ 204,485 $ 218800 $ 234115 $ 1,954,790
Class C Preference $ 4,245,185 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

$ 12,462,845 $ 376,515 $ 406,830 $ 439625 $ 475100 $ 513485 $5,998,005

Return of capital on the Class A Preference Shares, pursuant to the terms of the share offering documents, is
scheduled to occur over the following 15 years, including the current year of 2023, ending in 2037.

Return of capital on the Class B Preference Shares, pursuant to the terms of the share offering documents, is
scheduled to occur over the following 12 years, including the current year of 2023, ending in 2034.

As outlined in previous offering documents, and consistent with this Offering, there does not exist a defined
schedule for the return of capital on the Class C Preference Shares. While sufficient new opportunities exist
for cashflow to be invested in new project opportunities, it is anticipated that the Co-operative will not be

repurchasing shares across all holders of the Class C Preference Shares.

All of the securities, debt obligations and accounts payable are included in Appendix B: 2022 Audited

Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2022. While declining, the debt load of the co-

operative remains significant. This is identified as a risk factor in Section 5: Risk Factors - Financial - Debt

Load.

For these debt obligations, all payments have been made as agreed. The loans to SunSharel LP, SunShare2
LP and 2117921 Alberta Inc. have a borrowing covenant requiring that Debt Service Coverage Ratios, the ratio
of total operating income to total debt payments, must be a minimum of 1.25. All operating entities have

maintained compliance with this ratio throughout the loan periods and expect to continue to meet this

requirement. Historical ratios are shown below. Further to this covenant, a DSCR of 1.35 is to be maintained
to be able to receive equity distributions. As outlined in Section 6, the Co-operative experienced unusually
low sun hours during 2022 in most geographic areas where its energy generation equipment was located.
The Co-operative also incurred added repair costs after a windstorm damaged some of its energy generation
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equipment in a subsidiary of the Co-operative, Sunshare2 LP. These combined factors resulted in relatively
unfavourable financial performance of Sunshare2 LP for 2022. Per the terms of the lending agreement, the
conditions required for equity distribution were not met during the year, indicating a breach of these
conditions. Upon becoming aware of the situation, the Co-operative obtained a waiver from the lender CWB
Maximum. Per the lending agreement, since this waiver was issued within the cure period, this did not result
in an event of default for Sunshare2 LP or the Co-operative. However, in accordance with International
Accounting Standards (IAS) 1, the Co-operative is required to report the entire balance of the loan as a current
liability, since it does not have the unconditional right to defer its settlement of the loan for at least twelve
months. The total amount of debt classified as current within the financial statements, included as Appendix
B, that would have otherwise been classified as long term, was $4,977,711. However, as a result of obtaining
the waiver within the cure period, the acceleration of repayments of the loan was automatically annulled and
the loan was reclassified to long term on March 17, 2023. The Co-operative was not required to make
changes to the lending agreement in exchange for the waiver, and no further implications resulted from this
situation. The anticipated payments shown above classify this amount as a long-term liability and show the
original amortization schedule which remains in effect.

All of the debt obligations above are currently in fixed rate terms, and as such are not subject to interest rate
volatility. For all debt obligations other than those in SunSharel LP and SunShare2 LP, the term will cover the
full amortization period. Included in the schedule above are the refinance/balloon payments for the
SunSharel LP and SunShare2 LP loans for which the fixed rate terms are less than the amortization period.
These loans are as follows:

Baloon Payments/Refinance 2027 2028

CWB Maxium - SS1 - Tranche 1 $ 3,690,869
CWB Maxium - SS1 - Tranche 2 $ 3,530,361
CWB Maxium - SS1 - Tranche 3 $ 411,159
CWB Maxium - SS2 - Tranche 1 $2,830,625
CWB Maxium - SS2 - Tranche 2 $ 804,893

$ 7632390 $ 3,635,519

The amounts above are subject to fluctuations in interest rate at renewal. At this time, the financial forecast
has shown each of these to be renewed for the remainder of their scheduled amortization at a rate of 6.9%
given the current interest rate environment, substantially higher than the weighted average rate of 5.57%
currently in effect. The aggregate of these is approximately $11.3 million, and as such, each 1% increase or
decrease in rates from the forecast 6.9% renewal rate results in a favourable or unfavourable variance of
$113,000 in year 1 of the renewal. The rates from CWB Maximum have historically been set as a margin of
370 basis points over the corresponding Canadian bond rate. Assuming this same rate structure, renewal
rates as of March 31, 2023 would be 6.73%. This results in an increase in expected interest cost of
approximately $147,000 within the first year of the renewals.
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7.1 CREDIT AGREEMENTS - CWB

In 2016 through 2018, the Co-operative entered into certain Credit Agreements with CWB with a brief
summary of the financial terms provided in Section 4.7 - Portfolio Investment and Finance. These Credit
Agreements are executed under three entities that are controlled by CED Co-op, specifically SunSharel LP,
SunShare2 LP and 2117921 Alberta Ltd., and the balances outstanding for each of these loan advances for the
respective entities is outlined in the table above in Section 7. Within these Credit Agreements, these
respective entities are defined as the “Borrower”, and the following are summaries of these Credit
Agreements. For clarity, CED Co-op is not the Borrower in these arrangements, and as such the obligations
summarized here do not apply directly to CED Co-op, but rather the respective entity that has entered into
each Credit Agreement. As such, there are no cross-collateralization or cross-default provisions that apply
directly to CED Co-op within these Credit Agreements.

A summary of many of the obligations, reporting requirements, events of default and remedies of the lender
are provided here, though there may be others not listed here. There are a number of risks associated with
these credit arrangements, including, but not limited to, the risk factors outlined in Section 5 - Financial -
Availability of Debt Financing, Financial - Debt Load, Financial - Priority of Lenders, and Financial - Security.
Throughout this Section 7.1 - Credit Agreements - CWB, capitalized terms not defined within the Offering
Statement are defined terms within the respective Credit Agreements. Each of the credit agreements is
more than 100 pages in length and are not included in their entirety here. Should a Member or Investor wish
to view any of these agreements, they can be made available for viewing at the offices of the Co-operative.

The Borrowers (SunSharel LP, SunShare2 LP and 2117921 Alberta Ltd.) have certain obligations as outlined
in the Credit Agreements. These obligations are summarized here, and include, but are not strictly limited to
the following.

The Borrower must:

a) use the loan proceeds for specific purposes stated in the loan agreement and deposit all Project
Revenues into the specified accounts.

b) make timely payments of all sums due under the Agreement and other Loan Documents.
c) assign the benefit of any manufacturers' warranties relating to the Solar Systems to the Lender.

d) promptly inform the Lender of various events, such as material litigation, disputes with Governmental
Authorities, Defaults or Events of Default, casualties, changes in insurance, and other matters.

e) provide the Lender with copies of any Default Notices received related to the Real Property
Documents, FIT Contracts, or Material Project Documents.

f) provide the Lender with copies of documents, notices, or written instruments required to be delivered
to the IESO under any FIT Contract.

g) Deliver to the Lender certified copies of new Material Project Documents and obtain the
counterparty's consent and legal opinion.

h) maintain their existence, contractual obligations, permits, and rights in the normal course of business.

i) comply with the Separateness Covenants regarding the operations of the borrower as stated in the
Agreement.

j) pay all obligations on time, except those being contested in good faith or under certain conditions.

k) maintain proper books, accounts, and records, and allow the Lender to inspect properties and audit
records.

) operate and maintain each Solar System according to Prudent Engineering and Operating Practices,
and adhere to the Annual Operating Budget.

m) preserve, protect, and defend rights under Material Project Documents and provide necessary
assistance.

n) pay all taxes, assessments, governmental charges, utility charges, and other fees when due unless
being contested in good faith.

o) comply with all Requirements of Law and procure and maintain all required Applicable Permits.
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operate and maintain each Solar System as per the Material Project Documents and Prudent
Engineering and Operating Practices.

maintain insurance policies as specified in the Agreement.

maintain rights, title, and interests in the Project Site and Solar Systems free and clear of
Encumbrances, other than Permitted Encumbrances.

take necessary actions if an Event of Eminent Domain occurs or is threatened.

provide documentation to comply with "Know Your Customer,” anti-money laundering, and anti-
terrorist requirements.

ensure that the Project Accounts are funded in accordance with the Agreement.
cooperate and provide necessary information to the Independent Engineer.
comply with requirements related to the Minimum Required Domestic Content Level.

open replacement bank accounts and transfer funds accordingly, if the Account Bank's credit rating is
downgraded.

execute and deliver additional documents as requested by the Lender to fulfill the purposes of the
Agreement and protect their interests in the Collateral.

In addition to the obligations outlined above, the borrower is also obliged to comply with negative obligations.
These negative obligations are summarized here, and include, but are not strictly limited to the following.

The Borrower shall not:

create, assume, or allow any Encumbrance on any Collateral, real or personal, except Permitted
Encumbrances, without the written consent of the Lender.

incur, create, assume, or allow any Debt except Permitted Debt.
undertake any Capital Markets Offering.

dispose of, sell, or assign any Collateral or assets except for sales of electricity in the ordinary course
of business under the FIT Contract or the disposal of obsolete, worn-out, or replaced property not
used or useful in their business.

change the nature of their business or engage in any activity beyond the scope of the Solar Systems'
business as outlined in the Operative Documents.

make certain distributions or payments, including dividends, repurchases of securities, or related
party debt repayments, unless specific conditions are met.

make certain advances, loans, investments, or purchase securities of other entities, except for
Permitted Investments held in Project Accounts.

enter into transactions with Affiliates, except in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length
terms, without the prior written consent.

provide financial assistance to other Persons for their debts or obligations.

liquidate, dissolve, sell, lease, or transfer a substantial part of its property or assets, or merge or
consolidate with other entities, except as permitted in the Agreement.

cause or permit certain amendments to Material Project Documents without written consent, which
could have adverse effects or result in Defaults or material violations.

perform any act or omit any action under the Operative Documents that would have a Material
Adverse Effect.

change its name, the jurisdiction for its primary operations, or its Fiscal Year without prior written
consent.

use the Project Site for purposes other than the operation and maintenance of the Solar Systems
without the prior written consent.

assign its rights under the Agreement or Operative Documents to any other Person.

willfully and voluntarily abandon or suspend operation of a Solar System for extended periods without
prior written consent.
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q) release Hazardous Substances or noise in violation of Environmental Laws or Applicable Permits.

r) settle certain claims with liquidated damages or warranty claims without prior written approval.

n
-

transfer ownership interests or change Control without the prior written consent.

t) sell, assign, or dispose of the Project or any Material Project Documents without prior written consent.

u) amend the Pro Formas without prior written approval.

v) replace the Maintenance Provider without the prior written approval, and the replacement entity must
meet certain conditions.

Further, the Borrower is required to maintain the following reporting requirements:

1. Financial Statements:

a)

c)

Quarterly Unaudited Financial Statements: The Borrower must provide unaudited
unconsolidated financial statements for each Fiscal Quarter, including a balance sheet, income
statement, and statement of cash flows. These statements must be prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and delivered to the Lender within 45
days after the close of each Fiscal Quarter.

Annual Audited Financial Statements: The Borrower must provide annual audited
unconsolidated financial statements for each Fiscal Year, including a balance sheet, income
statement, and statement of cash flows. These statements must be prepared in accordance
with IFRS and delivered to the Lender within 90 days after the close of the Fiscal Year.

Compliance Certificate: On each Repayment Date, the Borrower must deliver a Compliance
Certificate to the Lender.

2. Reports:

a)

b)

Access to Monitoring Systems: The Borrower must provide the Lender with access to all
monitoring systems for each of the Project Sites.

Additional Reports: The Borrower must provide any reports, statements, lists of property,
accounts, budgets, forecasts, and other information promptly upon request by the Lender. This
is to confirm the Borrower's compliance with its obligations under the Agreement. The
Borrower must also provide reports and information required by the Independent Consultants
at the request of the Lender.

3. Annual Operating Budget:

a)

The Borrower must adopt an operating plan and a detailed budget for each Fiscal Quarter,
outlining anticipated revenues, debt service, maintenance, projected distributions, repair and
operation expenses, maintenance reserves, and other anticipated operating and maintenance
costs for the Project. This Annual Operating Budget must be prepared at least 15 Business
Days prior to the Closing Date. Subsequently, before the beginning of each Fiscal Year, the
Borrower must provide a draft Annual Operating Budget for the ensuing Fiscal Year for review
and approval by the Lenders and the Independent Engineer. The final Annual Operating Budget
should consider the Lender's reasonable suggestions.

4. Tax Returns and Assessments:

a)

The Borrower must deliver to the Lender copies of all federal, provincial, and local tax returns
filed with any Governmental Authority under Applicable Law promptly after filing, as well as
copies of all tax assessments received from any Governmental Authority promptly upon
receipt.

In the context of the Credit Agreements, certain actions or events are considered "Events of Default”. These
“Events of Default” are summarized here, and include, but are not strictly limited to the following:

a) Failure to make timely payments of principal, interest, fees, or other obligations.

b) Breach of certain covenants, unless they are cured within 30 days of receiving Notice.
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Failure to observe or perform any covenant or obligation which is then not cured within 20 days of
receiving Notice.

Misrepresentation in any provided documents or agreements.

Ceasing or threatening to cease business operations or failure to pay debts.

Default on payments or agreements with other parties involving substantial debt amounts.
Denying obligations under loan documents or claiming their invalidity.

Failure to mitigate changes in legislation or governmental authority affecting the loan documents
within 30 days.

Bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar events concerning the Borrower.

Failure to pursue remedies against a party in material project documents within 10 days of a breach.
Termination or non-replacement of insurance required by the agreement.

Material modification, suspension, or cancellation of required permits, unless replaced promptly.
Cessation of material project contracts or documents, or defaults under them.

Seizure or possession of significant property or equity interests of the Borrower by others.
Proceedings for dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of the Borrower, unless contested.

Final judgment for payment exceeding $100,000 not vacated, discharged, or stayed.

Writs of execution or distress warrants against Borrower property, not released for over 30 days.
Change of control with respect to the Borrower.

Failure to maintain valid and first-priority security interests, subject to permitted encumbrances.
Attachment of encumbrances to collateral or property, not immediately remedied and released.

Suspension of Project O&M for more than 30 days (excluding Force Majeure) without FIT Contract
termination.

Failure to maintain the cumulative Minimum DSCR over four consecutive fiscal quarters.
Occurrence of a material adverse effect not remedied within 30 days.

Unacceptable transfer of FIT Contracts to other parties.

Unauthorized bank account changes for Generation Payments.

These events of default may trigger various consequences as specified in the agreement. It is crucial for the
Borrower to diligently manage its financial and operational activities to avoid default situations. Should an
Event of Default arise, the rights and remedies available to the lender under the Agreement include, as
summarized here, but are not limited to:

a)

b)

Automatic Acceleration on Insolvency Default: If an Insolvency Default occurs, all outstanding
Tranche Loans and Obligations become immediately due and payable, along with any Related Make
Whole Amounts, without the need for further notice or demand.

Acceleration on Non-Insolvency Default: If any Event of Default (other than an Insolvency Default)
occurs, the Lender may choose to accelerate all Obligations, making them immediately due and
payable, including interest and any Related Make Whole Amounts.

Exercise of Rights and Recourse: Upon any Event of Default, the Lender can exercise any right or
remedy allowed by law against the Borrower to recover all outstanding Obligations, and they can
enforce the Security to secure such Obligations.

No Obligation to Realize Collateral: The Lender is not obligated to realize upon any collateral or
enforce the Security, and they are not liable for any loss or damage arising from such realization or
enforcement, or for any act or omission in connection with these actions.

In the circumstance that an Event of Default occurs and the Lender elects to accelerate all Obligations, the
Co-operative would endeavour to pay out balances owing from payment reserves, maintenance reserves and
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other cash balances on hand. Further, the Co-operative would look for alternative financiers if the funds were
not already raised by investors and available to pay loan balances remaining.

Should balances remain following repayment from available resources, the Lender could take possession of
the associated project assets, and attempt to liquidate (sell) the projects in an effort to pay off loan balances.
These loans are considered to be non-recourse financing and the security of the respective loan is limited to
the solar projects existing within the borrowing entity (SunSharel LP, SunShare2 LP and 2117921 Alberta Ltd.)
at the time of the default. The specific Projects that are held within each respective entity are outlined in
Section 3.6.3. Business Models - FIT and microFIT Contracts. Should balances be left owing to the lender
after the liquidation of all Projects and assets held by the respective borrowing entity, there would be no
further recourse to CED Co-op. If any proceeds remain from the sale of assets after paying off all amounts
owing to the Lender, these funds would be made available to CED Co-op.

Per CED Co-op's audited financial statements, the fair market value of Project assets, as projected in the
annual revaluation process, is greater than the balances outstanding within the borrowing entities. Thisis
outlined in Note 8 of the APPENDIX B: 2022 Audited Financial Statements. The following table is a summary
of these values.

Borrower SunSharel LP SunShare2LP 2117921 Alberta Ltd.
Long-Term Assets (Note 8) $ 17,428,630 $ 7,424237 $ 4982172
Long-Term Debt (Note 8) $ 10,949,794 $ 5,554,495 $ 2,711,461
Surplus of Assets over Loan Balances $ 6,478,836 $ 1,869,742 $ 2,270,711

While these values represent the anticipated fair market value of the Projects, it can not be guaranteed that
the full market value may be achieved in selling the Projects in a liquidation scenario. Should the Projects be
sold at values below the fair market value, the Co-operative may not be able to pay anticipated returns or
repurchase securities as anticipated. In the event that the Co-operative is unable to pay all obligations to
lenders and security holders, the ranking of investments is outlined in Section 9.3 - Ranking of Investments.
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8. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

8.1 AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

The total authorized capital of the Co-operative is limited to the sum of One Hundred and Fifty-One Million
Dollars ($151,000,000.00), divided into:

() One Hundred Thousand (100,000) Membership shares with a par value of Ten Dollars ($10.00) each,
for a total aggregate amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00);

(i) Ten Million (10,000,000) Class A Preference shares with a par value of Five Dollars ($5.00) each, for a
total aggregate amount of Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000.00);

(iii) Ten Million (10,000,000) Class B Preference shares with a par value of Five Dollars ($5.00) each, for a
total aggregate amount of Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000.00); and

(iii) Ten Million (10,000,000) Class C Preference shares with a par value of Five Dollars ($5.00) each, for a
total aggregate amount of Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000.00).

CED Co-op’s capital structure as of December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Share Type Issued Shares Par Value Total Value
Membership Shares 810 $ 10.00 $% 8,100
Class A Preference Shares 1,045,532 $ 5.00 $ 5,227,660
Class B Preference Shares 596,380 $ 5.00 $ 2,981,900
Class C Preference Shares 849,037 $ 500 $ 4245185
Total Member’s Equity and Share Investments $12,462,845

8.2 MATERIAL ATTRIBUTES OF AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

8.2.1. Membership Shares

Holders of Membership shares are entitled to attend and vote at all meetings of the Co-operative and, subject
always to the prior rights of the holders of Class A Preference shares, Class B Preference shares and Class C
Preference shares, to receive dividends on Membership shares as may be declared from time to time at the
sole discretion of the Board of Directors of the Co-operative.

8.2.2. Class A Preferences Shares
Dividends:

A holder of Class A Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive, and the Co-operative shall pay thereon, as
and when declared by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative out of the assets of the Co-operative
properly applicable to the payment of dividends, non-cumulative cash dividends at a rate fixed and
determined by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative. For greater certainty, dividends on the Class B
Preference Shares and Class C Preference Shares may, in the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Co-
operative, be paid independently of and in priority to the Class A Preference Shares of the Co-operative or the
Board of Directors of the Co-operative may resolve that holders of the Class A Preference Shares shall
receive dividends independently of and in priority to the holders of one or more of the Class B Preference
Shares and Class C Preference Shares of the Co-operative, but always in priority to the Membership shares of
the Co-operative. Dividends on the Class A Preference Shares shall be calculated annually and shall accrue
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from the date of issue of the said Shares. In the event that the Board of Directors of the Co-operative should
not declare a dividend on the Class A Preference Shares within one hundred and eighty (180) days following
the close of the fiscal year of the Co-operative, the right of Class A Preference Shareholders to a dividend for
that fiscal year shall be forever extinguished.

Voting Rights:

The holders of Class A Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of and attend all meetings of
members of the Co-operative but shall not be entitled to vote thereat. Subject to the Co-op Act, Class A
Preference Shareholders shall be entitled to vote at all meetings of Class A Preference Shareholders called
for the purpose of amending any of the preferences, rights, conditions, restrictions, limitations or prohibitions
attaching to the said class of Shares, and at such meetings each Shareholder shall be entitled to cast one vote
for each Class A Preference Share held.

Amendment of Share Provisions:

Any amendment to the Co-operative’s articles or to the provisions of the Class A Preference shares, the
effect of which is to delete or vary any preference, right, condition, restriction, limitation or prohibition
attaching to the Class A Preference shares, or to create a class of Preference shares ranking in priority to or
on a parity with the Class A Preference shares, or to increase the number of Class A Preference shares
authorized to be issued, may be confirmed by at least two-thirds of the votes cast at a meeting of the Class A
Preference shareholders duly called for that purpose.

Redemption:

The Co-operative may at any time, and from time to time, redeem, without the consent of the Class A
Preference shareholders, the whole or any part of the issued and outstanding Class A Preference shares
upon payment of the par value thereof, together with any dividends declared but unpaid (in this Section 8.2.2,
the "Redemption Price").

Notice of Redemption:

Unless all the holders of the Class A Preference Shares to be redeemed shall have waived notice of such
redemption, the Co-operative shall give not less than thirty (30) days' notice in writing of such redemption by
mailing to each person, who at the date of mailing is a registered holder of the Class A Preference Shares to
be redeemed, a notice in writing of the intention of the Co-operative to redeem such Class A Preference
Shares. Such notice shall be mailed in a prepaid envelope addressed to each Shareholder at his or her
address as it appears on the books of the Co-operative or, in the event of the address of any such
Shareholder not so appearing, then to the last known address of such Shareholder, provided however, that
accidental failure or omission to give any such notice to one or more of such holders shall not affect the
validity of such redemption. Such notice shall set out the Redemption Price of the Shares to be redeemed
and the date on which redemption is to take place and, if part only of the Class A Preference Shares held by
the person to whom notice is given is to be redeemed, the number of such Shares to be redeemed.

Redemption Procedure:

On or after the date so specified for redemption in such notice, the Co-operative shall pay or cause to be paid
to, or to the order of, the registered holders of the Class A Preference Shares to be redeemed, the
Redemption Price of such Shares on presentation and surrender, at the registered office of the Co-operative
or any other place designated in such notice, of the certificates representing the Shares so called for
redemption. Such payment shall be made by cheque payable at any branch in Canada of one of the Co-
operative's bankers at that time.

Partial Redemption:

In case a part only of the Class A Preference Shares is at any time to be redeemed, the Shares so to be
redeemed shall be redeemed as nearly as may be in proportion to the number of Class A Preference Shares
that are registered in the name of each holder of Class A Preference Shares or in such other manner as the
Board of Directors shall determine with the consent of the holders of the Class A Preference Shares in
accordance with the Co-op Act.
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Cessation of Rights:

From and after the date specified for redemption in any such notice, the Class A Preference Shares called for
redemption shall cease to be entitled to dividends, and the holders thereof shall not be entitled to exercise
any of the rights of Shareholders in respect thereof, unless payment of the Redemption Price of the Class A
Preference Shares is not made upon presentation of the Share certificates in accordance with the foregoing
provisions, in which case the rights of the holders shall remain unaffected.

Deposit of Redemption Price:

The Co-operative shall have the right, at any time after the mailing of notice of its intention to redeem any
shares, to deposit the Redemption Price of the Class A Preference Shares so called for redemption or of such
of the said Shares represented by certificates which have not at the date of such deposit been surrendered
by the holders thereof in connection with any such redemption, in a special account at any chartered bank,
trust company, credit union, or caisse populaire in Canada named in such notice, to be paid without interest to
or to the order of the respective holders of such Shares called for redemption upon presentation and
surrender to such bank, trust company, credit union or caisse populaire of the certificates representing the
said Shares and, on such deposit being made or upon the date specified for redemption in such notice,
whichever is the later, the Class A Preference Shares in respect of which such deposit shall have been made
shall be redeemed and the holders thereof after such deposit or such redemption date, as the case may be,
shall be limited to receiving without interest their proportionate part of the total Redemption Price of the
Class A Preference Shares so deposited, against presentation and surrender of the said certificates held by
them respectively, and interest allowed on any such deposit shall belong to the Co-operative.

No Redemption of Shares upon Withdrawal from Membership:

Class A Preference Shareholders are not entitled to demand the redemption of such Shares upon their
withdrawal from membership in the Co-operative, and the Co-operative is not under any obligation to redeem
such Shares upon a member's withdrawal from membership.

Dissolution:

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of the Co-operative, whether voluntary or
involuntary, the holders of Class A Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive, before any distribution of
any part of the assets of the Co-operative among the holders of Class B Preference Shares, Class C
Preference shares and Membership shares, their par value of Five Dollars ($5.00) for each Class A Preference
Share, plus an amount equal to any dividends declared but not paid. Upon payment of the above amount, the
holders of Class A Preference Shares shall not be entitled to any further share in the distribution of the
property or assets of the Co-operative.

8.2.3. Class B Preferences Shares
Dividends:

A holder of Class B Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive, and the Co-operative shall pay thereon, as
and when declared by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative out of the assets of the Co-operative
properly applicable to the payment of dividends, non-cumulative cash dividends at a rate fixed and
determined by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative. For greater certainty, dividends on the Class A
Preference Shares and Class C Preference Shares may, in the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Co-
operative, be paid independently of and in priority to the Class B Preference Shares of the Co-operative or the
Board of Directors of the Co-operative may resolve that holders of the Class B Preference Shares shall
receive dividends independently of and in priority to the holders of one or more of the Class A Preference
Shares and Class C Preference Shares of the Co-operative, but always in priority to the Membership Shares
of the Co-operative. Dividends on the Class B Preference Shares shall be calculated annually and shall accrue
from the date of issue of the said Shares. In the event that the Board of Directors of the Co-operative should
not declare a dividend on the Class B Preference Shares within one hundred and eighty (180) days following
the close of the fiscal year of the Co-operative, the right of Class B Preference Shareholders to a dividend for
that fiscal year shall be forever extinguished.
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Voting Rights:

The holders of Class B Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of and attend all meetings of
members of the Co-operative but shall not be entitled to vote thereat. Subject to the Co-op Act, Class B
Preference Shareholders shall be entitled to vote at all meetings of Class B Preference Shareholders called
for the purpose of amending any of the preferences, rights, conditions, restrictions, limitations or prohibitions
attaching to the said class of Shares, and at such meetings each Shareholder shall be entitled to cast one vote
for each Class B Preference Share held.

Amendment of Share Provisions:

Any amendment to the Co-operative’s articles or to the provisions of the Class B Preference Shares, the
effect of which is to delete or vary any preference, right, condition, restriction, limitation or prohibition
attaching to the Class B Preference Shares, or to create a class of Preference Shares ranking in priority to or
on a parity with the Class B Preference Shares, or to increase the number of Class B Preference Shares
authorized to be issued, may be confirmed by at least two-thirds of the votes cast at a meeting of the Class B
Preference Shareholders duly called for that purpose.

Redemption:

The Co-operative may at any time, and from time to time, redeem, without the consent of the Class B
Preference Shareholders, the whole or any part of the issued and outstanding Class B Preference Shares
upon payment of the par value thereof, together with any dividends declared but unpaid (in this Section 8.2.3
the "Redemption Price").

Notice of Redemption:

Unless all the holders of the Class B Preference Shares to be redeemed shall have waived notice of such
redemption, the Co-operative shall give not less than thirty (30) days' notice in writing of such redemption by
mailing to each person, who at the date of mailing is a registered holder of the Class B Preference Shares to
be redeemed, a notice in writing of the intention of the Co-operative to redeem such Class B Preference
Shares. Such notice shall be mailed in a prepaid envelope addressed to each Shareholder at his or her
address as it appears on the books of the Co-operative or, in the event of the address of any such
Shareholder not so appearing, then to the last known address of such Shareholder, provided however, that
accidental failure or omission to give any such notice to one or more of such holders shall not affect the
validity of such redemption. Such notice shall set out the Redemption Price of the Shares to be redeemed
and the date on which redemption is to take place and, if part only of the Class B Preference Shares held by
the person to whom notice is given is to be redeemed, the number of such Shares to be redeemed.

Redemption Procedure:

On or after the date so specified for redemption in such notice, the Co-operative shall pay or cause to be paid
to, or to the order of, the registered holders of the Class B Preference Shares to be redeemed, the
Redemption Price of such Shares on presentation and surrender, at the registered office of the Co-operative
or any other place designated in such notice, of the certificates representing the Shares so called for
redemption. Such payment shall be made by cheque payable at any branch in Canada of one of the Co-
operative's bankers at that time.

Partial Redemption:

In case a part only of the Class B Preference Shares is at any time to be redeemed, the Shares so to be
redeemed shall be redeemed as nearly as may be in proportion to the number of Class B Preference Shares
that are registered in the name of each holder of Class B Preference Shares or in such other manner as the
Board of Directors shall determine with the consent of the holders of the Class B Preference Shares in
accordance with the Co-op Act.

Cessation of Rights:

From and after the date specified for redemption in any such notice, the Class B Preference Shares called for
redemption shall cease to be entitled to dividends, and the holders thereof shall not be entitled to exercise
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any of the rights of Shareholders in respect thereof, unless payment of the Redemption Price of the Class B
Preference Shares is not made upon presentation of the Share certificates in accordance with the foregoing
provisions, in which case the rights of the holders shall remain unaffected.

Deposit of Redemption Price:

The Co-operative shall have the right, at any time after the mailing of notice of its intention to redeem any
Shares, to deposit the Redemption Price of the Class B Preference Shares so called for redemption or of such
of the said Shares represented by certificates which have not at the date of such deposit been surrendered
by the holders thereof in connection with any such redemption, in a special account at any chartered bank,
trust company, credit union, or caisse populaire in Canada named in such notice, to be paid without interest to
or to the order of the respective holders of such Shares called for redemption upon presentation and
surrender to such bank, trust company, credit union or caisse populaire of the certificates representing the
said Shares and, on such deposit being made or upon the date specified for redemption in such notice,
whichever is the later, the Class B Preference Shares in respect of which such deposit shall have been made
shall be redeemed and the holders thereof after such deposit or such redemption date, as the case may be,
shall be limited to receiving without interest their proportionate part of the total Redemption Price of the
Class B Preference Shares so deposited, against presentation and surrender of the said certificates held by
them respectively, and interest allowed on any such deposit shall belong to the Co-operative.

No Redemption of Shares upon Withdrawal from Membership:

Class B Preference Shareholders are not entitled to demand the redemption of such Shares upon their
withdrawal from membership in the Co-operative, and the Co-operative is not under any obligation to redeem
such Shares upon a member's withdrawal from membership.

Dissolution:

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of the Co-operative, whether voluntary or
involuntary, the holders of Class B Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive, subject to the prior rights of
the holders of the Class A Preference Shares, but before any distribution of any part of the assets of the Co-
operative among the holders of Class C Preference Shares and Membership Shares, their par value of Five
Dollars ($5.00) for each Class B Preference Share, plus an amount equal to any dividends declared but not
paid. Upon payment of the above amount, the holders of Class B Preference Shares shall not be entitled to
any further Share in the distribution of the property or assets of the Co-operative.

8.2.4. Class C Preferences Shares
Dividends:

A holder of Class C Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive, and the Co-operative shall pay thereon, as
and when declared by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative out of the assets of the Co-operative
properly applicable to the payment of dividends, non-cumulative cash dividends at a rate fixed and
determined by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative. For greater certainty, dividends on the Class A
Preference Shares and Class B Preference Shares may, in the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Co-
operative, be paid independently of and in priority to the Class C Preference Shares of the Co-operative or the
Board of Directors of the Co-operative may resolve that holders of the Class C Preference Shares shall
receive dividends independently of and in priority to the holders of one or more of the Class A Preference
Shares and Class B Preference Shares of the Co-operative, but always in priority to the Membership Shares of
the Co-operative. Dividends on the Class C Preference Shares shall be calculated annually and shall accrue
from the date of issue of the said Shares. In the event that the Board of Directors of the Co-operative should
not declare a dividend on the Class C Preference Shares within one hundred and eighty (180) days following
the close of the fiscal year of the Co-operative, the right of Class C Preference Shareholders to a dividend for
that fiscal year shall be forever extinguished.

Voting Rights:

The holders of Class C Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of and attend all meetings of
members of the Co-operative but shall not be entitled to vote thereat. Subject to the Co-op Act, Class C
Preference Shareholders shall be entitled to vote at all meetings of Class C Preference Shareholders called
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for the purpose of amending any of the preferences, rights, conditions, restrictions, limitations or prohibitions
attaching to the said class of Shares, and at such meetings each Shareholder shall be entitled to cast one vote
for each Class C Preference Share held.

Amendment of Share Provisions:

Any amendment to the Co-operative’s articles or to the provisions of the Class C Preference Shares, the
effect of which is to delete or vary any preference, right, condition, restriction, limitation or prohibition
attaching to the Class C Preference Shares, or to create a class of Preference Shares ranking in priority to or
on a parity with the Class C Preference Shares, or to increase the number of Class C Preference Shares
authorized to be issued, may be confirmed by at least two-thirds of the votes cast at a meeting of the Class C
Preference Shareholders duly called for that purpose.

Redemption:

The Co-operative may at any time, and from time to time, redeem, without the consent of the Class C
Preference Shareholders, the whole or any part of the issued and outstanding Class C Preference Shares
upon payment of the par value thereof, together with any dividends declared but unpaid (in this Section 8.2.4
the "Redemption Price").

Notice of Redemption:

Unless all the holders of the Class C Preference Shares to be redeemed shall have waived notice of such
redemption, the Co-operative shall give not less than thirty (30) days' notice in writing of such redemption by
mailing to each person, who at the date of mailing is a registered holder of the Class C Preference Shares to
be redeemed, a notice in writing of the intention of the Co-operative to redeem such Class C Preference
Shares. Such notice shall be mailed in a prepaid envelope addressed to each Shareholder at his or her
address as it appears on the books of the Co-operative or, in the event of the address of any such
Shareholder not so appearing, then to the last known address of such Shareholder, provided however, that
accidental failure or omission to give any such notice to one or more of such holders shall not affect the
validity of such redemption. Such notice shall set out the Redemption Price of the Shares to be redeemed
and the date on which redemption is to take place and, if part only of the Class C Preference Shares held by
the person to whom notice is given is to be redeemed, the number of such Shares to be redeemed.

Redemption Procedure:

On or after the date so specified for redemption in such notice, the Co-operative shall pay or cause to be paid
to, or to the order of, the registered holders of the Class C Preference Shares to be redeemed, the
Redemption Price of such Shares on presentation and surrender, at the registered office of the Co-operative
or any other place designated in such notice, of the certificates representing the Shares so called for
redemption. Such payment shall be made by cheque payable at any branch in Canada of one of the Co-
operative's bankers at that time.

Partial Redemption:

In case a part only of the Class C Preference Shares is at any time to be redeemed, the Shares so to be
redeemed shall be redeemed as nearly as may be in proportion to the number of Class C Preference Shares
that are registered in the name of each holder of Class C Preference Shares or in such other manner as the
Board of Directors shall determine with the consent of the holders of the Class C Preference Shares in
accordance with the Co-op Act.

Cessation of Rights:

From and after the date specified for redemption in any such notice, the Class C Preference Shares called for
redemption shall cease to be entitled to dividends, and the holders thereof shall not be entitled to exercise
any of the rights of Shareholders in respect thereof, unless payment of the Redemption Price of the Class C
Preference Shares is not made upon presentation of the Share certificates in accordance with the foregoing
provisions, in which case the rights of the holders shall remain unaffected.

Deposit of Redemption Price:

Page | 106



The Co-operative shall have the right, at any time after the mailing of notice of its intention to redeem any
Shares, to deposit the Redemption Price of the Class C Preference Shares so called for redemption or of such
of the said Shares represented by certificates which have not at the date of such deposit been surrendered
by the holders thereof in connection with any such redemption, in a special account at any chartered bank,
trust company, credit union, or caisse populaire in Canada named in such notice, to be paid without interest to
or to the order of the respective holders of such Shares called for redemption upon presentation and
surrender to such bank, trust company, credit union or caisse populaire of the certificates representing the
said Shares and, on such deposit being made or upon the date specified for redemption in such notice,
whichever is the later, the Class C Preference Shares in respect of which such deposit shall have been made
shall be redeemed and the holders thereof after such deposit or such redemption date, as the case may be,
shall be limited to receiving without interest their proportionate part of the total Redemption Price of the
Class C Preference Shares so deposited, against presentation and surrender of the said certificates held by
them respectively, and interest allowed on any such deposit shall belong to the Co-operative.

No Redemption of Shares upon Withdrawal from Membership:

Class C Preference Shareholders are not entitled to demand the redemption of such Shares upon their
withdrawal from membership in the Co-operative, and the Co-operative is not under any obligation to redeem
such Shares upon a member's withdrawal from membership.

Dissolution:

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of the Co-operative, whether voluntary or
involuntary, the holders of Class C Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive, subject to the prior rights of
the holders of Class A Preference Shares and Class B Preference Shares, but before any distribution of any
part of the assets of the Co-operative among the holders of Membership Shares, their par value of Five
Dollars ($5.00) for each Class C Preference Share, plus an amount equal to any dividends declared but not
paid. Upon payment of the above amount, the holders of Class C Preference Shares shall not be entitled to
any further Share in the distribution of the property or assets of the Co-operative.
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9. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

CED Co-op is offering to sell MEMBERSHIP SHARES and CLASS C PREFERENCE SHARES, the attributes of
which are as follows:

9.1. MEMBERSHIP SHARES

Purpose:

The Membership Shares are the mechanism through which voting and control of the Co-operative are

exercised.

Offering:

Total Minimum Offering: None

Total Maximum Offering: $5,000

Minimum Individual Purchase: 1@ $10 ($10)

Maximum Individual Purchase: 1@ $10 ($10)

Share Price (Par Value): $10

Issue: Only natural persons ordinarily resident in Ontario aged 16 years of age and older may
purchase Membership Shares. Each Member may purchase only one Membership Share,
subject always to approval by the Board of Directors.

Closing Date: The initial closing of the sale of the Membership Shares will occur as soon as possible once all
subscription documents and membership application documents have been received and the
membership application has been approved by the Board.

Dividends: At the discretion of the Board, to the maximum amount permitted under the Co-op Act.
Regulations under the Co-op Act currently set the maximum annual dividend at two per cent
(2%) above the prime rate of a bank, trust company, or credit union named in the By-laws. It
is not presently contemplated that CED Co-op will pay dividends to holders of Membership
Shares.

Voting: Members in attendance at meetings of Members may vote and that vote will receive a
weighting of one vote on any matters relating to the Co-operative that are brought before
the Membership. Quorum for a meeting of Members is the lower of 5% of Members and 10
Members. In accordance with the Co-op Act, voting by proxy is not permitted.

Rank: Junior, with respect to the payment of interest and principal on secured loans. Junior, to the
payment of interest and principal on Bonds. Junior, to dividends on the Class A Preference
Shares, Class B Preference Shares and Class C Preference Shares. Junior, to the Class A
Preference Shares, Class B Preference Shares and Class C Preference Shares upon
dissolution.

Transfer: Subject to the consent of the Board and to the provisions of the Co-op Act
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9.2. CLASS C PREFERENCE SHARES
Purpose:

CED Co-op believes the Class C Preference Shares provide an opportunity for the Co-operative to distribute
after tax earnings as “eligible dividends” to the Shareholder. Though the payment of dividends on the
Preference Shares is not guaranteed and is at the discretion of the Board of Directors, it is the present
intention of the Board of Directors to pay a consistent minimum dividend rate.

The projected return available to Class C Preference Shareholders is currently targeted at 6% per annum. Itis
anticipated, though cannot be guaranteed, that declarations of dividends on the Class C preference shares
will continue on the pattern that they have, and as funds raised from the sale of Class C Preference Shares are
able to be invested in projects that begin to produce operating revenues. The Co-operative anticipates that
the payment of dividends on the Class C Preference Shares will continue to be in the form of a stock dividend
rather than a cash dividend, though always subject to the decision of the Board of Directors.

The Co-operative believes the potentially flexible redemption process and the handling of this Security could
be suitable for both short term and long-term Investors as well as both those who are looking for annual cash
flows, and those who prefer the investment to potentially continue to grow over time. This security may suit
an Investor who is willing to invest in a Security that does not have a fixed or minimum return but has the
potential to earn a higher rate of return than other Securities offered by the Co-operative.

The Co-operative believes that the ability to continue to develop new projects and reinvest the revenues from
projects into new project opportunities will enable a consistent valuation for the Class C Preference shares
and therefore an opportunity for the transfer of the Class C Preference Shares at their $5 par value per share.

Offering:

Total Minimum Offering: None

Total Maximum Offering: $8,000,000
Minimum Individual New Investor Purchase: 1,000 @ $5 ($5,000)
Minimum Individual Existing Investor Purchase: None

Maximum Individual Purchase: None

Issue: Following the receipting of the Offering Statement, Members and Non-Members will be eligible to
purchase Class C Preference Shares. All purchases are subject to approval by the Board of Directors. The
Class C Preference Shares are eligible to be held in Registered Plans and the Co-operative is able to accept
investment through Registered Plans.

Closing Date: The initial closing of the sale of the Class C Preference Shares is anticipated to occur, as much
as possible, on a quarterly basis, on the dates of March 16™, June 16", September 16" and December 16™,
assuming all subscription documents have been received and approved by the Co-operative.

Dividends: Holders of the Class C Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive, and the Co-operative
shall pay thereon, as and when declared by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative, dividends at a rate
fixed and determined by the Board of Directors of the Co-operative. At the discretion of the Board of
Directors of the Co-operative, dividends may be paid in the form of a stock dividend or a non-cumulative cash
dividend. Further, at the discretion of the Board, dividends on the Class C Preference Shares may be declared
and paid in priority, or subject to priority, to dividends on the Class A Preference Shares or the Class B
Preference Shares of the Co-operative, but always in priority to the Membership Shares of the Co-operative.
In the event that the Board of Directors of the Co-operative does not declare a dividend on the Class C
Preference Shares within one hundred and eighty days (180 days) following the close of the fiscal year of the
Co-operative, the right of the holders of the Class C Preference Shares for that fiscal year shall be forever
extinguished.

The amount of cash flow or profits from the operations of the Co-operative which are available for dividends
depends on a number of factors including the proportion of Class C Preference Shares in relation to the
amount of funds raised and outstanding of the other Securities and loans of the Co-operative. The Projected
Financial Statements attached as Appendix A have a targeted dividend rate of 6%, however this is not a
guaranteed return. Evenif dividends are declared, it is likely that the actual amount of dividends declared
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each year will vary, and the anticipated schedule of declaring quarterly dividends may change. Should the
Board of Directors be in a position to declare dividends on the Class C Preference Shares, a projected sample
schedule of declared and paid stock dividends and the repurchase of Shares, at the request of a Shareholder,
is shown in the table below and is based on a $100,000 purchase of 20,000 Class C Preference Shares. This
is an example only, and not intended be a forecast or to bind the Co-operative or a Shareholder to any
particular dividend or redemption schedule.

Class C Preference Share Investment Share Price

Year |Starting Shares |Starting Value | Dividend Rate | Stock Dividend | Divdend Value |Shares Redeemed| Payment |Ending Shares | Ending Value |Taxable Income
1 20,000 | $ 100,000 6.00% 1,200 | $ 6,000 S 21,200 | $ 106,000 | S 6,000

2 21,200 | $ 106,000 5.50% 1,166 | S 5,830 S 22,366 | $ 111,830 | S 5,830

3 22,366 | S 111,830 4.50% 1,006 | S 5,030 S 23,372 | $ 116,860 | S 5,030

4 23372 | S 116,860 6.75% 1,578 | $ 7,890 - S - 24,950 | § 124,750 | S 7,890

5 24,950 | $ 124,750 5.50% 1,372 | $ 6,860 |- 8,000 [ $ 40,000 18,322 | $ 91,610 | $ 6,860

6 18,322 | $ 91,610 6.50% 1,191 | $ 5,955 - S - 19,513 | $ 97,565 | $ 5,955

7 19,513 | $ 97,565 5.75% 1,122 | $ 5,610 - S - 20,635 S 103,175 | $ 5,610

8 20,635 | $ 103,175 6.50% 1,341 | $ 6,705 |- 8,000 [ $ 40,000 13,976 | $ 69,880 | $ 6,705

9 13,976 | S 69,830 5.25% 734\ $ 3,670 - S - 14,710 | S 73,550 | $ 3,670

10 14,710 | $ 73,550 6.00% 883 | $ 4,415 |- 1,000 | $ 5,000 14593 | $ 72,965 | $ 4,415

11 14,593 | S 72,965 5.50% 803 | $ 4,015 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 13,396 | $ 66,980 | S 4,015

12 13,396 | S 66,980 6.25% 837 | $ 4,185 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 12,233 [ § 61,165 | S 4,185

13 12,233 | S 61,165 7.00% 856 | $ 4,280 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 11,089 | S 55,445 | $ 4,280

14 11,089 | S 55,445 6.75% 749 | S 3,745 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 9,838 | $ 49,190 | $ 3,745

15 9,838 | $ 49,190 5.50% 541 | $ 2,705 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 8379 | S 41,895 | $ 2,705

16 8379 | S 41,895 6.50% 545 | $ 2,725 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 6,924 | $ 34,620 | $ 2,725

17 6,924 | $ 34,620 6.50% 450 | $ 2,250 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 5374 ]S 26,870 | S 2,250

18 5374 | $ 26,870 5.00% 269 | $ 1,345 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 3,643 | $ 18,215 | $ 1,345

19 3,643 | $ 18,215 6.75% 246 | $ 1,230 |- 2,000 [ $ 10,000 1,889 [ $ 9,445 | $ 1,230

20 1,889 | $ 9,445 6.00% 113 | S 565 |- 2,002 [ $ 10,010 - S - S 565
Totals 20,000 6.00% 17,002 | $ 85,010 |- 37,002 | $ 185,010 $ 85,010

As outlined in the example above, an Investor subscribes for 20,000 Class C Preference Shares at a
par value of $5 per share for a total investment of $100,000.

Inyear 1, the Board begins to declare dividends, and declares a dividend of 6.00% resulting in a stock
dividend of 1,200 shares, bringing the total share holdings to 21,200. This has a value of $6,000, and,
assuming this is not held in a Registered Plan, a T5 is issued to the Investor based on $6,000 of
eligible dividends.

In the next year, the Board declares dividends of 5.50% resulting in a stock dividend of 1,166
additional shares, bringing the total share holdings to 22,366 shares for a value of $111,830. Again, a
T5isissued based on the value of the stock dividend of 988 shares at $5 for a total of $5,830.

This process, potentially, continues annually, with varying amounts.

Following the dividends being declared and the associated shares being issued in year 5 (this
representing potentially taxable income), the Investor submits a request to redeem 8,000 Class C
Preference shares at a value of $40,000. This request is approved by the board, the Investor
receives a payment of $40,000 and the share holdings are reduced by 8,000 shares. This portion of
the transaction represents a return of capital and is not considered income for inclusionina T5.
Another similar request for redemption of 8,000 shares is made in year 8, following the stock
dividend. The request is approved, and the Investor receives payment of $40,000.

Beginning in year 10, the Investor starts to submit annual requests for share redemptions, subject to
board approval, and begins receiving annual payments based on the redemption requests, despite
varying rates of stock dividends being paid throughout.

At the end of year 20, through continued redemptions of shares, the holdings of Class C Preference
Shares of the Investor is reduced to O.

This particular example outlined above illustrates a set of potential circumstances over a 20-year period.
There is no intended guidance provided on the timelines, dividend rates or redemption periods through this
example. Itis anticipated that the Co-operative will continue to develop and operate projects beyond the 20
years outlined above.
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It is presently believed that only the dividend, whether it is paid in the form of cash or in the form of stock, as
outlined in the last column, would be treated as taxable income to the Shareholder, in the calendar year in
which the dividend was paid, regardless of the year the shares may be redeemed or transferred. Holding of
the Class C Preference Shares in Registered Plans will vary this tax treatment. Prospective Investors are
cautioned to consult with their tax advisors regarding the treatment of dividends on the Class C Preference
Shares.

Amendment: The rights of amendment of Class C Preference Shares are set out under “Amendment - Class
C Preference Shares” found in Section 8.2.4 hereof.

Redemption by the Co-operative:

The rights of redemption of Class C Preference Shares by the Co-operative are set out under “Redemption -
Class C Preference Shares” found in Section 8.2.4 hereof.

Redemption by the Shareholder:

The Class C Preference Shares are not redeemable by the Shareholder on demand. The holder of the Class C
Preference Shares may provide notice to the Co-operative, in email or in writing, of a desire to redeem any or
all of the Class C Preference Shares held by the Investor. This request for redemption will be reviewed by the
Board of Directors of the Co-operative, and potentially approved, at the sole discretion of the Board, subject
to the financial position of the Co-operative and its ability to redeem the shares for any or all requests from
Investors for the redemption of Class C Preference Shares. The Act prohibits the redemption of the Shares
of the Co-operative if CED Co-op is or would be, as a result of such redemption, insolvent or if such
repurchase would, in the opinion of the Board, be detrimental to the financial stability of CED Co-op.

It is the intent of the Co-operative to continue to develop annual offerings for Class C Preference Shares or
other securities to provide funds for the development of more projects as well as help maintain the liquidity of
the Co-operative should the request for redemptions exceed the amount of shares that can be redeemed
from the cash flows of the co-operative.

In the event that a notice of request for redemption by the Shareholder is received by the Co-operative and
the Co-operative is unable or unwilling to comply with the request, the Co-operative will endeavor to maintain
a list of parties that are interested in buying the Securities and will work towards facilitating a transfer of the
Securities on a best-efforts basis. There is no guarantee that a willing buyer of the Class C Preference Shares
will exist at the time the request is made, or that a buyer will exist in the future.

Holders of the Class C Preference shares may submit one redemption request in each 3-month period and
the Co-operative anticipates that there will be no fee for this redemption of any Class C Preference shares
that may be approved from this request. However, the Co-operative reserves the right to implement a
transaction or administration fee for this service. Facilitating the trade or transfer of Securities outside of this
schedule is subject to approval by the Board and an administration fee, currently $75, subject to change at the
sole discretion of the Co-operative. The anticipated schedule for the potential completion of redemption
requests in each year is as follows:

Request Submission If Approved, Anticipated
Deadlines Payment Dates
February 28th March 16th
May 31st June 16th
August 31st September 16th
November 30th December 16th
Voting: The voting rights of the holders of Class C Preference Shares are set out under “Voting Rights

- Class C Preference Shares” found in Section 8.2.4 hereof.

Page | 111



Rank: Junior, with respect to the payment of interest and principal on secured loans. Junior, to the payment
of interest and principal on Bonds. Pari Passu, to dividends paid on Class A Preference Shares and Class B
Preference Shares. Junior, to the Class A Preference Shares and Class B Preference Shares upon
dissolution. Senior, to Membership Shares.

Transfer: Subject to an administration fee, which is currently $75 though subject to change, the consent
of the Board and to the provisions of the Co-op Act regarding the transfer of Preference Shares. Such
approval shall not unreasonably be withheld.

9.3. RANKING OF INVESTMENTS

The following diagram shows the ranking of the Securities of CED Co-op.

As described in the Rank paragraph of Section 9.2 Class C Preference Shares, security for the Class C
Preference Shares and Membership shares ranks behind principal and interest on all secured loans, principal
and interest on all unsecured loans, principal and interest on all Bonds, dividends that have been declared but
unpaid on all classes of Preference Shares, Class A Preference Shares and Class B Preference Shares. In the
event of a default (which could be the result of a payment default or a covenant breach), prior ranking
creditors would be able to exercise their rights under the applicable lending agreements in full satisfaction of
obligations due to such creditors. Under such a scenario, holders of the Class C Preference Shares and
Membership shares will not receive any payments or interest unless all prior ranking obligations are paid in
full. This is identified as a risk factor in Section 5: Risk Factors - Financial - Security.

9.4. REGISTERED PLANS

Investors who intend to hold the Securities of CED Co-op within RESPs, RRSPs, RRIFs or TFSAs will need to
hold the securities in a self-directed Registered Plan. If the Investor already has a Registered Plan in place,
CED Co-op recommends they contact the host of their plans to determine if they are able to make
investments in CED Co-op through their current plan. For those who do not already have a self-directed
Registered Plan that can hold the Securities of CED Co-op, the Co-operative is working with CWCF and
Olympia Trust to assist Investors in setting up a self-directed Registered Plan. At this time, CWCF offers
RRSP and TFSA based plans, and Olympia Trust offers RRIF based plans. The primary fees that are expected
to be incurred by the Investor are annual administration fees, currently ranging from $55 to $175 per year,
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and transaction fees, currently ranging from $0 to $100 per transaction (purchases, transfers, withdrawals).
The current fee schedule for CWCF is attached as Appendix J, and the current fee schedule for Olympia Trust
is attached as Appendix K.

The government of Canada publishes a guide called “T4040 RRSPs and Other Registered Plans for
Retirement”, and as of the date of the Offering, it is available at the following link:
https://www.canada.ca/content/dam/cra-arc/formspubs/pub/t4040/t4040-22e.pdf

As noted in this guide referenced above, in the year a person turns 71, all funds must be withdrawn from a
RRSP account, or transferred to a RRIF account, though withdrawals or transfers can happen in years prior to
turning 71. For the securities of CED Co-op, assuming the Investor would like to retain the registered status
of the Securities, an Investor may need to transfer their Securities which are held in a RRSP account to a self-
directed RRIF account with Olympia Trust, in the absence of other options with their current RRSP account
provider. There are fees that are incurred by the Investor in this transfer process, as outlined in the fee
schedules.

In general, the rules of RRIF plans require minimum amounts to be withdrawn from the plan in each calendar
year. Maintaining cash balances in the RRIF account sufficient to allow such withdrawals remains the
responsibility of the Investor, and the Investor will need to select securities with anticipated payout
schedules, or request redemptions of Securities, to facilitate the required withdrawal amounts. In the event
that CED Co-op is unable to approve or provide redemptions of Securities or make scheduled payments on
Securities to satisfy RRIF withdrawal requirements from cash, Olympia Trust, or the RRIF plan holder as it may
be, will de-register a portion of the holdings of the Investor as a deemed withdrawal to satisfy requirements.
This deemed withdrawal may result in the Investor receiving taxable income without accompanying cash
payments. Management of the required withdrawal amounts is the responsibility of the plan administrator
and the Investor, and CED Co-op bears no responsibility for compliance with RRIF withdrawal requirements.
It should also be noted that there are fees involved in withdrawals from all Registered Plans, as noted in the
fee schedules.

The actual fees payable may be different than the schedules provided and should be confirmed with the
Registered Plan provider by the Investor prior to making an investment. Any questions or concerns an
Investor may have regarding the procedures of making investments through Registered Plans should be
directed to the plan administrator prior to making an investment. There may be other fees that are applicable,
and these fees are subject to change. For this reason, it is recommended that investments in CED Co-op
through self-directed plans not total less than $10,000.
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10. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS PAID, DECLARED OR ACCUMULATED BUT UNPAID

The Board of CED Co-op began declaring quarterly dividends to the holders of Class A Preference Shares on
November 29, 2016, payable on December 15, 2016, and has declared a dividend on the Class A Preference
shares each of the quarters since that time. The aggregate amount of $2,827,518 has been paid out in cash
to the holders of Class A Preference Shares of record to the end of December 31, 2022.

The Board of CED Co-op began declaring quarterly dividends to the holders of Class B Preference Shares on
September 6, 2018, payable on September 15, 2018, and has declared a dividend on the Class B Preference
shares each of the quarters since that time. The aggregate amount of $849,221 has been paid out in cash to
the holders of Class B Preference Shares to the end of December 31, 2022.

The Board of CED Co-op began declaring quarterly dividends to the holders of Class C Preference Shares on
December 9, 2021, payable on December 15, 2021, and has declared a dividend on the Class C Preference
shares each of the quarters since that time. The aggregate amount of $200,440 has been paid out in the
form of additional share certificates to the holders of Class C Preference Shares to the end of December 31,

2022.

Date Share Class Percentage |[Amount Status Cumulative
December 15, 2016 Class A Preference 2.25%| $ 133,426 [Paid S 133,426
March 15, 2017 Class A Preference 2.25%| $ 133,651 [Paid S 267,077
June 15, 2017 Class A Preference 2.25%| $ 133,224 [Paid S 400,301
September 15, 2017 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 133,404 |Paid S 533,704
December 15, 2017 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 133,392 |Paid S 667,097
March 15, 2018 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 130,373 |Paid S 797,470
June 15, 2018 Class A Preference 2.25%| $ 130,351 |Paid S 927,820
September 15, 2018 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 130,285 |Paid $ 1,058,105
September 15, 2018 Class B Preference 1.75%| $ 55,005 [Paid $ 1,113,110
December 15, 2018 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 130,285 |Paid S 1,243,395
December 15, 2018 Class B Preference 1.75%| $ 55,005 [Paid S 1,298,400
March 15, 2019 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 127,088 |Paid S 1,425,488
March 15, 2019 Class B Preference 1.75%| $ 59,673 |Paid $ 1,485,161
June 15, 2019 Class A Preference 2.25%| $ 127,119 |Paid S 1,612,280
June 15, 2019 Class B Preference 1.75%| $ 57,536 |Paid $ 1,669,816
September 15, 2019 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 127,109 |Paid S 1,796,925
September 15, 2019 Class B Preference 1.75%| $ 57,536 |Paid S 1,854,461
December 15, 2019 Class A Preference 2.25%| S 126,821 |Paid S 1,981,282
December 15, 2019 Class B Preference 1.75%| S 57,536 |Paid S 2,038,818
March 15, 2020 Class A Preference 1.75%| S 96,137 |Paid S 2,134,955
March 15, 2020 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 43,199 [Paid S 2,178,154
June 15, 2020 Class A Preference 1.75%| $ 96,153 [Paid S 2,274,307
June 15, 2020 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 43,199 [Paid S 2,317,507
September 15, 2020 Class A Preference 1.75%| S 96,137 |Paid S 2,413,644
September 15, 2020 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 43,199 [Paid S 2,456,843
December 15, 2020 Class A Preference 1.75%| $ 96,137 |Paid $ 2,552,981
December 15, 2020 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 43,199 [Paid S 2,596,180
March 15, 2021 Class A Preference 1.75%| $ 96,137 |Paid S 2,692,317
March 15, 2021 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 43,199 [Paid $ 2,735,516
June 15, 2021 Class A Preference 1.75%| S 93,168 |Paid S 2,828,684
June 15, 2021 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 41,051 |Paid $ 2,869,735
September 15, 2021 Class A Preference 1.75%| S 93,168 |Paid S 2,962,902
September 15, 2021 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 41,051 |Paid $ 3,003,953
December 15, 2021 Class A Preference 1.75%| S 93,168 |Paid S 3,097,121
December 15, 2021 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 41,051 |Paid S 3,138,172
December 15, 2021 Class C Preference 1.00%| S 31,770 |Paid S 3,169,942
March 15, 2022 Class A Preference 1.75%| $ 93,121 |Paid S 3,263,063
March 15, 2022 Class B Preference 1.375%| § 41,051 |Paid S 3,304,114
March 15, 2022 Class C Preference 1.00%| $ 35,400 |Paid S 3,339,514
June 15, 2022 Class A Preference 1.75%| $ 93,106 |Paid S 3,432,620
June 15, 2022 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 41,001 |Paid S 3,473,621
June 15, 2022 Class C Preference 1.00%| S 35,475 |Paid S 3,509,096
September 15, 2022 Class A Preference 1.75%| S 93,091 [Paid S 3,602,187
September 15, 2022 Class B Preference 1.375%| $ 41,001 |Paid S 3,643,188
September 15, 2022 Class C Preference 1.00%| $ 37,085 [Paid S 3,680,273
December 15, 2022 Class A Preference 1.75%| S 91,468 |Paid S 3,771,741
December 15, 2022 Class B Preference 1.50%| S 44,729 |Paid S 3,816,470
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All dividends that have been declared have been paid in full. The dividends paid outlined above are listed
under Retained Earnings in Appendix B: 2022 Audited Financial Statements.

11. METHOD OF SALE OF SECURITIES

All Securities sold pursuant to this Offering Statement will be sold exclusively by Board members, officers,
employees (if any) of CED Co-op, and desighated Members of CED Co-op. There are no commissions payable,
or discounts allowed. A feeis being paid to VCT for the administration of the Offering and the processing of
subscriptions for Securities. Securities may be subscribed for by, and issued to, Members of CED Co-op as
well as Non-Members. While marketing activities for securities will be restricted to Ontario, individuals and
organizations based outside of Ontario may subscribe for, and be issued, the Class C Preference Shares
available under this Offering. If an investor makes an investment while a resident of Ontario, and then moves
out of the Province and ceases to be an Ontario resident, the Co-operative will not require the securities to be
redeemed, and will allow the investor to continue to hold the Securities of the Co-operative, other than
Membership Shares. CED Co-op does not guarantee the eligibility of investments for non-residents of
Ontario, this is a risk factor identified in Section 5: Risk Factors - Financial - Eligibility to Hold Securities as a
Non-Resident of Ontario.

All prospective purchasers of Securities sold pursuant to this Offering Statement will have received a copy of
this Offering Statement prior to subscribing for such Securities.

12. DESCRIPTION OF THE MARKET ON WHICH THE SHARES MAY BE SOLD

There is no market through which the Securities of CED Co-op may be sold and none is expected to develop.
Management will use its best efforts to match interested buyers and sellers but there can be no guarantee
that Investors will be able to resell Securities purchased. There can be no assurance that Investors interested
in the purchase of Securities will be available if and when an Investor wishes to transfer the Securities or that
the Board will approve the transfer.

No Securities of CED Co-op may be transferred without the express consent of the Board. Security holders
may request a transfer by writing to the Board of the Co-operative.

The Membership Shares, except where prohibited by law, including the provisions of the Co-op Act, shall be
repurchased upon the withdrawal, death or expulsion of a Member or when a Member exercises the rights of
a dissenting Member pursuant to the Co-op Act, though subject to administrative fees. Shareholders may
only redeem Preference Shares with the approval of the Board. The Bonds of CED Co-op are scheduled to be
redeemed at the maturity of their respective terms or within the terms of redemption of the specific Bond.
CED Co-op is under no obligation to redeem any of the Class C Preference Shares offered under this Offering
Statement upon the withdrawal of a Member. No reserve or sinking fund is being established for the
redemption of the Class C Preference Shares being issued.

The Act prohibits the redemption of the Shares of the Co-operative if CED Co-op is or would be, as a result of
such redemption, insolvent or if such repurchase would, in the opinion of the Board, be detrimental to the
financial stability of CED Co-op.
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13. STATEMENT OF MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM AMOUNTS OF THE OFFERING AND INDIVIDUAL
SUBSCRIPTIONS

Membership Shares and Class C Preference Shares are being offered. This Offering is not subject to a Minimum
aggregate investment threshold. As such, the Co-operative will transact the purchase and sale of securities
directly with Investors and shall not involve any escrow arrangement.

Minimums and Maximums:

Membership | Class C Preference
Totals

Shares Shares
Minimum Offering None None None
Maximum Offering $5,000 $8,000,000 $8,005,000
Minimum Individual
New Investor Purchase $10 $5,000
Minimum Individual
Existing Investor Purchase $10 None
Maximum Individual
Purchase $10 None

Minimum Amount by an Individual Investor

If a prospective Investor wishes to become a Member, the prospective Investor must purchase one $10
Membership Share. Only one Membership Share may be owned by each Member. The purchase of any Class
C Preference Shares is optional and is not a requirement of Membership. New Investors to CED Co-op will
need to invest a minimum of $5,000 in any particular Security, other than a Membership Share. Once this
threshold has been met, there is no minimum investment for subsequent investments. For Investors that
hold Securities which have been purchased under previous offerings, other than for an investment in
Membership Shares, there is no minimum investment. There is no tie between the Securities. Purchasing one
of the Securities of the Co-operative does not obligate the Investor to purchase other Securities.

Maximum Amount by an Individual Investor

As noted, the Membership Shares have a maximum individual purchase of one Membership Share for its par
value of $10. There is no maximum individual purchase for the Class C Preference Shares, save and except
for the maximum limit of the Offering of each respective Security. All purchases of Securities are subject to
approval by the Board of Directors and the Board reserves the right to limit any individual purchase of
Securities.

14. MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS TO WHICH CED CO-OP IS A PARTY

As of the date of the Offering, neither the Co-operative, nor any of the JV, OpCo or LP structures to which the
Co-operativeis a party, are involved in, or are a party to, any material legal proceedings.
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15. MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES
Securities

Each of the Directors and officers of CED Co-op is a Member of CED Co-op and owns one Membership Share.
Holdings owned, or beneficially owned not at-arms-length, by the Directors and officers as of December 31,
2022 are shown here. CED Co-op has no employees at this time.

Name Position Membership Shares Bonds
Shares

Alvin Doerksen Director, Board Chair $ 10 $ 23,385 $ -
Blair Groff Director, Secretary $ 10 $ 1,320 $ -
Brian Unrau Director, President $ 10 $ 145125 $ 236,452
Christine Weber Director, Treasurer $ 10 $ 73,475 $ 85,385
Dale Brubacher-Cressman |Director $ 10 $ 948,320 $ 61542
Martin Sellar Voll Director $ 10 $ - $ -
John Brubacher Director $ 10 $ 239,035 $ -
Paul Hildebrand Director $ 10 $ 162,230 $ 54423
Ryan Parton Director $ 10 $ 105,015 $ 49,802
Steven Chomyc Director $ 10 $ 264,050 $ 54,595

The Board members, officers and any employees that CED Co-op has or may have will be offered the
Securities to be issued under this Offering Statement on the same terms as are available to all other Persons.

Operations

Brian Unrau and Dale Brubacher-Cressman are also directors, officers and shareholders of VCT. VCT has
been engaged by CED Co-op for the engineering, procurement and construction for the majority of the
Projects in the CED Co-op Portfolio, and VCT has been, and continues to be, compensated for this work. VCT
has entered into a Management Services Agreement (included as Appendix L) with CED Co-op for which VCT
is compensated for the work of operating CED Co-op including, but not limited to, the development and
management of this Offering. VCT has also entered into multiple operations and maintenance contracts with
CED Co-op whereby VCT is compensated for provide monitoring, maintenance and repair services for the
Projects. VCT is also the landowner for a number of Projects where CED Co-op has entered into a lease
agreement and compensates VCT for the use of the land under the terms of those lease agreements. VCT is
also a Project Partner for two of the Projects where VCT holds 49% of the Economic Interest in the Project.
There may be other projects or contracts with CED Co-op in the future where VCT may hold a material
interest.

Ryan Parton is also an employee of CRS. CRS has been indirectly engaged by CED Co-op for operations,
maintenance and repair work for several Projects that were constructed. There may be other projects or
contracts with CED Co-op in the future where CRS may hold a material interest.

In performing the dual roles of managing CED Co-op as well as VCT and CRS respectively, there have been
decisions that have been made by the Directors of CED Co-op where the potential exists for a conflict of
interest. Where the potential for a conflict of interest arises with VCT or CRS, the relevant Director(s) are
expected to declare such and recuse themselves from discussion or voting on these matters.

No member of the Board, officer or employee of the Co-operative has a material interest in the business or
operations of the Co-operative other than those disclosed herein.
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16. MATERIAL CONTRACTS ENTERED INTO IN THE TWO YEARS PRECEDING THIS OFFERING
STATEMENT

The following are a list of the active contracts that have been entered into directly by CED Co-op or through
the JV, OpCo and LP structures.

16.1 New or Renewed Contracts
Management Services Agreement

As outlined in Section 4.5: Management and Administration, CED Co-op has entered into a Management
Services Agreement with VCT. The form of this agreement is included as Appendix L. This is an agreement
that is renewed and entered into on an annual basis, and is anticipated to be renewed at the beginning of
2024,

Operations and Maintenance (0&M) Agreements

CED Co-op has, either directly or through JV, OpCo or LP structures, entered into O&M agreements for each
of the Projects that have reached commercial operation, and continues to renew the contracts related to
these services. Further, CED Co-op intends to enter into new O&M contracts for new Projects as they are
constructed. These contracts encompass both scheduled maintenance as well as unplanned service and
repairs. There are service level commitments within these O&M agreements to ensure that the Projects are
operating optimally, and non-production periods (down-time) is minimized. These are agreements that are
renewed and entered into on an annual basis, and is anticipated that these will be renewed at the beginning of
2023.

The Co-operative has not been informed of, and is not aware of, any material legal proceedings to which any
of the project partners or service providers to the Co-operative are a party. Searches against corporate
names of Project partners as well as VCT and CRS have been performed in the Ontario Court of Justice and
Superior Court of Justice online case search portals located at:
https://www.justiceservices.jus.gov.on.ca/MyAccount/screens/OneKey/login.xhtml?lang=EN .

This has not revealed any active material proceedings as of the date of the Offering, though the Co-operative
has not performed additional due diligence beyond these searches.

16.2 Ongoing Contracts From Prior Years

CED Co-op has not entered into new agreements within the past two years for the following types of
agreements outlined below, but remains an active party in these agreements. As CED Co-op develops new
projects, it is likely that CED Co-op will enter into new agreements of certain types described below, and
potentially other types of agreements.

JV Agreements

The majority of the Projects were initially developed under JV agreements, though many were later moved
into LP structures as outlined in Section 3.6.3: Business Models - FIT and microFIT Contracts. These JV
agreements allowed CED Co-op to gain an equity stake in many Projects for which it would not have been
given the opportunity to develop on its own.

LP Agreements

To aid in financing, many of the JV projects have been moved or are being moved into LP structures as
outlined in Section 3.6.3: Business Models - FIT and microFIT Contracts. The LP Structure allows a project
lender to provide non-recourse financing to the Co-operative, registering security on the related Projects, the
related FIT Contracts, and the ownership thereof.
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FIT Contracts

CED Co-op has, either directly or through JV, OpCo or LP structures, entered into FIT Contracts with the IESO.
These contracts form the basis for the sale of renewably generated electricity which provides the cash flows
to CED Co-op and have a 20-year term. These contracts are a standard form for all participants in the FIT
program, and these documents have been developed by the IESO with no opportunity for negotiation of
terms. These documents are available for review through the IESO website: http://www.ieso.ca.

Lease Agreements

CED Co-op has, either directly or through JV, OpCo or LP structures, entered into lease agreements with the
landowners where each of the Projects has been, or is to be, constructed with terms that are a minimum of 20
years. The lease agreements are necessary for the Projects to be awarded a FIT Contract and for CED Co-op
to have access rights to the properties for the purpose of constructing and operating Solar PV Facilities. The
common elements of the lease agreements are outlined in Section 3.9: Real Estate.

Engineer, Procure and Construct (EPC) Agreements

CED Co-op has, either directly or through JV, OpCo or LP structures, entered into EPC agreements to provide
design, engineering, construction and project management services for each of the Projects. Some of these
agreements have been on a fixed price basis, but many have been on a cost-plus basis on order to take
advantage of decreasing prices of Solar PV materials. Overall, the completed Projects have been brought to
commercial operation within the budget for the Portfolio.

Loan Agreements, Security Agreements and Legal Retainers

In receiving financing from Project lenders, CED Co-op has, either directly or through JV, OpCo or LP
structures, entered into, and may in the future, enter into, a number of loan agreements. The broad terms of
these loan agreements are included in Section 4.7: Portfolio Investment and Finance. In support of these loan
agreements and the closing of the related financing, CED Co-op has, either directly or through JV, OpCo or LP
structure, entered into security agreements, guarantee agreements and engagements with law firms to
develop loan documentation and perform legal processes to enable the financing of the Projects.

17. DESCRIPTION OF ANY OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

A copy of this Offering Statement must be given to each Investor before any payment may legally be
accepted by CED Co-op.

None of the Securities issued by CED Co-op pursuant to this Offering Statement will be in bearer form.

This Offering Statement will expire on March 31, 2024, after which date no further sale of the Securities
outlined in this Offering shall occur, unless a new Offering Statement has been filed and receipted.
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18. CERTIFICATE OF DISCLOSURE
THE FOREGOING CONSTITUTES FULL, TRUE, AND PLAIN DISCLOSURE OF ALL MATERIAL FACTS
RELATING TO THE SECURITIES OFFERED BY THIS OFFERING STATEMENT AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 35
OF THE CO-OPERATIVE CORPORATIONS ACT.

Dated at Kitchener, Ontario this 315t day of March, 2023

Acontse

Chair of the Board: Alvin Doerksen

K- [

President: Brian Unrau

Treasurer: Christine Weber
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19. APPENDICES

Appendix A: Projected Financial Statements (See Section 4.6 for descriptions and key assumptions)
Appendix B: 2022 Audited Financial Statements

Appendix C: Consent from Auditors to Use Financials in this Offering Statement
Appendix D: Certificate of Incorporation

Appendix E: Legal Opinion on Election to Become a Public Corporation

Appendix F: CRA Approval of Public Corporation Status

Appendix G: Legal Opinion on the Registered Eligibility of the Securities of CED Co-op
Appendix H: Membership Application and Membership Share Subscription

Appendix I: Form of Offering Statement Subscription Agreement

Appendix J: CWCF / Common Good Capital - Current Fee Schedule

Appendix K: Olympia Trust - Current Fee Schedule

Appendix L: Form of Management Services Agreement

Appendix M: IESO Position Clarification Regarding Domestic Content

Appendix N: Legal Review of FIT Contract Termination Rights
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APPENDIX B: 2022 Audited Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CO-OPERATIVE LTD.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative for 2021

2022 2021
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities:
Net loss $ (616,003) $ (299,935)
Iltems not affecting cash (note 13) 3,347,813 3,137,508
Change in non-cash operating working capital (note 13) (146,657) (33,079)
2,585,153 2,804,494
Financing activities:
Repayment to related party (11,990) (11,991)
Repayment of long-term debt (1,367,082) (1,294,900)
Proceeds of loan payable, net of government assistance - 30,000
Repayment of leasing obligations (317,969) (296,667)
Repayment of bonds (1,181,679) (1,853,736)
Repayment of note payable (87,681) (83,431)
Redemption of Class A preferred shares (96,660) (169,556)
Redemption of Class B preferred shares (3,620) (156,225)
Issuance of Class C preferred shares, net of issue costs 681,775 3,473,746
Redemption of Class C preferred shares (43,750) (17,190)
Cash disbursed to non-controlling interests (355,766) (431,391)
Issuance of membership shares 170 250
Dividends paid (707,238) (573,762)
(3,491,490) (1,384,853)
Investing activities:
Increase in restricted cash (150,590) (119,478)
Purchase price adjustment on asset acquisition - 64,541
Purchase of energy generation equipment (68,606) (93,938)
Investments in associates (18,377) (17,396)
(237,573) (166,271)
Increase (decrease) in cash (1,143,910) 1,253,370
Cash, beginning of period 2,160,947 907,577
Cash, end of period $ 1,017,037 $ 2,160,947
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 5
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APPENDIX C: Consent from Auditors to Use Financials in this Offering Statement
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APPENDIX D: Certificate of Incorporation
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APPENDIX E: Legal Opinion on Election to Become a Public Corporation
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MEMORANDUM

1. RRSP Eligibility of Securities

Summary

This opinion is based on the facts set out in the Offering Statement of CED dated November 27,2014
(the "08"), the articles of incorporation of CED dated October 31, 2012, as amended (the “Articles”), the
by-laws of CED, a certificate of Brian Unrau, President of CED, dated September 8, 2015 conceming
certain factual matters (the “Certificate”), and a letter dated August 28, 2015 from the Canada Revenue
Agency (the “CRA") concerning CED's election to be a “public corporation” for purposes of the ITA (ihe
“CRA Letter”). In this memorandum, the term “Securities” means Membership Shares, Class A
Preference Shares, Bonds — Series L1-4, Bonds — Series M1-5 and Term Loans, all as defined in the

OS.

Provided that CED is a “public corporation” for purposes of the ITA, the Securities are qualified
investments under the ITA for plan trusts.

Subject to the assumptions and qualifications set forth herein, including in particular the understanding
that CED complied (at the time of the Election, as defined below) and will continue to comply with the
Prescribed Election Requirement , the Prescribed Dispersal and Trading Requirement and the Non-
Revocation Requirement (all as defined below), and based and relying on the CRA Letter, CED is a
public corporation for purposes of the ITA and has been such a corporation since June 19, 2015.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the holder of a tax-free savings account, or the annuitant under a
registered retirement savings plan or registered retirement income fund, within the meaning of the ITA, is
subject to a penalty tax in respect of Securities held by such tax-free savings account, registered
retirement savings plan or registered retirement income fund, as the case may be, if such Securities are
a “prohibited investment’ for such plan trusts for the purposes of the ITA. The Securities are not a
“prohibited investment” for trusts governed by a tax-free savings account, registered retirement savings
plan or registered retirement income fund unless the holder of the tax-free savings account or the
annuitant under the registered retirement savings plan or registered retirement income fund, as
applicable, (i) does not deal at arm’s length with CED for purposes of the ITA, or (i) has a “significant
interest” as defined in the ITA in CED. Generally, a holder or annuitant, as the case may be, will not
have a “significant interest” in CED unless the holder or annuitant, as the case may be, either alone or
together with persons with which the holder or annuitant, as the case may be, does not deal at arm’s
length, owns directly or indirectly not less than 10% of the issued shares of any class or series of the
capital stock of CED, or of any other corporation that is related to CED for purposes of the ITA.

Even if the Class A Preference Shares are otherwise a “prohibited investment”, such shares are not a
“prohibited investment” if they are “excluded property” as defined in the ITA for trusts governed by a tax-
free savings account, registered retirement savings plan or registered retirement income fund. Holders
or annuitants should consult their own tax advisors with respect to whether Securities are prohibited
investments in their particular circumstances, including if necessary with respect to whether the Class A
Preference Shares are “excluded property” as defined in the ITA.

22730708.6
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MEMORANDUM

The opinion set forth in this memorandum is based upon the current provisions of the ITA, specific
proposals to amend the ITA publicly announced by the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date
hereof and on our understanding of the current administrative policies and assessing practices of the
Canada Revenue Agency (the “CRA”) made publicly available prior to the date hereof. These opinions
do not otherwise take into account or anticipate any changes in law or administrative or assessing
practices, whether by judicial, governmental or legislative decision or action. The scope of our opinion is
limited to the Canadian federal income tax matters addressed herein.

Analysis

Pursuant to paragraph 4900(1)(b) of the regulations under the ITA (the “Regulations”), a share of a
“public corporation” (other than a “mortgage investment corporation” — a “MIC") is a qualified investment
for plan trusts. In addition, pursuant to paragraph 4900(1)(c.1) of the Regulations, a “bond, debenture,
note or similar obligation of a public corporation” (other than a MIC) is a qualified investment for plan
trusts.

A “public corporation” at any particular time as defined in subsection 89(1) of the ITA generally includes
a corporation (other than a prescribed labour-sponsored venture capital corporation — an “LSVCC")
resident in Canada that:

(a) has, before the particular time, elected in prescribed manner to be a public corporation (the
“Prescribed Election Requirement”),

(b) at the time of the election complied with prescribed conditions relating to the number of its
shareholders, the dispersal of ownership of its shares and the public trading of its shares (the
“Prescribed Dispersal and Trading Requirement”), and

(c) has not, at any time after the election time and before the particular time, complied with prescribed
conditions not to be a public corporation and elected or been designated by the Minister of National
Revenue not to be a public corporation (the “Non-Revocation Requirement”).

Based on the Certificate, CED is not a MIC or an LSVCC.

The Prescribed Election Requirement

Pursuant to Regulation 4900(4), an election to be a public corporation shall be made by filing with the
Minister of National Revenue the (i) the prescribed election form, (i) where the directors are legally
entitled to administer the affairs of CED, a certified copy of their resolution authorizing the making of the
election, and (jii) a statutory declaration made by a director of the corporation stating that, after making
reasonable inquiry for the purpose of informing himself in that regard, to the best of his knowledge the
corporation complies with all the prescribed conditions that must be complied with at the time the
election is made.

An election in prescribed form completed and executed by CED to be a public corporation as of June 19,
2015 (the “Election”), together with a certified copy of a resolution of the directors of CED as required by
22730708.6
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MEMORANDUM

(i) above, and a statutory declaration executed by Brian Unrau, a director of CED, as required by (jii)
above (the “Statutory Declaration”), were filed on behalf of CED with the Minister of National Revenue
on June 17, 2015.

On August 28, 2015, the CRA issued the CRA Letter, which states, subject to the restrictions described
in the definition of “public corporation” in subsection 89(1) of the ITA, that:

Based on the review of this election and other documentaticn, this corporation is considered
to be a public corporation as of June 19, 2015.

The Prescribed Dispersal and Trading Requirement
The Prescribed Dispersal and Trading Requirement is set out in Regulation 4800(1) and 4803.

Based on the Statutory Declaration, CED complied with the Prescribed Dispersal and Trading
Requirement at the time the Election was made.

The Prescribed Dispersal and Trading Requirement applies to a corporation that is not a “credit union”
as set forth in subsection 137(8) of the ITA, or a “cooperative corporation” as set forth in paragraph
136(2)(a) of the ITA.

A “credit union” is defined in subsection 137(6) of the ITA to mean a corporation, association or
federation incorporated or organized as a credit union or cooperative credit society that meets certain
requirements concerning the nature of its revenues or the identity of its members having full voting
rights.

Based on the Certificate, CED does not qualify as a credit union within the meaning of subsection 137(6)
and did not so qualify at the time the Election was made.

CED is organized under the Co-operative Corporations Act (Ontario) (the “CCA”). However, the
requirements in paragraph 136(2)(a) of the ITA to be a “cooperative corporation” for purposes of the ITA
include in particular the requirement that:

(a) the statute by or under which it [CED] was incorporated, its charter, articles of
association or by-laws or its contracts with its members or its members and
customers held out the prospect that payments would be made to them in proportion
to patronage;

Based on the Certificate, at the time the Election was made, CED was a renewable energy co-operative
under the CCA which did not, and did not hold out the prospect that it would, make payments to its
members or customers in proportion to patronage, and did not otherwise meet the above requirement to
be a “cooperative corporation” within the meaning of paragraph 136(2)(a) of the ITA.

The Non-Revocation Requirement

22730708.6
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MEMORANDUM

For purposes of the Non-Revocation Requirement, the prescribed conditions not to be a public
corporation are set out in Regulation 4800(2) and 4803, and relate generally to the number of CED’s
shareholders, the dispersal of ownership of its shares, and the public trading of its shares (the “Non-
Public Corporation Conditions™).

Based on the Certificate, CED did not at the time Election was made, and intends not to, satisfy the Non-
Public Corporation Conditions; had not elected at the time Election was made, and does not intend to
elect, not to be a public corperation; and had at the timie the Election was made and as of the date of the
Certificate not received notification from the Minister of National Revenue that it has been designated
not to be a public corporation.

Conclusion

Based on the foregoing considerations, and subject to the qualifications and assumptions set out in the
“Summary”, provided that CED is a “public corporation” for purposes of the ITA, the Securities are
qualified investments under the ITA for plan trusts.

Subject to the assumptions and qualifications set forth herein, including in particular the understanding
that CED complied (at the time of the Election) and will continue to comply with the Prescribed Election
Requirement , the Prescribed Dispersal and Trading Requirement and the Non-Revocation
Requirement, and based and relying on the CRA Letter, CED is a public corporation for purposes of the
ITA.

The foregoing opinion is subject to the discussion in the “Summary” concerning Securities that are
“prohibited investments” for a tax-free savings account, a registered retirement savings plan or a
registered retirement income fund, within the meaning of the ITA.

2. Compliance of Issuance of Securities with Co-operative Corporations _and Securities Acts

You have also asked for our opinion as to whether the issuance of the Securities is in compliance with
the Co-operative Corporations Act (Ontario), the Securities Act (Ontario) and other applicable law
(collectively, the “Acts”).

For the purpose of this opinion, we have considered such questions of law, examined such statutes,
regulations, public records, certificates of government officials, corporate documents, records,
certificates and instruments and made such other examinations, investigations and searches, in each
case, as we have considered relevant and necessary as a basis for the opinions hereinafter expressed,
including, but not so as to limit the generality of the foregoing, the following:

1. the written resolution of the directors of CED dated as of June 23, 2015 (the “Resolution”);

2. the form of Subscription Agreement to be entered into by CED with subscribers for the
Securities that we have participated in the preparation of as counsel to CED (each
22730708.6
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MEMORANDUM

agreement once executed and delivered by CED and each such subscriber, a "Subscription
Agreement’);

3. the Certificate; and

4. Certificate of Amendment dated March 19, 2014 executed on behalf of the Minister of
Finance and the related articles of amendment of CED (the “Articles of Amendment”) and
the by-laws of CED.

For the purposes of the opinions expressed herein, we have assumed:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

O

@

22730708.6

that the dollar value of Securities issued will not exceed the thresholds established in
the Articles of Amendment and the Resolution, and that the price per Security issued
will be payable in cash in accordance with the prices authorized by the Resolution;

that CED is validly existing as a corporation under the Co-operative Corporations Act
(Ontario) and that no act or proceeding has been taken by CED or any other person
or governmental authority or court to dissolve, wind-up or otherwise terminate CED’s
existence, or to amend the provisions of the articles of CED subsequent to March 19,
2014;

the genuineness of all signatures of all parties and the legal capacity of all individuals
signing any documents;

the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to
originals of all documents submitted to us as certified or photostatic or electronically
transmitted copies or facsimiles thereof and the authenticity of the originals of such
certified, photostatic or electronically transmitted copies or facsimiles;

that the Certificate and the certificates of government officials and public records
examined continue to be accurate on the date hereof as if issued on such date;

no order, ruling or decree of any court or regulatory authority having jurisdiction
having the effect of ceasing, restricting, suspending or prohibiting any distributions of,
or trading in, the Securities by any person in the Province of Ontario is in effect and
that no proceedings for that purpose have been instituted or are pending or
contemplated;

that each of the parties to the Subscription Agreement, other than CED, has, to the
extent applicable, all requisite corporate power and capacity to execute and deliver
the Subscription Agreement and to perform its obligations thereunder, and has taken
all necessary corporate action to authorize the execution and delivery of the
Subscription Agreement and the performance of its obligations thereunder;
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APPENDIX F: CRA Approval of Public Corporation Status

.*l Canada Revenue Agence du revenu COPY
Agency du Canada

Jonquiere Tax Centre

Jonquiére QC G7S 5J2 REGIATERED MAlL

August 28, 2015

COMMUNITY ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CO-
OPERATIVE LTD.

1633 SNYDER'S ROAD EAST,
PETERSBURG ON NOB 2HO

Dear Sir or Madam:
Re: Election to be a Public Corporation - Form T2073

Based on the review of this election and other documentation, this
corporation is considered to be a public corporation as of
June 19, 2015.

This privilege is subject to the restrictions described in the
definition found under subsection 89 (1) of the Income Tax Act.

If you have any questions or concerns about any matter covered in
this letter, please contact Mr. Claude Gaudreault either by writin
by telephone. The address and telephone numbers are indicated on
this letter.

Yours truly,
X
P2
7 /
Pierre Boutin
Director, Jonquiére Tax centre
Canada Revenue Agency

c.c.: BLAKE, CASSELS & GRAYDON LLP

= Loc%g: 418-699-0735 Ext. : 6632

[32] Jonquuere,Tax Centre Toll Free : 1-888-699-0735 Ext. : 6632
a a 225 Rene-Lev&s%ue Blvd. Fax: . 18-699-4517
Jonquiere QC G7S 5J2 Web site : www.cra.gc.ca
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APPENDIX G: Legal Opinion on the Registered Eligibility of the Securities of CED Co-op
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APPENDIX H: Membership Application and Membership Share Subscription
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APPENDIX I: Form of Offering Statement Subscription Agreement
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APPENDIX J: CWCF / Common Good Capital - Current Fee Schedule
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APPENDIX K: Olympia Trust — Current Fee Schedule
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APPENDIX L: Form of Management Services Agreement
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APPENDIX M: IESO Position Clarification Regarding Domestic Content
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APPENDIX N: Legal Review of FIT Contract Termination Rights
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